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Year ended Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
HE-Z-ZH% HE-Z—N&F Change
NAZTALFE NAZTHIEFE o
Revenue Wz 1,092 1,488 V27%
Gross profit E£7 534 767 ¥30%
Loss from operating activities @258 (319) (103) 4209%
Loss for the year attributable to owners* 8 A (54 AEE (368) (139) ¥ 164%
Basic loss per share* (HK cents) &Rz E A &1 (L) (22.40) (8.48) ¥ 164%
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) =& HIEE (B1L) - 1.22 ¥ 100%
Final dividend per share (HK cents) SRREIILE (B1L) - 1.22 ¥ 100%
Gross margin (%) EFIE (%) 49% 52% ¥ 3%pts MEDE
Operating margin (%) @ FI%E (%) -29% 7% ¥ 22%pts fAEH 2
Net margin* (%) JFaF1%* (%) -34% -9% ¥ 25%pts [HEHE
EBITDA R&tFIS - H1E - ERBHATEF (106) (86) ¥23%
EBITDA margin (%) AR&tHFIE « BiI8 - #8 REHEATARIE (%) -10% -6% ¥ 4% pts [HES 2
Capital expenditure &R % * 21 30 4 30%

. D Iy
Key financial indicators’ £ B 5512

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
et St 223 —E-hF Change
AA=t+A ~NA=t+H HE
Inventory turnover* (days) 175 E#H* (X) 123 119 4 4 days X
Inventory level (HK$mn) FEKF (B EET) 210 259 ¥ 19%
Return on equity (%) xR iEzERE (%) -75% -18%  ¥57% pts @B
Current ratio (times) 7BILLE (%) 1.49 3.42 456%
Net cash® (HK$mn) B& 58T s EET) 116 132 $12%
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) 428 E¥RFERLLE (%) 175% 34% M41% pts EEHE

*# Including continuing and discontinued operations B IEFELE KO R IEER

* Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales times 365 days 4 #% A 2 17 55 LAS & A A8 e 365K
T Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank borrowings 72877 S0FIER & F 4R 7T B RERTTE 3K
Revenue by geographical market %155 %8 2 Wz
For the year ended 30 June 2020 HE =TT F SA=F+HIFE

Hong Kong and Macau &% & ®F9
66% (71%) o

Global distribution network ZE5 54845

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
b et 23 —T-NF Change
~A=t+H A~NA=+A e
Hong Kong and Macau & &2
Directly managed stores 38 39 V1
HEERIEH
Mainland China #EIXRE
Directly managed stores 154 175 21
HEEERIEH
Singapore 703
Directly managed stores 17 15 2
BERERER
Other countries HEfEX
Export franchised stores 773 775 V2
HOsSRFE R
Taiwan" &#&"
Directly managed stores - 57 v 57
HEEEEME
Total &#
Directly managed stores 209 286 V77
HEEERIEH
Franchised stores 773 775 V2
FRTE R
982 1,061 V79

" From discontinued operation 7 (& 242 11 %75

Mainland China = B A fz
27 % (22%)

Singapore 714

7% 7%)

() Figures for the year ended 30 June 2019 are shown in brackets #Z =% —
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Our vision s to be the most preferred
EVERYDAY WEAR BRAND

HFmER — KRR EERN
H % Bk & & b

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“stock
code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”) is a renowned apparel brand owner, retailer and franchiser in
the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first retail store in 1987. Over the past three decades, it rapidly established
an extensive international operating platform and distribution network that extended to a total of 982 stores worldwide.
Among these, the Group operated 209 directly managed stores in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland China and Singapore.
As for other overseas markets, the Group cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of 773 export franchised
stores in 25 countries, spanning from Southeast Asia, the Middle East, Europe to as far as Central America.

Renowned for its comfortable, easy to mix-and-match, colourful and energetic style, Bossini offers casual wear apparel
products including men’s, ladies’ and kids' wear, which are designed to fit a wide range of customer needs.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the annual results of Bossini International Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries for this financial year which ended 30 June 2020.

2019/20 was a challenging year for the retail apparel industry. During the year, increased social instability in Hong
Kong negatively impacted our business in the city. The COVID-19 outbreak in January 2020 and its classification
as a pandemic in March 2020 further intensified the already difficult operating environment in our core markets.

For the period January to June 2020, retail sales for the ready-to-wear apparel sector in Hong Kong fell
around 52% according to the Census and Statistics Department of The Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, while visitor arrivals in Hong Kong and Macau slumped over 80% according to local travel
industry data. In contrast, there has not been a proportionate decrease in our rental expenditure, with several
landlords still unwilling to provide rent concessions despite the current retail environment. In the second half of
the financial year, our top- and bottom-line performance substantially deteriorated due to the above and also a
sharp decline in both inbound tourism and consumer spending in the Group’s other major operating markets:
mainland China and Singapore. Additionally, measures we implemented to better navigate the current climate,
such as temporary store closures and reduced store operating hours, also negatively impacted our revenue.

As part of our ongoing restructuring initiatives, by the end of June 2020 we had officially closed all retail stores
in Taiwan to focus on strengthening resources and recalibrating operations. Furthermore, we have implemented
several measures to respond to the current challenges we face. We are examining expenditure with a sharp focus
on reducing costs and expenses by increasing operational efficiency and streamlining our business operations.
We are also adjusting our buying and inventory levels, and are continuously reviewing our shop portfolio
comprehensively and exiting any specific loss-making sectors. Last but not least, as the overall shop rental
expenses remain at a very unreasonable level, we are renegotiating with landlords across all our core markets,
particularly in Hong Kong and Macau, to seek rent relief and reduction. Where landlords are reluctant to respond
reasonably to our requests, we will go ahead and close those shops.

Despite our efforts to mitigate the current retail quandary, we do not anticipate a solid rebound in overall
performance, especially while the COVID-19 vaccine remains unavailable to the public, and the prospect of
tourism in our core markets remains deeply uncertain. Social distancing, lockdowns, curfews and changing
quarantine requirements have created immense challenges for our retail operations. Moreover, major banks
continue to tighten our credit facilities, and it is difficult to predict whether additional measures will be
implemented by the banking sector in future. We expect to continue facing strong headwinds. Thus, there is
currently no solid foundation for us to form an optimistic opinion about the Group’s performance for at least an
extended period of time.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FRABR A

Acquisition of the controlling stake in Bossini W B R 10 BE A 2 R ==

_5 On 21 July 2020, Viva China Holdings Limited ("Viva China") acquired the controlling stake in Bossini to become RZE_EFL+A-+—B NP EERERAE ([FELFEH]

5@ Bossini’s major shareholder. With effect from 24 July 2020, Viva China appointed several directors to the Board W R RS ER AR ENTERR B2 2 F+ A

B8 of Bossini and | was appointed as Chairman of the Board. ZFTOHR EAFREEZEZEATEEEMEESTRAKE  UE

g% FRAAREZRER °
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— On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, business partners and customers for their AANZHARRESZHRRARE  EEBHLEPHAEERFILBH
unwavering support. My sincere appreciation also goes to all our staff for their continued dedication and THE AANMKORHTEETHEMENBHARELER  LER
contribution to Bossini, especially during the difficult time we experienced over the past financial year. RBEBBETRFERMASENERE NG -

Victor HERRERO TE
Chairman Victor HERRERO
| Hong Kong BB
16 September 2020 ZEZFEFNATRA
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OVERVIEW

Group revenue for the year ended 30 June 2020 was HK$1,092 million (2019: HK$1,488 million) at a gross
margin of 49% (2019: 52%). Table 1 provides details of the Group's results of continuing operations in core
markets. Loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$368 million (2019: HK$139 million), an increase
of 164% from 2019. The Group’s same-store sales and same-store gross profit were down by 14% (2019: 9%
decline) and 21% (2019: 11% decline), respectively. Net cash balance was HK$116 million (2019: HK$132
million) as of 30 June 2020.

RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Table 1: Group’s results of continuing operations

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM

T BE

éti_7_?¢/\ﬂ +BIEFE  AEBKZEAEE10.92ET (=
T—NF: BE14.88ETT)  EFEEL9% (ZZF—NF :52%) ° K
—BAREERZLOMBZHECEEBEEFE - AAR%HE AEN
BB ABE3.68EIL (ZE—NF  B¥1.398) R=ZT—NFEM
164% - AEBNEEHEENMBIEEFS EIJTE%M%L? JUAE -
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For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=tHLEE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E—NnF
BEHER HEEEER D

Hong Kong and Macau &% & & g 716 66% 1,052 71% (32%)
Mainland China = B A Bz 296 27% 332 22% (11%)
Singapore #1113 80 7% 104 7% (23%)
Group revenue £ [E Wz 1,092 100% 1,488 100% (27%)
Gross profit EF 534 49% 767 52% (30%)
Total operating expenses #2 %Lﬁ-ﬁi (885) (81%) (922) (62%) 4% |
Loss from operating activities % & ¥ 15 &5 18 (319) (29%) (103) (7%) (209%)
Finance costs &l & X 2% (16) (1%) (0.2) 0% (7,533%)
EBITDA R&tFE - Bi1E - fTERBHAAT (106) (10%) (86) (6%) (23%)
Loss for the year attributable to owners # A A & {5 & R &5 18 (368) (34%) (139) (9%) (164%)
Group same-store sales growth* £ [& [[] /5 §4 & 5814 K * (14%) (9%)

Group same-store gross profit growth* £= & [& 5 £ F| & £ * (21%) (11%)

Net cash at 30 June* RN A=+ H 2R & /F5E* 116 132 (12%)
Inventory level at 30 June* 78N A =+ B Z 7 &K+ 210 259 (19%) |
Inventory turnover (days) at 30 June* RN A=+ R ZFERAEH (X) * 123 119 4

* Including continuing and discontinued operations

* BEREEERERIERE

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFREEABR A A 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEwR D

Revenue and gross profit

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,092 million (2019: HK$1,488 million),
which fell by 27%. Gross profit decreased by 30% to HK$534 million (2019: HK$767 million), with gross margin
dropped by 3% points to 49% (2019: 52%). Multiple macro factors, such as the Sino-United States trade dispute,
regional social incidents, the global outbreak of the COVID-19 and unseasonably warm winter in certain regions
affected the retail environment and consumer sentiment. The impact was particularly significant to our sales in
our core markets.

Total operating expenses and loss from operating activities

The total operating expense to sales ratio increased to 81% (2019: 62%). The Group also recognised the non-
cash operating expense of impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment of HK$115
million (2019: HK$3 million). Although operating expenses shrunk by HK$37 million, or 4%, it was not enough
to maintain the same operating expense ratio as last year. The reduction was also insufficient to outweigh the
negative impact of the decline in gross profit, resulting in an increase in operating loss of 209% to HK$319 million
(2019: HK$103 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs were HK$16 million (2019: HK$0.2 million), which comprised of interest expenses on bank
borrowings and interest on lease liabilities. The interest on lease liabilities of HK$15 million (2019: Nil) was due
to the adoption of HKFRS 16, under which the Group (as lessee in numerous tenancy agreements) recognises the
imputed interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liabilities.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses amounted to HK$12 million (2019: HK$4 million), representing an effective tax rate of
negative 4% (2019: negative 4%).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by 164%, as shown in Table 1. Net margin was negative
34% (2019: negative 9%), an increase of 25% points. The preceding commentaries cite the reasons.
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DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

As of 30 June 2020, the Group had a presence in 28 countries and regions around the world, and had 982 stores MNZEBE_TZENA=1H  AEBREKEMEZHEBRRMBE @ /&
(2019: 1,061) comprised of 209 (2019: 286) directly managed stores and 773 (2019: 775) franchised stores.

Table 2: Store composition by type and geographical location

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

N

7 $H 4B 4R

A A2 (ZZE—HE 1,061/) » B1F2090 (=T —Hh4 : 286
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Hong Kong and Macau &/ &2 P9
Mainland China A B K p&

Singapore # J13#

Other countries H/h [ =

Taiwan/ & &A

Total #& 5t

At 30 June 2020

R-ZB-EFXA=1H

Directly managed stores

Franchised stores

At 30 June 2019
R-_ZE—hFAA=1+H

N

From discontinued operation
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AIEJEJ—THHE& $ﬁ'

ANALYSIS BY MARKET
Hong Kong and Macau

As a consequence of the continuing Sino-United States trade war and social incidents, the retail sector in Hong
Kong recorded a material decline since mid 2019. According to the statistics from the Census and Statistics
Department of The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the wearing apparel retail sales
value decreased by 40% on a period-on-period basis for the period from July 2019 to June 2020. The plunge in
mainland China tourists by 66% for the same period had hard hit retail sales in Hong Kong. Such drastic decline
was mainly due to the social incidents in the second half of 2019 followed by the stringent border controls for
mainland Chinese visitors to Hong Kong and Macau in early 2020 to impede the spread of the COVID-19 virus,
which made it more challenging for the apparel retailing business in Hong Kong and Macau. Although the sales
decline was slightly narrowed in December 2019 and early January 2020 due to pent-up demand from locals in
Hong Kong, the COVID-19 outbreak from late January 2020 onwards had a significant impact both on tourist and
local consumption.

Our export franchising business experienced challenging times with turbulent market sentiment. Annual sales
registered significant drop versus last year particularly in the Middle East markets. Our two other major markets,
Thailand and Vietnam both showed positive growth in shipments reflecting positive outlook of these markets in
spite of the market downturn in the second half of the financial year. Strategic measures are taken to optimise
the inventory efficiency of overseas customers and to explore additional sales channels.

During the year under review, revenue in Hong Kong and Macau including the retail and export franchising
business was HK$716 million (2019: HK$1,052 million), representing a 32% decline. Same-store sales for directly
managed stores fell 19% (2019: 10% decline) while same-store gross profit declined 27% (2019: 12% decline).
Total net retail floor area decreased to 109,500 sqg. ft. (2019: 110,800 sq. ft.), and sales per sq. ft. declined
21% to HK$5,500 (2019: HK$7,000). The number of directly managed stores remained steady at 38 (2019: 39).
Segment result was HK$199 million loss (2019: HK$43 million loss).

The export franchising business operated a total number of stores to 773 (2019: 775) with a footprint across
25 countries in the year under review. The Group maintained its cautious yet strategic international expansion
programme to tap opportunities in the emerging markets.
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Mainland China

The unseasonable winter weather particularly in southern China had adversely affected our sales performance
during the first half of our financial year. It was followed by the COVID-19 situation which further impacted the
overall retail market during the second half of our financial year. The overall store count was reduced owing to
our voluntary shop closures in response to the deteriorating retailing environment.

Revenue in mainland China decreased by 11% to HK$296 million (2019: HK$332 million). Same-store sales
dropped 8% (2019: 6% decline) and same-store gross profit registered a 14% decline (2019: 6% decline). Sales
per sq. ft. decreased by 21% to HK$1,500 (2019: HK$1,900) while total net retail floor area decreased by 7% to
140,700 sq. ft. (2019: 151,400 sq. ft.). There was a total of 154 (2019: 175) directly managed stores in mainland
China. Segment result was HK$102 million loss (2019: HK$58 million loss).

Singapore

Singapore performance was challenged by lesser traffic and weaker spending power. In December 2019, retail
sales fell compared with the same period the year before, many retailers were seeing lesser demand over festive
like Christmas. Upon news that COVID-19 was prevalent in Singapore and Southeast Asia region from February
2020, overall consumer market sentiment dipped, leading to drop in sales. Especially for the tourist centric stores,
sales were down with no visitors entering Singapore. Subsequent to curb the spread of COVID-19, Singapore
went into “circuit breaker” mode. All stores had to be closed from 7 April 2020 till 18 June 2020.

The revenue of Singapore operation dropped by 23% to HK$80 million (2019: HK$104 million) during the year
under review. Same-store sales registered an 11% decline (2019: 9% decline) compared to last year. Same-store
gross profit recorded a 13% decline (2019: 5% decline). Total net retail floor area increased by 4% to 22,200
sg. ft. (2019: 21,400 sq. ft.). Sales per sqg. ft. decreased by 32% to HK$3,400 (2019: HK$5,000). The Group
continued to adjust store network and the number of directly managed stores stood steady at 17 (2019: 15). The
segment result was HK$36 million loss (2019: HK$13 million loss).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Discontinued operation BRIEER
_Em Taiwan &
>
gﬁ[ The Group had ceased its retail operation in Taiwan by end of June 2020. Taiwan commenced operation in 1992 AREBER - ZE_ETFNAKNAERSENTEER 8 E2EBRN
451 and had a significant role in promoting the brand name of the Group in the Southeast Asia region, thus spearing — NN EEHBELE  BOREEGEEENER S HmEF
giﬂ( ahead the Group’s presence in the Greater China region. However, due to the continuing sluggish consumer REEBRAPEMEROHMZE - %ﬁ’ﬁ HREEHEEEMSENBE
= market in Taiwan over the last two decades, the Taiwan segment has been loss making since the financial year T ERERED fESNE TR EREUNREERL—BEHEE
of 2005/06. In the face of the challenging market conditions prevailing in Hong Kong and mainland China, the iR EEHBEENABRAE(AEBRNETESELESH) BRiaH
two main retailing divisions of the Group, the Group believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and BTN AEBERE RIFEEEBKEHAEERREMZ LTS
its shareholders to cease the Taiwan operation so that the Group can better utilise its resources in its other core BEREER  BFAEAA T LREHEBENSERZ -
markets.
FINANCIAL POSITION B IS AR
Liquidity and Financial Resources REBEE R BER
As of 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$176 million (2019: HK$162 million) and net R-E-—FEXA=+H AEBSEHES NIEITEG A EE] 76/E
cash of HK$116 million (2019: HK$132 million). The current ratio was 1.49 times (2019: 3.42 times) with a total T (ZE—NE  BE162ET) MRS FHEAEKI 16T (2
liabilities to equity ratio of 175% (2019: 34%). Bank borrowings of HK$60 million (2019: HK$30 million) were —jLi M 32(BIT) c AEBEGRBLE A1.49F (ZE—NE3.42

recorded as of 30 June 2020 and the gearing ratio determined by bank borrowings divided by total equity was =) maEEiREERD ttT;%] 75% (= FE—NE :34%) c R —F—
21% (2019: 4%). The Group had banking facilities of HK$456 million (2019: HK$422 million) of which HK$87 ?i,\ﬁ] +8 AEBERTERAEESK60TET(ZE—HE B

million (2019: HK$52 million) had been utilised. B3 0FEIT) - QEELJ:ETEN % (—E—NE :4%)  STEEHEA
RITERGRABER - AEERRITEEBER/BBASCET(ZF AN
FBMA2MET)  BETAEMSTITEL(ZE-NF  BH¥2TE

T)ER B -

The Group has investments and operations in countries that use currencies other than the United States dollar AREBEETHREARLBEFRETLRBSBUINEKHNEZRET B
and Hong Kong dollar. As such, the Group is exposed, to a certain extent, to foreign currency risk, which it WAREBE—TIEE FASIINERR - REBITTIEBHEES LR
mitigates by entering into forward currency contracts to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material EIETRBEANEIEARSMELE ZINERK ©

transactions denominated in currencies other than United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

As of 30 June 2020, the Group's inventory turnover days* was 123 days, compared to 119 days in 2019. The R-E-FEFNA=+H AEEGFSEAEE123K Y _E—N,

return on equity ratio for the year under review was negative 75% (2019: negative 18%). FRIK - REEFR AEBNREEFLORE AEB75% (ZF
—NFB18%) °

5 Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales times 365 days # FEiEH.Z 7 BB 85 B AR F365K
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Significant Investment

The Group had an investment fund in the amount of approximately HK$232 million, representing approximately
24.7% of the total assets of the Group as at 30 June 2019. The investment fund represented the Group's
investment in “Credit Suisse Nova (Lux) Fixed Maturity Bond Fund 2019” (the “Fund”). For the year ended 30
June 2020, the Group disposed of approximately HK$85 million of the Fund in August 2019. The remaining
Fund matured on 20 December 2019 and the Fund was wound down in accordance with the terms of the Fund.
The Group recorded approximately HK$2 million loss on disposal (2019: Nil), interest income from the Fund of
approximately HK$2 million (2019: HK$7 million) and a gain in fair value of the Fund of approximately HK$1
million (2019: HK$2 million) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Fund was a bond fund offered by Credit Suisse AG, Hong Kong Branch. To the best of knowledge,
information and belief of the Group, Credit Suisse AG, Hong Kong Branch is a licensed bank under the Banking
Ordinance (Chapter 155, the Laws of Hong Kong) for the conduct of dealing in securities, advising on securities,
advising on corporate finance and asset management regulated activities. The investment strategy of the Fund
was a global and broad diversification of portfolio, and predominantly in bonds which are broadly diversified
in terms of business sectors, issuers and countries. The underlying investments of the Fund primarily consist of

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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corporate and quasi-sovereign bonds with low duration profile and long term average credit rating of BBB- using -
linear calculation. The Group invested in the Fund for treasury management purpose in order to maximise the RBBB-Z EEREFEES  c AEEDNREKEEZENMBEZES WNS
utilisation of its surplus cash with an aim to obtain a better return. UEEMAEBRSINEEEDR - ﬂgh
d —+
D
Contingent Liabilities FREE s
3
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 a
—E-EERAZTH —F—AEAA=+H
BT T -
QU
_—
.
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and REKERERBYWEELRS ZRITER 8
>
property rental deposits 5,697 3,463 s o
¥3
Q
=
=)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEwR D

Human Capital

As of 30 June 2020, the Group employed 1,500 (2019: 1,900) full-time equivalent employees in Hong Kong and
Macau, mainland China, Taiwan, and Singapore.

The Group adhere to a policy of acquiring, nurturing and retaining talented employees. We treasure and promote
the team spirit, and strive to cultivate a proactive and ever-improving culture. Workshops in effective management
and certified programmes were offered for office and shop staff at all levels.

We believe a vibrant and competent workforce is indispensable in driving business growth. We treasure
knowledge sharing and life-long learning. We encourage employees to progress and excel every day through the
“bossini e-academy”, our e-platform which is devised to offer practical and experience-based knowledge and
skills in customer service, retailing, products, and other latest marketing information.

We also continued to remunerate employees based on performance, including discretionary bonuses, share
options and wide-ranging employee benefits such as insurance and retirement schemes.

OUTLOOK

Since 2019, the economic environment of the core markets in which the Group operates, comprising Hong Kong
and Macau, mainland China and Singapore, has been adversely affected by the Sino-United States trade tensions,
the local social incidents in Hong Kong and the global outbreak of the COVID-19 which disrupted a wide range
of economic activities and critically affected tourism- and consumption-related sectors, resulting in slower growth
or even contraction in retail sales.

In the second half of the financial year, our top- and bottom-line performance substantially deteriorated due
to the above and measures we implemented to better navigate the current climate, such as temporary store
closures and reduced store operating hours. Moreover, there has not been a proportionate decrease in our
rental expenditure, with several landlords still unwilling to provide rent concessions despite the current retail
environment.
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Social distancing, lockdowns, curfews and changing quarantine requirements have created immense challenges
for our retail operations. Moreover, major banks continue to tighten our credit facilities, and it is difficult to
predict whether additional measures will be implemented by the banking sector in future. We have implemented
several measures to respond to the current challenges we face. We are examining expenditure with a sharp focus
on reducing costs and expenses by increasing operational efficiency and streamlining our business operations.
We are also adjusting our buying and inventory levels, and are continuously reviewing our shop portfolio
comprehensively and exiting any specific loss-making sectors. Furthermore, as the overall shop rental expenses
remain at a very unreasonable level, we are renegotiating with landlords across all our core markets, particularly
in Hong Kong and Macau, to seek rent relief and reduction. Where landlords are reluctant to respond reasonably
to our requests, we will go ahead and close those shops.

On 21 July 2020, Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China”) acquired the controlling stake in Bossini to become
Bossini’s major shareholder. With effect from 24 July 2020, Viva China appointed several directors to the Board
of Bossini and consequentially the formation of our new management.

Despite our efforts to mitigate the current retail quandary, the new management does not anticipate a solid
rebound in overall performance, especially while the COVID-19 vaccine remains unavailable to the public, and the
prospect of tourism. We expect to continue facing strong headwinds. Thus, there is currently no solid foundation
for us to form an optimistic opinion about the Group’s performance for at least an extended period of time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEEAEE

The Board is committed to maintain a solid and transparent framework of corporate governance for the Company
and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code
("Code"”) of the Company. The Board is committed to complying with the Code Provisions as stated in the CG
Code to the extent that the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the
Company.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code, except for
the following deviations:

—  The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the
continuity of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership are crucial in maintaining the stability of the
Group’s business operations.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. To ensure the Board
is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly management
accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant information and may
take independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Management Committee are more particularly discussed below.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 4 Executive Directors, 2 Non-executive Directors and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"”) whose biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profiles”
section on pages 35 to 38 and are posted on the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Directors during
the year under review and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Chi (Co-Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Mr. ZHAO lJianguo (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman) (resigned on 14 August 2020)

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman) (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (resigned on 14 August 2020)
Prof. SIN Yat Ming
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEERRE

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company had 4 Board committees. The table below provides membership BHE_ZE-_ZEFA=Z=1THIFE ARQARENEEEEZEE -

information of these committees on which each Director serves. FIEREESRNE L ELZEGPMEERBAL -
Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee Management Committee
Name of Directors EE & EREEY FMESS REZEY EEEZEY
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess £ £ 5%+ - M C C
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 212 & 5t 4 - - M M
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B = & 5t 4 - = = M
- Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong & & 58 5£ 4 M M M =
LRAEN  Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 24+ C c M -
QE Prof. SIN Yat Ming % B BA##% M M M -
ook
+ wv
SSH . GEE
8.8.§1|K Notes: Iat
= 3(&! C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees C HEHEEZEENERE
(W M  Member of the relevant Board committees M BHESZESHKE

The Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other at 30 RZZEZZFAA=ZTH EFCHATENR X5 RBXHEME

June 2020. ZRABRE -

Independent Non-executive Directors BNIEMITES

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the REEFERN FEZESP=ZMUEIIERTES  MAF RS L
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or BYFHTESRABAEANETEER ST EBANMBEERR
accounting or related financial management expertise. ¥HEz EmRA EERNEAREEFaRAIZENR-

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to AAFIEEHISBIIFPTESNEAFERRS  BREFHFE
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration ERBAEI B 2B - 2R B IEATEERBNALR

Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range AEZZEE FHEZEESRIERZEENE - EEBUFNITES
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of EREFNITERAE HMEAEGBZHAENEEMND  AIAREEIRMH
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Group as a whole. BHANBEZANGE - LEBERAFIRE (TRE]) RAEEHEEN -
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All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is either (i)
1 year from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed or (ii) for a period of 3 years
from the dates of their appointments, unless early termination by either party serving not less than 3 months prior
written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Currently, Mr. Victor HERRERO is the Chairman
and Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund are the Co-Chief Executive Officer. The positions of
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals in order to preserve independence and
a balance of views and judgement.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing.
The Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by the other Executive Director and
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference. For
appointment of a new Director, the background, experience, professional skills, availability to commit to the
affairs of the Company and, in case of INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the
potential appointee will be taken into consideration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEEAEE

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, all newly appointed Directors shall hold office until the next AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined by lot, unless they
otherwise agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman of the Company and the leadership is crucial in maintaining the stability of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company’s circular to be dispatched to Shareholders on or about 12 October 2020 will contain detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expense whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June 2020 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 30 June 2020 is summarised below: BEERNEET_TF AT R IEFEMEXIEI 2550 83
. ) -
G
s
Visiting senior management of Attending seminars/forums/ #ae
other companies/institutions workshops/conferences relevant o=
and company’s facilities Attending internal briefing sessions to the business or directors’ duties i) =
Reading regulatory updates FanHMAR HEN (including delivery of speeches) HEARXKAESREN / g'

Name of Directors H% % MEEERENEHEH BREEERATRE HEABHBMES (SHRERR) WiE WE TS/ A8

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess #2115 #% + 4 = 4 -

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund Z & & %&£ v/ / v/ v/ O

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B S5 5 4 v v v v Fr>a§

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong %} &3 5%t & v - v ol 23S

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 2% + v - v v IRV

Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t H B # % v/ - v - WEH
G

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments BEEZHEERAA R E

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Board met 13 times including for considering and approving the audited HEZZ-ZF A A=THLEFE EFRERTI=ZXR2E B
annual results for the year ended 30 June 2019, unaudited results for the 6 months ended 31 December 2019 EERMEEE T NFNAZTHLEFENEEREFTEE &
and continuing connected transactions. At these board meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the EE-NFT AT BLERNEANREEREERFERER

HER
3y} Jo poday

Group's business updates and strategies. S RZEEEREZ L EFRMRIRTHRAEENEBERKR
R o |

s

3

-

QO

N >

@2

e

]

=

=

=)

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERAR A A 1 9



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PANE "= N2N

u—.% B /A $ﬁ%

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration BEEREE_ZE_EFRA=THLELEENESR TFRZEg -
Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General Meeting for the year ended 30 June 2020 is set out THEEe  REZECeeHEMREBAFRKE 2 HEXREIMT :
below:

Number of meetings attended/held

HER B3R
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting General Meeting
Name of Directors EE# & ESReR ERZESER FHZEEEER REZESER BRRBERS
g_ﬁui Executive Directors #1{TE =
8:‘_filllll( Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess #£ & 18 ZZ - 13/13 N/A 4/4 11 11
%%M Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 212 & % 4 13/13 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
géﬁ Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul & & 3 5t 4 13/13 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
S S - )
v Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITESE
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong £ % 38 /5 £ 13/13 2/2 4/4 11 1/1
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 2322+ 13/13 2/2 4/4 11 1/1
Prof. SIN Yat Ming )t H BB 1% 13/13 2/2 4/4 1/1 1/1
The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, EXZRER BERXZEQER FTMHNEZEESER REZEXRER
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Company’s external auditor attended the 2019 annual general RAAFINEZEBAHEERE T —NFRREBFREBIZREM -

' meeting and were available to answer questions.

Practices and conduct of meetings ERERKRTA

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board EERTHEENBEHESERTAEL THRMEBEFEL -
and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. EFREMEZRRZESGERS  A—RREGENRFBAZDE -

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors EZRNMERMAEE TERUSNEN -—RBRREEZRAESE

at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest EERRTHEL-RALBESHEL  BWEESE TRAQRHE
' developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. HmER L BRR - BAfmENE TEDRE -
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The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board members can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
1 INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such
transaction.

Board Committees

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company had 4 committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The
attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2020,
it comprised 3 INEDs, namely Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung,
who has professional qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and
Internal Audit Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
results for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year to review the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group with an Executive Director, senior management and the Company’s internal and external auditors. It
also discuss matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management, appointment of external
auditors and corporate governance. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year were as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2019 and interim financial results for the 6 months
ended 31 December 2019;

(b) reviewed the progress report and report on internal audit results and internal controls for the year ended
30 June 2019 and 6 months ended 31 December 2019 prepared by Internal Audit Department respectively;

and

(c) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ending 30 June 2021 of Internal Audit
Department.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external auditor on its independence and objectivity
as required by the HKICPA.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. For the year
ended 30 June 2020, the Remuneration Committee consisted of 1 Executive Director and 3 INEDs, namely Ms.
TSIN Man Kuen Bess, Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung is the
Chairman for the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the
terms of reference which included the duties specified in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s
website. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to
provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff. The Company adopted
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings. The major works of the
Remuneration Committee during the year were as follows:

(@) recommended the proposed adjustments to the remuneration of Executive Directors and their proposed
performance bonus; and

(b) recommended the proposed changes to the remuneration packages of INEDs.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 30 June 2020 is set out
below:
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Emolument bands (HK$) Number of persons A%
Below $1,500,000 5
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 3
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1,500,0017C %2,000,0007T
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Nomination Committee comprised 5 members, the majority of which
were INEDs, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman of the committee), Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund,
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. The attendance of individual committee
members is set out hereinabove.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(a)

review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee shall consider candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;

assess the independence of INEDs; and

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future, together with the Board, as appropriate.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to review
the re-appointment of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated to the Management Committee the authority of dealing with the operational matters
of the Group, save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the
written terms of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in relation to the day-to-
day business operations of the Company, administering the Company’s routine resolutions and dealing with
adhoc matters, ensuring adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. The Management Committee
consists of 3 Executive Directors and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operation of the Group.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its written terms of reference
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and the
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the board meeting held in
September 2019.

Company Secretary

Ms. WONG Suk May joined the Group in 2004 and has been the Company Secretary of the Company since 2007.
She is an employee of a subsidiary of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. As
the Company Secretary, Ms. Wong supports the Board by ensuring board procedures and all applicable law, rules
and regulations are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and dismissal of the company
secretary are subject to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the year under
review.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the material risks the Group
is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives. It ensures the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of the following:

—  compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, policies and procedures;

—  reliability and integrity of financial reporting;

effectiveness and efficiency of operations; and

prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities.

The Bossini Group Policy, which was first issued in 2004 and subject to annual review and renewal by the
designated Group Policy Committee, sets forth a set of standards to govern the operations of the Group in
corporate governance, public relationship, legal, finance, procurement and human resources spheres. It facilitates
the ongoing examination and evaluation of the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations and
of the effectiveness of risk management and internal controls. Employees are required to strictly adhere to the
Bossini Group Policy and encouraged to alert senior management of potential cases of misconduct without fear
of retribution.
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The Group has established policy and procedures for handling and disseminating inside information to ensure AEBEEHIEBRREEFRERBEMRAEHEE  UBREBEEEER

such information is disseminated to the public in a fair and timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and @ ED RIRG AT RiEthm A REMm - AEEERIERENIEHE
regulations. Access to inside information is strictly confined to relevant senior management and on “as needed” SRERERRIFEIEERSG - HBEALTRABABEEREEH
basis. Relevant parties are reminded to preserve the confidentiality of the inside information until it is publicly HERMAEZEAL -

disclosed.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems through the EEREBFTERAERE ,\;\ ETZ'KE B E RS E NS EE T R4 2 K

Audit Committee annually. The review covers all material financial, operational and compliance controls. The B ERMEMABEANE @ERAREE BT ITEMREAER
review also covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes and budget RNest - A DB%?&HM&E#&H& EFE2ER - BEIERF  £8 15
o of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. HIRIERTEHE 2 BHAIE
T gu
= e A s N
g%w The Board has delegated to the Risk Management Committee the overall responsibility for leading the EERCEKAREEZ 2 HAERAEEHEER YA B NNEMAE
E'gﬁ management in the establishment of the appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. SE IR N N EPEEIE R AR o
5o
Xl . - .
GEESY Risk Management Committee RRElEZES

The Group formed the Risk Management Committee in 2016, comprising 2 Executive Directors. Senior AEEERZZ-—R"EXEREEZE®  BREATESAK -5

management, heads of risks and external advisors may be invited to attend the meetings as and when FERE BERETENMIMNEERIEERNBEERREEZBZLEESE -

appropriate. The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee include, amongst other things, the EREEZES BERRE (EFEE) T7&HE

following:

-~ determine and review the methodologies employed by management to identify, analyse, evaluate, mitigate, - EEABRANEEESYE o - FE - R - BEERERAEE
monitor and report significant risks that may have a material impact on the financial performance or HYBRRIRAEFERZEZERNABRARKBIAE
condition;

—  assess and review the nature and extent of the material risks the Group is willing to take in achieving its — RN AERERNH SR EESEEEANERRR TS
strategic objectives; NIZE

—  determine and review the Group's risk profiles; and - ETkBFAEEMRRMKR K

- review the effectiveness of the Group's risk management functions. — RAAEBEREMREIEBAE W o
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Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department is an independent and objective function that reports directly to the Audit
Committee twice each year and the Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Charter was approved by the Audit Committee and adopted by the Board. Internal
Audit staff is authorised for audit purposes with unrestricted access to review any information relating to the
Group and to make enquiries to staff concerned.

Internal Audit Activities

The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based approach to develop the annual audit plan, which is reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department independently evaluates the Group’s
internal control systems and risk management process on an ongoing basis, which covers the major operations of
the Group. The key tasks include:

reviewing material aspects of the Group’s key activities and corresponding risk management and internal
controls with unrestricted access;

—  conducting regular audits on the work practices, procedures, risk management and internal controls
established by the business units of the Group to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems established;

—  conducting special reviews and investigations into areas of concern identified by management; and

—  conducting post-audit reviews to monitor the corrective and/or remedial actions taken against significant
control failings or weaknesses by relevant business units.

For each audit engagement, Internal Audit Department furnishes objective evaluations and recommendations in
the form of an audit report to management. The Head of Internal Audit directly reports to the Audit Committee
on major audit findings, recommendations for improvement and management responses.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Effectiveness

Based on the reports from the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee, the Board has conducted
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls, and it has considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to be effective and adequate. There were no suspected material irregularities found or
significant areas of concern identified during the year that might affect shareholders.

The Audit Committee has assisted the Board to review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and that all staff are of sufficient competence to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has adopted a policy with regard to the
declaration of dividends. Such policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The dividend policy also allows the Company to declare and pay special dividends and/or other distribution in
addition to the interim and final dividends. The declaration and payment of dividends are determined at the sole
discretion of the Board, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where appropriate. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and Bye-Laws. The Board shall
review from time to time the dividend policy and shall amend as necessary.

Dividends paid to shareholders may be in cash, or scrip dividend, or distribution in specie, or a combination of
the aforesaid. In proposing any dividend payout and/or determining the form, frequency and/or the amount
of such dividend payout, the Board shall take into account, inter alia: the operating fund required to provide
sufficient cash to meet the Group’s day-to-day financial obligations in a timely manner; the expected capital
expenditure, future expansion, other investment plan and other funding requirements; actual and expected
financial performance, financial conditions and cash flow; retained profits and distributable reserves, and other
factors that the Directors deem appropriate etc.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors ERHTEFKXHNZREST A
The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the director’s securities transactions in terms ERMEERBRRBEFTLETISFRINR T EEEREEL
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the MBS +E ETARESTETELSR HHZES A ([1ZE5F

“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors A% - BERSEESMENEERNA 2ESEREIANFRN—H
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are BTFRETAMENEBEBERE - AEET: il{%ﬁ]é—\In A1 FA FRHE &2

not encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and EFEBERHA-—THRAERANTAREEARAR AR ERIAR
the annual results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of inside information to deal in the BEHBBEHEEARARES -

securities of the Company.

Directors’ interest at 30 June 2020 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated RIE_TEFRNA=ZTH EFRNAQas HiEE LB (EEESK N Q

corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") are set out on HIEIR0I ([BH R EEEG ) EXVIEATR ¥ 2 8 %E) 2 R M AR :'-8‘

pages 44 to 45. D2 R TEHNEI4ZE458 *3 o

WS o

=m

Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration Bt 75 B o Ko 9N BE A2 25 B BN & :ﬁgé
1%]

The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view ESARMMEVBHB T ERFBELCEREREUITAEEQATHR
of the financial position and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis MAEEZ BB BBRRARRESRENEL - NEE ZIMNERZ
with the support from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditor with respect BRI EREAERRYBERENEEZBAEHINAFRECLIETO

to the financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 70. BHB L AZBAIRER -

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the Group BE_Z-_ZTFAA=THIFER AEEREERTITEMMNT

amounted to HK$2.87 million, of which a sum of HK$2.40 million was paid to the Group's principal external E‘\]’f?%(ﬁﬁi@ﬂﬁﬁ&/%%lWﬁ%ﬁ BB A0EB TR XN TARE

auditor, Ernst & Young (“EY"). The remuneration for EY in respect of audit services and non-audit services B EZINEZEE T KT EFIT ([ZoK]) o B KATIREAE

amounted to approximately HK$2.40 million and HK$1.00 million respectively. ZRIERIEBEZRE ZEEME DRI KB 2.408 &L KE1.008
BT
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2020. The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in, among other things, the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Company Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal place of

business of the Company as set out in the “Company Information” section of this annual report for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give Shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under Bye-Law 102(A) of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the
annual general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in Bye-Law 103 of
the Bye-Laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s
website at www.bossini.com.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
for all other general meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors. Where bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-Laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to Shareholders
prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll. After each
general meeting, the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information
is also available to Shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board
also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
Shareholder’s meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.
Shareholders could also send email directly at IR@bossini.com for any enquiries.

Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Chi, aged 53, was appointed as the Co-Chief Executive Officer in July 2020, is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China"”) (Stock code: 8032). Mr. Cheung
is also a director of Dragon Leap Developments Limited (“Dragon Leap”), being the substantial shareholder of
the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). He has over 25 years' experience
in financial management, corporate finance and administrative management. Mr. Cheung also possesses
extensive experience in apparel business. He was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3322), an integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
international sports and fashion brands, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He was the executive vice president and chief financial officer of
Aspire Holdings Limited, which is a member of China Mobile Limited. Mr. Cheung was also the chief financial
officer of eBIS Company Ltd. and NIT Education Group, the financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd.
and a senior consultant of Arthur Andersen (Shanghai) Business Consulting Co. Ltd.

Mr. Cheung holds a Degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
and a Degree of Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Mr. ZHAO Jianguo, aged 56, was appointed in July 2020. He has extensive experience in business operation and
marketing and distribution of consumer products in mainland China and is the head of the consumables business
of Viva China (Stock code: 8032). He is the founder and a director of 1t FIEE% & B AR A 7l (Beijing Henggu
Investment Management Co., Ltd.) which is principally engaged in investment and asset management since May
2008. Mr. Zhao was also a director of It REERE RS ELER A A (Beijing Eagles Fund Management Co.,
Ltd) from November 2015 to January 2019. This fund management company focuses on diversified technology
investment, including mobile internet and technology, media, and telecom sectors. Mr. Zhao is the brother-in-law
of Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Ning, both being substantial shareholders of the Company (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance).

Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University of Sport in 1987 with professional physical qualification. In 1985, he
won the National Gymnastics Championship in mainland China.
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Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, aged 56, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in October
2010. Mr. Mak graduated from the University of Windsor, Canada with two Bachelor’s Degrees in Computer
Science and Commerce. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Mak joined the Group in February 2007
as the Director of Finance. He has over 30 years' experience in auditing, financial management and corporate
finance in audit firm, consumer electronics and communications products, real estate service, food retail chain
and internet service industries. He is re-designated as Co-Chief Executive Officer in July 2020.

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, aged 49, was appointed as the Executive Director and the Director of Finance of
the Group in August 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada and the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 26 years’ experience in auditing and financial management with audit firm and
various listed companies in Hong Kong.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor HERRERO, aged 51, was appointed in July 2020. He has extensive experience in corporate
management and business operations in the consumables industry. From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Herrero served as
the chief executive officer and director of Guess Inc. (listed on the New York Stock Exchange), which is principally
engaged in designing, marketing, distributing and licensing a lifestyle collection of contemporary apparel, denim,
handbags, watches, footwear and other related consumer products around the world. Prior to joining Guess Inc.,

' Mr. Herrero served as the head of Asia Pacific and managing director of Greater China of Industria de Disefio

Textil, S.A. (Inditex Group), an international fashion retailer with brands including Zara, Massimo Dutti, Pull &
Bear, Bershka and Stradivarius.
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Mr. Herrero is a board member of Global Fashion Group S.A., (e-commerce fashion site operator and owner of
Zalora and The Iconic, the shares of which are listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange), G-lll Apparel Group, Ltd (US
manufacturer and distributor operating through a portfolio of brands, the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ),
Gruppo Coppel (Mexican consumer finance and retail conglomerate) and Clarks (British based international shoe
manufacturer and retailer). Mr. Herrero is also serving as a senior advisor to Viva China (Stock code: 8032).

Mr. Herrero graduated with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Kellogg School of Management at
Northwestern University in 2003. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from ESCP Europe
in Paris, France in 1992 and a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from the University of Zaragoza in Spain in 1993. He was
also awarded “Best CEO in the Sustainable Apparel Industry” in 2018 by the European CEO Magazine.

Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco, age 41, was appointed in July 2020. He is currently the deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of Laws Fashion Group Limited (the “LAWSGROUP”), one of the global industry leader
in garment manufacturing and fashion retailers. LAWSGROUP is also engaged in property development and
investment in Hong Kong. Mr. Law is responsible for overseeing the LAWSGROUP’s manufacturing operations,
fashion retailing, property development and series of industrial building revitalization projects including D2 Place
One and Two in Lai Chi Kok, Connaught Marina in Sheung Wan, East 350 in Kwun Tong and other property sites.

Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto, Canada with major in Architecture and minor in Fine Art History
and obtained Honours Bachelor of Arts in 2002. He is now the chairman of Hong Kong Woollen & Synthetic
Knitting Manufacturers’ Association Limited from 2019 to 2020 and has been the vice chairman of Textile Council
of Hong Kong Limited since 2020.

Mr. Law is a director and sole shareholder of Keystar Limited, a 20% shareholder of Dragon Leap, being the
substantial shareholder of the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). He is also
a director of Dragon Leap Developments Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, aged 62, was appointed in July 2020, is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Master of Science degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of Want Want China Holdings Limited (Stock code: 151) and Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Stock code: 980), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2007 to
March 2020, he was the chief financial officer of Stella International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1836), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee has more than 30 years’ financial
management experience and extensive experience in corporate finance such as mergers and acquisitions. He
assumed the position of chief financial officer in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants.

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, aged 64, was appointed in September 2017, is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheong is
currently an executive director of Purapharm Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1498). He was the general manager and an executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited (stock
code: 511) from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2019. Mr. Cheong has extensive experience in the advertising
and marketing industry and contributes actively to the professional development of marketing and management
in Hong Kong through leading industry bodies. He is the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Management
Association.

“ Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 65, was appointed in October 2005, is also a member of the Audit Committee, the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin holds a Doctor of Philosophy
in Business Administration from the University of British Columbia, Canada, a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Bachelor of Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (“CUHK"). Prof. Sin had been a member of the Faculty of Business Administration of CUHK for over
35 years. He had also been a professor of Department of Marketing of CUHK and an associate director of CUHK's
Center for Hospitality and Real Estate Research until July 2016 on his retirement. He is now the Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business and Adjunct Professor, CUHK Business School. He is serving as the
advisor for the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is an independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1446) listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2020.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020, including the discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, material events that have occurred and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business is provided in the Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders, the
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report on pages 3 to 4, pages 5 to 13 and
pages 14 to 34 of this annual report respectively. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 30
June 2020 by key financial indicators is set out under the section headed “Financial and operational highlights”
on the inside front cover. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Group’s environmental protection, compliance with laws and regulations and relationships with key
stakeholders are discussed below:

Environmental protection

The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability. We strive to encourage higher environmental
protection awareness at our headquarters, retail stores and warehouses by saving electricity and encouraging
recycling of materials. Energy saving lighting systems have been installed in our stores and headquarters to
conserve energy. We shall review our environmental practices from time to time and consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices in the business operation of the Group to
embrace the principle of reduce, recycle and reuse. Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company to
be published on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Relationships with key stakeholders

(a)

(b)

(c)

()

Employees

The Group believes that employees are essential to the success of its business. The Group is passionately
committed to developing and training the staff and provides the employees with rewarding career paths and
people-friendly working environments. The Group has continued to offer regular and substantial training
programmes, such as the “The 7 Habits of Highly Effective People®” courses. These programmes not only
crystallise the “bossini way” and exemplify the Group’s investment in the talent, but also motivate the
Group's employees as well.

Customers

We strive to achieve corporate sustainability in providing quality products and services to our customers. To
ensure continuous improvement of the quality of products and services, the Group regularly conducts internal
and external market surveys to gain market insights and feedback.

Suppliers

We understand the importance to work closely with our suppliers to ensure the sustainability of our business.
The Group has established long standing relationships with a number of suppliers and to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group has established an internal anti-bribery policy of which our
suppliers are also aware.

Shareholders and investors

We believe that effective communication and accurate and timely information disclosure facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are beneficial to investor relations and future corporate development.
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Results and dividends XBERKRE

The Group's loss for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the Group's financial position at 30 June 2020 are set out ARERHE T -_TFAA=THLEFEZEERAEER-_Z =%
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 203. FRAZTHZHBRABIRETIE203B 2 A M HEHRERA -
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020. EETEBRREHE_T_EFAA=THLEFEZRPRE -
Summary of financial information HHRERBE

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2016, AEBBEZ-ZT—RF —2—+tF - ZT-)\F - NFE=
2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out TE_TEFERNAZTHILERARAEFEZEAHEE BEELBEBEREH
on page 62. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements. RE2E - W EMEEAE I RKEEXR G BHRE - WBEL T

BREEZGRAMBHRE 2 — 80

Share capital and share options IR 2 & B8 AR A

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital during the year. RRBETERARAF E I EATIEEE -

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in notes RARRBBITRARERENAFEE 2 EBF BRI RERE

31 and 32, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements. WARMIFE3TR32 P
s
R 2
Pre-emptive rights B e
=
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which AABZ AT ZERMAKEEEF:MMEELEREKRS  HEAR ﬁg
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders. TN ERMBEAERRIZESREL IR EHK - nhllg
o

Distributable reserves aJ {5 R 2% 4

At 30 June 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions RZZEZZTFRA=ZTH  ARAARBEREE NN —FRREKRX
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$160,323,000. Under the laws of Bermuda, the M 2 AR S BB 1160,323,0007T © IRIEE FREEH - AAA
Company'’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$29,020,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid % 17 % (B AR 7 & 275 #529,020,0007T 2 & 88 Al LASIL B I 2 AL IR FEE =X
bonus shares. 3 o
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Major customers and suppliers FTEEFRHER

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s largest customer and 5 largest customers accounted for 5% and REBEFR  HETAKESRAREAARP ZHES IMEAFEE
13% of the total sales for the year, respectively. HEEE5% % 13% ©

Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and 5 largest suppliers accounted for 10% and 40% of the total AAEBRSEANE L AEENBEE B AEEAREETEI0%
purchases for the year, respectively. }40% -

Save as disclosed in note 37(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements, none of the directors of the Company BRGAE B RERM E37@))VFTIFTBEEI  MEARAESHFEZTZ

or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% BEATSHEMBESHAANER BB % AR ETRAZRE
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers. EREBE R AHERTHEEEAERER -
Directors E=s
| The directors of the Company during the year were: RNEE KRR ZEEWMT -
Executive directors: BITES:
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (resigned on 14 August 2020) BEBELT(R-E-_Z4E )\ A+HHEBEE)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund BEERE
élﬂlﬂ Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul G &
()
S
§21 B Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
“=.8 " Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong BERLL
gm‘ Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (resigned on 14 August 2020) 2ERLT(R_Z-_TEN\A+EAET)
é’m Prof. SIN Yat Ming A=RZES €5
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Directors (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 24 July 2020, the following directors were appointed:

Executive directors:
Mr. CHEUNG Chi
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Victor HERRERO
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco

Independent non-executive director:
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund will not offer himself
for re-election, but will remain as co-chief executive officer of the Company and that Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. ZHAO lJianguo, Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco and Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, who were appointed
on 24 July 2020, will hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Mr. CHEONG Shin
Keong, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming, and considers them to be independent.

Directors’ biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 35 to 38 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ remuneration EEMS

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive AREEREEZNG BB ESRIANTESTHEEZER/H EFENEE
directors on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competences. HMEI °

The emoluments payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the ARREENeEhEEREFWNEZEe v EaEE 2B B
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and ENKRBURAREB EEMET -
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares EERROREBRGO 2R

At 30 June 2020, the interests of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its RIZE-_ZFEXA=1H BFERAQAIkEEBEEIE(AEEAEK
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as HIEEH ([BEREBEEM]) EXVERE T2 ME) 2 KA LA
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise R EEARNGBRELSNHEENEINEFE 2 S LMLk
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by 2D SBE T AR ESETESIFHEESTE ([1ZESFE])

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows: AN ARA LRIz EZAT
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company KA D] ZFIRZ 4B
5 Number of shares
< # .
L held, capacity and
Egﬁ nature of interest
S KREE 36K
e M pE
o /
& Directly Percentage of
beneficially the Company’s
Note owned Total issued shares
Ll NN
Name of director B 7 BEEERZER &5 BRTRAEI EEHE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (a) 1,093,091,098 1,093,091,098 66.60 BEEeBTL
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued) EERRORMEERG 2= (&)
Long positions in share options of the Company RALNEIfEREZ 4B

Number of share options

directly beneficially owned

Name of directors EREBEBECEREHE BEEHR

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 8,750,000 BERZT

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 23,178,000 BEELE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 7,760,000 PR E &R &
39,688,000

Note: B E -

(a) Such interests arose by attribution through her spouse, Mr. LAW Ka Sing, whose interests are mentioned in the (a) BBREXDNERHMEBAERELARS  HESFN TITXEEZRERR

section headed “Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares” below. DRBERD 2w ] —& -
Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position BEXHHEEEN RZE_ZTFA=Z+H EEHERLKARK =
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was HEEMAEB LB ZKD - HERMSEET  BEAEREFLFRHE m§_
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the BB FE3I52ET AR HEZ AR » KIBBELETR| BN 2 KA T g%
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. R Rz R AKE - #aD
"
Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures EEZRBEROIESZEF LE

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section B EXTEERRORBERD 2R — R T [ERRERS ] —

“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the BT BEEIN  ARRARAEERNEMAERABERTERNESRES

acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor 282 REBERKEFLEWEE RN T 2 IEH k&S mEUE Fz 2 &

children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any o MEEINETEFMZEERN  AARSKEFMHBARRERN

arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate. BMEZEIT VIR ZE  BFEESA MM EMAEABRES H S#
A e
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EERWES

Share option scheme BB IR T &

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and RANTR T ERETE ([Zt2 ) S SB RERH REREEEY
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the BRI AEKBBESL - LA 82BN GRAVIERRMFEIHEE -

Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TEBBEENRLT) MARITEERE S SF) -
Number of share options Exercise
BREHA .
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-N% S 33 RiBRERS BRETRE
SEATHERER tA-H ERRH ERfR FRRW RA=1H GET) BRETER (M &Eb)
HK$
per share
SRE%T
2
=' |\ Directors E%
%Hﬂ Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 800,000 - - - 800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
:gg BEELT “E-F5+A+A “F-—Ft+At-BE-F-TFTAT-E
S
E_m 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
& “E-FFTATCA CE-CETATZAECRCIFETAT R
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“E-ZEFTATCH ZE-RETATZAZEZZ-ZE+A+ A
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
“E-=%+-AZH (P &Ed(i))
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
“Z-RETANA “E-AFTANAE-T-AF+HAZE
8,750,000 - - - 8,750,000
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EERBEE
Share option scheme (continued) iR AETHEl (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) TERBEFRNAAB M ARITEERE 2SS : (8)
Number of share options Exercise
BRERA .
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
R-Z-h%F R-B=-2F REBRELDS BRETEE
SHEATHERER tA-H FREW FRTE FRER ~A=tH (fiEa) BRETES i)
HK$
per share
FREET
Directors %
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 678,000 - - - 678,000 5 July 2010 (note (i) 0.503
KEERE “T-F4+AHH (FitsEc(i)
o)
2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780 m—'é
“Z-ZF+A+=H —E——&+A+-HE-_F-_FE+A+—H 2
n
4,200,000 - - - 4,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780 ;ﬁ&
—E-ZE+A+CH —E-=4+AT-BE-E-FE+A+—H mg
o
7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“Z-TF+A+=H —E-AE+A+ZBE=F=2F+AT+—AH
3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
“E-=£+-AZH D 0))
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
“E-RFE+ARA “EZ-ASt+ANBE-Z-_AEtA=H
23,178,000 - - - 23,178,000
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Share option scheme (continued) B RESHEl (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) TERBEFRNARNT M ARITEERE 2SS : (8)
Number of share options Exercise
BREZA _
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
R=E-NF RZZ=-ZF RUBREAS BRETEE
SRATHERER tA-8 FREL FRTR ERRK RA=TH UET) BRETES (B 5Eb)
HK$
per share
gREKT
Directors £
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 210,000 - - - 210,000 5 July 2010 (note c(i)) 0.503
BeERLE “Z-TF+AAA (Pt aEc(i)
2
gm 560,000 - - - 560,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
__%ﬂ{[ “T-TFTATZA —Z——45tA+-RAE-Z-24+A+-H
o
%’I]IE 840,000 - - - 840,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
Sy “2-2EtAtZA  CE-SEATIAESRRELAL-R
- :
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
—Z-ZFE+A+CH ZE-RETATZAEZE-ZE+ AT A
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
“E-=f+-AZH (B (i)
3,000,000 = - - 3,000,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
ZE-A5+tHANA “Z-NF+AMAE-ZE- A=A
7,760,000 - - - 7,760,000
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EERWES
Share option scheme (continued) BRESE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) TRBBEBFARDR MAITEERE &S (8)
Number of share options Exercise
BREZE .
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZZ-NF RZZ-ZF REBREAS BRETHEE
SEATHEHER tA-8H FREL FRTR ErRK AA=TH (Kt &Fa) BRETES (B b)
HK$
per share
FRAEET

Other employees E#ES
In aggregate 240,000 - - (240,000) - 4 February 2010 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 0.456

it —Z-T4¥_AMNA —E-—4¥_ANARE_T-ZF_A=H
o)
(360,000) 4 February 2010 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 m—"g"
“Z-ZF-AWA “E-_F-_ANHZE-Z-ZT4_A=H 'mg
a3
a
(600,000) 4 February 2010 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 ;959_.
—F-35-ARA —F-=£-AMAZ-E-T£-A=A o 3
I
1,766,000 - - (472,000) 1,294,000 5 July 2010 (note cfi)) 0.503
“E-ZE£+AAA (P &)
432,000 - - - 432,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“Z-Z£+ATZH ZE——f+A+ZHZE-Z-TF+A+—A
648,000 - - - 648,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“Z-ZF+TATZH “E-—F+A+-HE-Z-_ZFF+A+-H
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EERWES
Share option scheme (continued) BRESE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) THEBEFEFANARNABERITEEREZES : (8)
Number of share options Exercise
BREHE _
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZZ-NF RZZ=-ZF RUBEREAS BRETEE
SEATHERER tA-H FREL ERTE ErRK NAZTH BT BRETES (B D)
HK$
per share
gREKT
Other employees E#1ES
In-aggregate 1,080,000 - - - 1,080,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
A -2+ ATCR ST ATZBEZZZZETAT A
<)
gm 82,000 - - - 82,000 3 January 2011 (note c(ii) 0.922
._%:Hﬂ “F-—f-A=H (B ki)
o
o I 54,000 - - ) 54,000 4 July 2011 (note clii) 0.880
Sy —F——FtAMA GRS
ey
36,000 = = (36,000) - 3 July 2012 (note c(iv)) 0.490
—T--#+H-H (B = c(iv))
240,000 - - (240,000) - 2 January 2013 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 0.425
—E-=f-AZH ZE-NE-AZAZEZFZ=5-f-H
360,000 - - (360,000) - 2 January 2013 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 0.425
—E-=%-AZH “E-h4¥—-HA-HE-E-ZF#—-f—A
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EERKREE
Share option scheme (continued) iR AETHEl (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) TERBEFARDTMARITERRE 2 ES : (8)
Number of share options Exercise
BREHA .
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-1F R-ZB-FF BRitBRERH BRETRE
SRATHELER tA-H Rt ERTE FRENR RAZtH GET) BT CiEd))
HK$
per share
FRAEBT
Other employees E#ES
In aggregate 600,000 - - (600,000) - 2 January 2013 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 0.425
it —Z-=%-AZH —E-R"¥-AZRE-T-=%-A-H
=
17,112,000 - - (7,488,000) 9,624,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570 m—‘g”
“E-=f+ZAZH (B (i) L
a =
. =3
248,000 - - (124,000) 124,000 2 January 2014 (note d(ii) 0.570 ﬁg_.
- S-mE—f— TS =
“E-mE-AZH (Bt (i) w3
398,000 - - - 398,000 2 July 2015 (note dfiii)) 0.740
“E-IFtAZH (P diii))
28,000 - - (28,000) - 4 January 2016 (note d(iv)) 0.590
—Z-R¥-AWmA (B Ed(iv))
35,600,000 - - (15,740,000) 19,860,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
ZZ-R¥TAEA “Z-NF+ANRE-Z-~E+A=H
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Share option scheme (continued) B RESHEl (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) TERBEFARQDTHARITERRE ZES : (8)
Number of share options Exercise
BREZE _
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZZ-NF R-B-FF BRitBRERS BRETRE
SEATHERER tA-H Rt ERTE FREY RAZtA BT BRETES (B D)
HK$
per share
gREKT
Other employees E#1ES
In-aggregate 620,000 - - - 620,000 1 June 2017 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 0.460
B “E—tEXA-B ZE-NE+-AZTNABEZT-_+FRA=1-H
.
gm 816,000 - - - 816,000 3 October 2017 4 October 2019 to 2 October 2027 0.455
__%ﬂ-[[ “E-t&+A=H “T-AE+AMBEE-Z-LE+ACH
o
%’I]IE 780,000 - - (780,000) - 1 December 2017 22 May 2020 to 30 November 2027 0.425
Sy 3 tEf-A-B -S-BEEA-t-BE-S-LE-A={E
g
620,000 - - - 620,000 3 July 2018 26 December 2020 to 2 July 2028 0352
—F-/\FtA=H CECEEtCACHAREZEI\FLAZH
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 2 January 2019 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029 0275
—E-N¥-AZH ZEZ-FXATNREZEZNE-A—H
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 2 January 2019 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029 0275
“E-NE-AZH “E--FtANRE-ZE-AF-A-A
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EZRWES
Share option scheme (continued) iR AETHEl (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: (continued) TREBFARQAMARITEERE 2 ES) : (&)
Number of share options Exercise
BREHA .
price of
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of grant of share
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period options
of participants 2019 the year the year the year 2020 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-1F R-B-2fF BREBRERS BRETEE
SRATHELER tA-8 FARM FRTE FRRK ~RAZTH GET) BIRETEH (M3Eb)
HK$
per share
BRAEET
Other employees E#1ES
In aggregate 1,240,000 - - (620,000) 620,000 1 March 2019 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2029 0.285
af “E-NE=ZA-H CECCEZA-RE-Z-AE-A-TNH
=
- 780,000 - (780,000) = 2 July 2019 5 November 2021 to 1 July 2029 0.231 m—‘g”
“E-NELAZH ZEZ-5+-RRAZE-ZF-NEtA-H L
a =
=
- 880,000 - - 880,000 2 July 2019 10 December 2021 to 1 July 2029 0.231 #g_
~2-AFEAZA SR FtoAAESFoASLA-R ot}
o
68,960,000 1,660,000 - (28,468,000) 42,152,000 &
108,648,000 1,660,000 - (28,468,000) 81,840,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERBREE

Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a)

(b)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and
the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:
(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of

the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021.

(iii) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021.

(iv) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022.
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EERBREE

Share option scheme (continued) BRESE (&)

Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued) FRMAITEBREYRME - (&)

(d) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and (d) ERENGEBIARNEABANREERAEBRHE T —NF

the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2016. A=THI=FHBON=FEBE B Z 2 IEHRE -

The exercise periods of share options are as follows: BARETERNT

(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023. (i) BT ARFE+— A BRE-_ZT_=F+-_A—H-
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024. (ii) H-E—RNEt+— A HEE-_ET_M&E—HF—H -
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025. (iii) H-_ZE—"Ft+—HF—BRBE_FT_FAFtA—H-
(iv) From 1 November 2016 to 3 January 2026. (iv) H-_ZE—R"Ft+— A BRBE_T_~"F—HF=H-

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 July 2020, 2,182,000 share options granted to certain REEHERE RZE_EF+LHtARE R ZEFLtAREEKTF
employees on 5 July 2010, were forfeited with an exercise price of HK$0.503 per share, and an exercise period ET1EE 22,182,0001p B AR EE 2 U - 7B AFRAB#0.5037T -

from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the Group TEHETERERHE T =FE A =THIFEZ&ERES Iﬂltéu
for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. XEAMEEENEEBRROTE 22T _FTFLANA - ‘Illﬂlé'

a =
On 8 July 2020, 442,000 and 780,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 December 2013 and 4 R-ZZEZEFELANB PR E—=F+_FA-BR-ZT— X5 ﬁi
October 2016, respectively, were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.570 per share and HK$0.495 per share, +AMNBET—%1EES 2442,00017 B X7 £ 780,00017 BE AX # B 18 mﬁ'
respectively, and exercise periods from 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023 and from 4 October 2019 to 3 W TEED R AR AER0.5707T & & IR A H0.4957T ¢ 1T{E HIH Rl llﬂllg

October 2026, respectively. BT AR"Ft+— A HEEZE_ZE_=ZF+_F—HBILEHA-_ZT—N
FTHANBREZZT = "F+A=HI-
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EERBREE

Share option scheme (continued)

On 10 July 2020, 2,500,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 January 2019 were forfeited with an
exercise price of HK$0.275 per share and an exercise period from 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029.

On 12 July 2020, 756,000 and 1,100,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 December 2013 and 4
October 2016, respectively, were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.570 per share and HK$0.495 per share,
respectively, and exercise periods from 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023 and from 4 October 2019 to 3
October 2026, respectively.

On 12 August 2020, 2,500,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 January 2019 were exercised with
an exercise price of HK$0.275 per share and an exercise period from 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029. The price
of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise was HK$0.385 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of exercise of the options.
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R-_ZE-_ZF+A+H R-_ZE—hF—A-_BRFLEEBZ
2,500,000 BE AR B 408 W - 1T EE R B R B 0.27570 - 1T B
—E-—F+tANBRBE_ZT-_NF—A—HI -

RZFBZFFELA+ZA SRR ZFT—=FF+ZAZBRZF—X
F+AMBET—%{EEB Z756,0001 #I& 4 12 1,100,0001 fE R 1 B
BORW - TEE S B AT RAERE0.5707 R EREN0.4957T « 1TE A
AR E—AF+—A—ARE_Z-_=F+-_A—ALKkH=F
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Share option scheme (continued)
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted on 2

July 2019 was HK$0.230 per share.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the year, calculated using the
trinomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERBREE

BRESE (&)
ARARBRMNBEEEREE S —NFLA-_BRHB Pz KT E
B AE®0.230T °

EERACEAAREEERXGAFANEREBRENK L BHZE
H :

Number of share Theoretical
options granted value of
during the year share options
FRERH BB 2
BRERE HEREE
HK$'000
Grantee BT T S UN
Other employee 1,660,000 89 HibfEE

The trinomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

ZEARADEERRABREGES  AFEBRETEE TR
Bz SRGR RGN R EBREEERMRAZERNRER
gERBMNE BREBSFH BRERPHRBHKSE - BERE 2 A
FHOREBETFZELBIEETE - ROERMA LI 2 BAE
TERRK - BHRSIRBEELRBEMRERRBE - #ORVERT
ERMRR - AEMEAZFTERDRABRERLAH -

N=BABAHBEZCBREEECEBENIFIRETHER  EF &
EREARKERAMENZRRRMS R ETBHB RIS ERE
AR EEANAERS -

BRERERRMETIEBRZ TASKTED - A HERZ EF
SR YW L DT EEEREALE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERBREE

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, the
holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during

| the year.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

| The Bye-laws provide that each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out

of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the

Directors.
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EERBREE

FERRRKRG KR EERD 2 Es

Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2020, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options of the RZEBE-ZFFNA=Z1+TH ARAERBRELFRPEEHEICETE
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 ZHESELMETR  TIATRARRBEEITRAKERIEFTEES%
of the SFO: A RS
Long positions 1FE
Number of Number of Percentage of
ordinary share options the Company’s
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held held issued shares
HAEARAT BT
" SO REEME s EREE FriFEREHE BRHEBEDHE
Mr. LAW Ka Sing Directly beneficially owned
BRERE EREERHA 1,093,091,098 - 66.60
Family interest
KRk = - 8,750,000 0.53
%
s
Total ‘Wﬂlg
@ 1,093,091,098 8,750,000 67.13 | =
T
ofF 5
Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose interests B EXPREE RE EXTEFTRD KRR 2t | —fIAEiAR U
are also set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an NABEE RN RZZE_ZTFEXA=1TH HEALTRARRZ -
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded Rk BRI A BEEREALELHEENEI6ETALREZ
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. BERGYURA
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EERBREE

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the transactions are included in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase of garments

On 15 May 2018, the Group renewed the Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Laws
International Group Limited (“Laws International”), for purchase of garments for the period from 1 July 2018 to
30 June 2021. Laws International is wholly owned by a trustee of a discretionary trust set up by a relative of Mr.
LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law"”) of which such relative and his family members are eligible discretionary objects of the
trust. Mr. Law is a substantial shareholder of the Company and the spouse of Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director
of the Company. According to the Purchase Agreement, the annual values of the purchases of garments from
Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2020 and the
year ending 30 June 2021 will not exceed HK$28,000,000 for each of the said financial years. The prices of the

products are to be determined by reference to the prevailing market prices.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions (continued)
Purchase of garments (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
in relation to the purchase of garments set out above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant Purchase Agreement and on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company have further confirmed that the values of purchases of garments from Laws
International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 did not exceed HK$28,000,000.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the
Company’s auditor.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Victor HERRERO
Chairman

Hong Kong
16 September 2020
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IEMBERE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below.

%;ﬁ?%$§%%i§:;—/—\¢ ZEEF CEN\F CEF-NFR-FIFEANACSTALAAFEZRE BENBERE  NHZACTREELSAMBHRREE L

Results #¥4&

Year ended 30 June
BEANA=1THLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E_EHF —E-NF —ZE-)N\F —E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(e=7) (&=5)) (&&=7) (&=7)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS @K &%
REVENUE Uk 2% 1,091,631 1,488,072 1,782,531 1,853,128 2,137,474
| PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EX K ER,~ (FB8) (319,131) (103,351) (9,504) 25,894 327,260
Finance costs g & Ak A (16,182) (212) (40) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BELEER 2 BRBAER (BA) (335,313) (103,563) (9,544) 25,894 327,260
Income tax expense P8 %t f (12,183) (4,371) (7,752) (5,988) (13,764)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BESEEB 2FERERN,(FE) (347,496) (107,934) (17,296) 19,906 313,496
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM A DISCONTINUED OPERATION
EREERZFERNEIE (20,239) (31,171) (11,676) (15,020) (21,375)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
AATHEEAEBEERER(BA) (367,735) (139,105) (28,972) 4,886 292,121
Assets and Liabilities EER & &
s At 30 June
= HAXA=+H
S 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2 —E-EHF —E—NF —E-N\F —E—LF —E—RF
= HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K BET T BT T BET T BET T BT T
§ TOTAL ASSETS B E# & 774,077 938,139 1,129,175 1,232,745 1,323,912
= TOTAL LIABILITIES & E# & (492,617) (238,164) (253,350) (277,377) (332,174)
281,460 699,975 875,825 955,368 991,738
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB IR &

e

Ernst & Young LK FHEIEER Tel B35: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower ERPRAIEEISR Fax {HH: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue PIERE221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY:x

To the shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 203, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.

Key audit matter
Inventory provision

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had inventories of
HK$209,679,000, which represented 27% of the Group’s
total assets. The Group is principally engaged in retailing,
distribution and wholesaling of garments. The apparel
industry is highly correlated to seasonal factors, economic
environments, customers’ preferences and competitor
actions which affect the amount of inventory provision to
be provided. The Group has an inventory provision policy
and such provision is made for obsolete, damaged, slow-
moving, excess and other inventory items whose costs
may not be fully recoverable. Such inventory provision
is estimated by management through the application of
subjective judgement and assumptions with reference
to data such as historical sales pattern and expected
subsequent sales based on internal budget and certain
market factors.

The accounting judgements and estimates and disclosures
of the amount of inventory provision are included in notes
3 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures over identifying and valuing
obsolete, damaged, slow-moving, excess and
other inventory items whose costs may not be
fully recoverable included the performance of
physical counts on inventories and the review of
the inventories ageing report. We also evaluated
the Group’s inventory policy and the inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating
the impairment by (i) comparing management’s
calculations for consistency against those used in
the prior year; (ii) assessing the percentage used for
provision based on the historical consumption of
inventories; and (iii) assessing the net realisable value
with reference to sales records throughout the year as
well as subsequent sales after the year end.
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Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
impairment assessment

At 30 June 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of HK$25,520,000 and right-of-use assets
of HK$164,732,000 which represented approximately
3% and 21% of the Group's total assets, respectively.
Impairment assessment was conducted for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of each
individual cash-generating unit which generates
independent cash flows. The Group determines
impairment provision based on the cashflow forecast
of each cash-generating unit. The evaluation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on a number
of estimates, which include, among others, estimated
future store performance, economic environment, sales
growth rate, discount rate applied and the length of
time the impact of COVID-19 may continue and the
timing of recovery.

The accounting judgements and estimates and the
disclosures about impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are included in notes
3, 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 %%

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets included,
among others, evaluation of the bases and key
assumptions adopted in estimating the value in
use of the cash-generating units. We assessed the
assumptions about growth rate, discount rate,
overall market and economic conditions including
the length of time the impact of COVID-19
may continue and the timing of recovery and
the respective effect to each cash-generating
unit by comparing the recent historical financial
performance with the cash flow forecasts,
discussing business plans with senior management
and comparing the growth rate and discount rate
with economic data and our industry knowledge.
We have also reviewed the disclosure requirements
applicable to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

16 September 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEBEBR

Hitp 2 EB R

Year ended 30 June 2020 HE-—ZT-_TFA=THILFE

Notes 2020 2019
Bt &t ZE-EF —T-NF
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (EE5) BT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELKERK
REVENUE 5 1,091,631 1,488,072 Wi
Cost of sales (557,514) (721,069) HENKA
GROSS PROFIT 534,117 767,003 EF
Other income and gain 5 32,033 51,287 3 JM&U\&H&
Selling and dlstr|but|on expenses (521,270) (647,979) iﬁ%&ﬁj 3 2
Administrative expenses (204,908) (224,204) THRHx
Other operating expenses, net 6 (159,103) (49,458) HmEERY  FE
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (319,131) (103,351) EEEKER
Finance costs 7 (16,182) (212) BhE B AR
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 8 (335,313) (103,563) BESEER 2RFAEE
Income tax expense 12 (12,183) (4,371) PR X
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (347,496) (107,934) BEREER 2 ERNER
DISCONTINUED OPERATION | , BRILEK N
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation 13 (20,239) (31,171) BRI EBZFRER
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO AREEEAREERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (367,735) (139,105)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hpzmbas  (BR)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be RERPEARSENDEERRZ
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Eﬁﬂi@ﬂﬂlﬁ/(l@ﬂ%ﬁ :
Change in fair value of a financial asset 1,367 2,066 TREELATES
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation FREUEG SN EREZ
deregistered during the year 932 - B DBHE
Exchange differences on transla‘uon of foreign operations (13,151) (1,021) MERINEB RBRER
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) (10,852) 1,045 Hitt2EmE R (&8)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR ARAEFARGEFRAEABEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (378,587) (138,060)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ARAEREBRREARLEBRER
. EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 15
asic
— For loss for the year (HK22.40 cents 7&1Ll) (HK8.48 cents /&1l) —FANEE
~ For loss from continuing operations (HK21.17 cents &4l)) (HK6.58 cents /&1ll) o 8 4 i
Diluted i %/ﬁ .
— For loss for the year (HK22.40 cents B{li) (HK8.48 cents 71lll) V\]Eﬁ
~ For loss from continuing operations (HK21.17 cents 7&{l) (HK6.58 cents i&1l) ERLLBER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBEMRRE

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

Notes 2020 2019
in HK$ thousand Wi St 23 —T-NE BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 16 25,520 45,854 MmE r@}%&;&{ﬁ
Investment property 17 16,776 18,543 KEME
Right-of-use assets 18 164,732 - EREEE
Trademark 19 1,164 1,164 [EEE i
Deferred tax assets 30 386 10,988 RIEHIEE E
Deposits 23 35,766 58,504 A
Total non-current assets 244,344 135,053 ERBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 21 209,679 258,736 FE
Debtors 22 48,441 57,157 A
Bills receivable - 3,209 i
Tax recoverable 4,484 4,484 aJ 4y Bl 7% 78
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 23 90,141 85,718 AAH0E - B REM KRR
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 593 231,942 REBGERAFENRZEBERE
Pledged bank deposits 24 56 865 BEARITER
Cash and cash equivalents 24 176,339 160,975 RekBReSEER
Total current assets 529,733 803,086 MEEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE \
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 25 118,686 170,293 FERBRR - HMEN B R ETREE
Contract liabilities 26 3,584 3,762 AKBE
Bills payable 12,277 21,744 FNES
Tax payable 7,739 8,542 FEZTH IR
Due to related companies 27 71 107 i UNGIE O]
Lease liabilities 18 154,068 - HERE -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 20 7 520 RERERATFESE2EBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 59,721 30,000 FTERITER
Total current liabilities 356,153 234,968 MBI REAE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 173,580 568,118 REBEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 417,924 703,171 RABEEREELAE

B % & B

<
=2
=]
©
£
—
o
(et
=
=
o
<
[
=
(rm

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 %%




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RE BRI R

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

Notes 2020 2019
in HK$ thousand B sE —E-EF —E-NF BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES F¥RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 30 773 1,463 EEFIBEE
Lease liabilities 18 133,016 - HEBE
Other payables 25 2,675 1,733 HibERFIA
Total non-current liabilities 136,464 3,196 RSB EREE
Net assets 281,460 699,975 BEFE
EQUITY g
Issued capital 31 164,134 164,134 BEITRA
Reserves 33 117,326 535,841 #iE
Total equity 281,460 699,975 R AAE

CHEUNG Chi R&
Director %

CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B =5
Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ey Eay B

Year ended 30 June 2020 HE=—Z—ZTHA=+THIEFE

Share Share Capital  Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus Fair value revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand BRT (%) BRE ERGE BB £E SHME mEEE
BETT Bt st RA& RER R (Mit7ta) (FizEb) DVERE EftfkfE RBRHE (FizEc) REER BEeE
At 30 June 2019
RZE-NFARA=1+H 164,134 29,020 28,904 (3,292) 90,258 (1,367) 9,395 (2,189) 1,810 383,302 699,975
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
FE AR BRRERF R W E 22 - - - - - - - - - (0547 (20547)
At 1 July 2019 (restated)
R-F-NFtA-B (L&) 164,134 29,020 28,904 (3.292) 90,258 (1.367) 9,395 (2.189) 1,810 362,755 679,428
Loss for the year
rEERR - - - - - - - - - (367,735)  (367,735)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:
AEEEMEAEKE (BB) -
Change in fair value of a financial asset
SREELATEZY - - - - - 1,367 - - -
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign
operation deregistered during the year
FABHEMBINRE Z EHDBRR - - - - - - - 932 - - 932
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

1,367

BEBNEB RIRER - - - - - - - (13,151) - - (13,151)
Total comprehensive loss for the year
FRZEERER - - - - - 1,367 - (12,219) - (367,735  (378,587)
Final 2019 dividend declared
BER-_Z-NFEREKRE - - - - - - - - - (20,024) (20,024)
Equity-settled share option arrangements
S EREERRER S 32 - - 643 - - - - - - - 643
=
[1°]
§§ At30 June 2020
kS % RZZZZFA=1H 164,134 29,020* 29,547* (3,292)* 90,258* -* 9,395* (14,408)* 1,810* (25,004)* 281,460
g 5
£
[N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= Ak S 2 4 +
REEREERE
Year ended 30 June 2020 HE-—ZT-_TFA=THILFE

Share Share Capital Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus Fair value revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand BET iig) e BARGEE BARHB BE HNE FEEES
BETT Wik (LN =B & (Fff Fa) (FisFb) AFEREE SHEE HENEE (Hi#Ec) REB A HRGE
At 1 July 2018
RZE—-N\F+HA—H 163,894 28,758 27,140 (3,292) 90,258 (3,433) 9,395 (1,168) 1,810 562,463 875,825
Loss for the year
REEER - - - - - - - - - (139,105)  (139,105)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year:

AEFEMEENS (BE)
Change in fair value of a financial asset
SREEZNTEES - - - - - 2,066 - - - - 2,066
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

BEBNEB RBER - - - - = = = (1,021) - = (1,021)
Total comprehensive loss for the year
FAZHEEERRE - - - - - 2,066 - (1,021) - (139,105)  (138,060)
Final 2018 dividend declared
EER-T—/\FRHKRE - - - - - - = = - (20,032) (20,032
Interim 2019 dividend
“E-NERHRE - - - - - - - - - (20,024)  (20,024)
Exercise of share options
TEfRAE 31 300 369 (189) - - - = - - - 480
Repurchase of shares
R 31 (60) (107) - - - - - - - - (167)
Equity-settled share option arrangements
ERHEEBRELY 32 - - 1,953 - - - n n - - 1,953
s
At 30 June 2019 8
RZE-NF A=TH 164,134 29,020* 28,904* (3,292)* 90,258* (1,367)* 9,395* (2,189)* 1,810 383,302* 699,975 §3
>
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$117,326,000 (2019: HK$535,841,000) in the * ERERAREIINGAMBRRERAZERE FEB117,326,0007T (= mféh
consolidated statement of financial position. T — N4 : B%535,841,0000T) ° ¥ g
o
=]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ey Eay B

Year ended 30 June 2020 HE=—Z—ZTHA=+THIEFE

Notes:

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

() In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 30 June 2020 HZE—

nV-.R }Eﬁl)lbiﬂj—%

T TREXNA=TALFE

Notes 2020 2019
in HK$ thousand WiEr ZEIEE —T-NE BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXMCRERE
Loss before tax BREIEE
From continuing operations (335,313) (103,563) REFBLEXK
From a discontinued operation (20,239) (31,171) RBERIERH
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs 16,405 212 FLEEYDIN
Interest income (2,602) (10,693) FEg A
Amortisation of a deferred gain 5 - (20,888) B IE E Wes
Provision for inventories 3,501 8,197 FERE
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, HE /W% - BERRERE
plant and equipment, net 1,762 395 ZEER
Gains on termination of leases (215) - RIFMEZ Was
Loss on disposal of a financial asset 8 2,473 = HESREEEE
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment 12,969 2,999 N5 - BERREEE ZRE
Impairment of right-of-use assets 8 102,306 — FREBEZRE
Fair value gains, net on financial assets/liabilities at fair PEGRERATEIGZERMEE/
value through profit or loss BEZATEFRE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges 8 (792) (5,830) — NS IEREHEFHR
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 190,954 — EREESECTE
Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment ME BERREBEURRENE
and investment property 29,355 30,550 2B N
Equity-settled share option expense 8 643 1,953 BaEERERERT
Write-off of deposits and other receivables 8 6,419 - Ze REA KR 2 #H
7,626 (127,839) )
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 40,086 (64,546) FERD,/(Em)
Decrease in debtors 6,776 323 JE W 3R BB A
Decrease in bills receivable 3,209 27,188 JE U 2= 45 R >
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and B - R REMEKERER D,/ (3Em)
other receivables 10,128 (1,975) .
Decrease in trade creditors, FETRR K - EL At e 5 FRIE R e AT BRIA
other payables and accruals 34(b) (48,548) (18,389) wmy B
Increase/(decrease) in bills payable (9,467) 3,097 N ZEIE I, Ofd)
Decrease in amounts due to related companies (36) (1,772) JE 1+ & A R R IE R
Decrease in contract liabilities (178) (2,664) BHEERL
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 9,596 (186,577) %E%%Fﬁ?/@ﬁ% ) 2R &
Interest portion of lease payments 18 (15,564) - ME [ TS BB
Interest paid 7 (841) 212) ERHE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (1,967) (1,334) ENBEBMEH
Overseas taxes paid (1,108) (727) BAEIMNLIA
Net cash flows used in operating activities (9,884) (188,850) BEER EREREFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

Year ended 30 June 2020 HE=—Z—ZTHA=+THIEFE
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Notes 2020 2019

in HK$ thousand M l ot 223 —T-NF AT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEHZRERE

Interest received 2,602 10,693 EUFE

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 34(b) (19,952) (28,904) BEWE BERZBREE

Proceeds from redemption of a financial asset 230,522 - BEE&mMEEMSHIA

Proceeds from redemption of note receivable = 38,775 BEIZEMEHIE

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEREHBEEP
plant and equipment 219 24

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits with original BERRTHMABRE=-EAZ
maturity of more than three months when acquired 809 (41) AEBHEITERRD (8

Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with original BRI E R 7 21 H EI HBim= 1A
maturity of more than three months when acquired - 117,691 EARRIRITFROR D

Net cash flows from investing activities 214,200 138,238 RETBZIEREREFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE

Addition of bank loans 34(a) 184,960 83,000 FILRITE N

Repayment of bank loans 34(a) (155,239) (53,000) BREEBITER

Proceeds from issue of shares upon AT ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁz
exercise of share options 31(a) = 480 850

Repurchase of shares - (167) B fn = ﬁ%

Dividends paid (20,024) (40,056) EIRE

Principal portion of lease payments 34(a) (196,412) - %ﬁiﬁﬁ PN

Net cash flows used in financing activities (186,715) (9,743) MEEB L RREREEE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH RERALEEBEE ZFEM/ (D)
EQUIVALENTS 17,601 (60,355)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 160,975 222,269 FzBEEEES gﬁlﬁ E]

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (2,237) (939) NEXAXES VS I8

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 176,339 160,975 FRZBAESRAEEEEE

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH RERFAELEEER
EQUIVALENTS B

Cash and bank balances 24 161,339 160,975 He RIBITHES

Non-pledged bank deposit with original maturity of RENREINHALR=FAZ
less than three months when acquired 24 15,000 - EHERBRITEX

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated RERERERMTZ
statement of cash flows 176,339 160,975 HAehkReFEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. EEREEESR

Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered ERMERREBEERARINBREIMAIZBRAT « KRAZ

office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda. Tt 9% = BE 2 A Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton

Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). HM 10, Bermuda * "R BIRMEB B E X ZMER QA ([HEAZ
Frl) £ e

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment holding and the retailing, distribution REBRFALTENEREERIKKETE « DHEHRIEER -

and wholesaling of garments.

The Group discontinued Taiwan segment during the year. REBERFABRKIERESSE -
Information about the subsidiaries EEMBARZER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: RAABIZ X EMBARZFEBAT ¢
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ih]PNIE=S B R E i E ERITEE SMRE AT EIEREE DL TEER
Direct E Indirect R
Active Link Limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$ % #5,000,0007T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
SLVEBRAT (Mita) B BRREE K5 iH
Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$&® 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
B RREE R H
Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$B®E 17T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
BMEDIHBRAF] B BRREE K5 iH
Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$E# 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EMECEARAT B RIREE R H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. EEREEER (F)
Information about the subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBARZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) RABIZ X EMBRARIZFBENOT : ()

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

Name of subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities

o) NGRS R/ EMREEEE ERTEE EMRA AR E AR E 2 Lt TEEY
Direct Hi# Indirect RiE

Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$EHE 27T - 100 Distribution of garments
Bossini Idea Limited Hong Kong HK$&® 17T - 100 Dormant
BB TERB

Bossini Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$11,928% 7T 100 - Investment holding
REEBRES REER

Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$& 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EsE L EBBRE AR AR BB RIREE R
Bossini Retail Limited Hong Kong HK$B# 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
Bright Star Fashion Limited Macau MOP$25,000/2F9 7T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
BERKERAF il RIREE K5

B % & B
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about the subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

1. EEREEEHR (F)
FEMBLRZER ()
ARARZEEMBRAZFHBTOT : (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

Principal activities

MEL R EE B/ ZMRkERTE BRTEE MR AAREEREED L FEXEK
Direct Ei# Indirect R

Burling Limited British Virgin Islands US$100% 7T = 100 Licensing of trademarks

BEHRER A EEERAHES ElsAsEs

ENTEMEEEERAA People’s Republic of China RMBA E#1,010,0007C = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

(note b) (“PRC")/mainland China MEKEE KD H
(M 5EDb) R AR EAE
(TR B B R R

EMNEREEZFIER QA PRC/mainland China RMBA E #148,000,0007T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

(note c) B, B K B KREE RS H

(P 3EC)

J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd. Singapore SG$2,000,000%7 AN 7T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments

s KRIREE KD H

J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$& B 27T - 100 Investment holding

EBMESEFRAA B HE R

Kacono Trading Limited British Virgin Islands HK$ /& %2,0007T - 100 Investment holding

EBERRES HEERR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. EEREEER (HF)
Information about the subsidiaries (continued) EENMB AR ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) RABIZ X EMBRARIZFBENOT : ()
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
o) NGRS R MR ES b E ERTEE EMRA AATEEREED TEEK
Direct Hi# Indirect RiE
Key Value Trading Limited British Virgin Islands US$100%7T - 100 Investment holding
REBERRHES REER
Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HK$&® 27T - 100 Investment holding
FAERR AR BB KA
Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$B# 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
S RREREBR AR B BRIREE R
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$& 27T - 100 Property holding and letting
RFRAR AR B MERBRIEE
Sun View Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$ & 27T - 100 Dormant
HREEXARAT B B
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about the subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(a)

The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan ceased its operations and was dissolved on 29 June 2020 by resolution
of the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020. The branch is expected to complete the liquidation on 22 September
2020.

(b) BEMTERBEEZEBRAA is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC, which obtained its business

registration certificate on 14 July 1993.

(¢ BENZREZSHERAT is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC, which obtained its business

registration certificate on 5 November 2010.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 %%

2.1 RBEERET B (&)

REREEE
FAEVBRREBRARALENBAR (AR AKEDEBE—F
“EFENAZTRALEFEZHBHRE - HERARRARAERKH
BEEHNER (BEARER)  EXAKERERARESH2EDN
KRB AR 2 EBOIRAREMNE R ERRITEEENAZER
Bl ¥R (BERA A T ANKE B AliE R E AR AR .28 )
i BNER ARSI -

EARAYAERREEAERRERDRSEEREEHBLIARE
O AEBeERMBREREMERNFHERTHERER
RIEREGIE - B

(a) BERERRAZEMKRERFEE ZHNEHONLH:

(o) EEMEHALZHHERNEN &

(0 AEBHREEMEERTE -

MERRZMBHRERTIBRERNRBERZBERRRE -2 &5
BRRE - TAARFEZAESTRRCHBELABUEZE
BB - MBARRED N AAKERMGEN R AEGAFTE
BELMESELIEZARIE -

BmkEMEERE 2 SEAKSORBNARETRRZEAR A
FoFfRfeign - BB S BBOMERERERASRE - MEAH
AEEZKERAAHZRSZEERNARRMEENARE & -
WA AXEREREGNEAS ARE 2B -

WEERBELBR EXt =BEFRE —BAZARREE
AEEEEMFEERTENRRET - —RANBARZHEER
SmBEEEFMI RKELGE  WREERIIAR -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

HKAS 19 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

HKAS 28 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HKFRS 9 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKAS 12, HKAS 23, HKFRS 3 and HKFRS 11

2015-2017 Cycle

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

22 B REZEBRINE ()
BrERRARE MWK EEY 2 HB S ERFE195 (K&
71) - BA G ERIE285E (KEFT) - BBV IFERERIEIH (K
)  URZZE-—RAFE_T—+FHEAFEBCEIN - FHEBG
PSR RN BEREN 2 MERFEBAMT

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Except for the HKAS 19 Amendments, HKAS 28 Amendments, HKFRS 9 Amendments and Annual
Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:
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(a) HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have any financial impact on leases
when the Group is the lessor.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method with the date of initial
application of 1 July 2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1
July 2019, and the comparative information for 30 June 2019 was not restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 22 BT HR2BEBRINE (&)
(a) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) (a) BEARAMKERENFE165RHE ()

New definition of a lease HENHES

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use RIRE BV EEREAFE 165 - MEHNARRIMREMLE TE—
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where R NI R R E EE ARER - BIZEa N ARHEESRESE
the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of HE - BEP BRI BRI E E /) A IR K F 5 & BT
the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected to use @ XERETBEHEENERR - IRRAGESIE - K
the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were SEZEEZERRABEENRTERERE Utz EEERAR
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application. ERIRNERERBBRERES ST EIZ175REES (BER
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. MBERZEZER)— 2BFITRERHEENEL - RIES
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into BEHERNE17TRRES (ERUBERZREZES)— 2ES
or changed on or after 1 July 2019. AFEARBERBENESAN TG EHT(ME - Bt - BBV BER

EAIFI6HE TR ERBERR-E—NELA—ARY
BETTHBEHAL -

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases EREBEA-LA 2 EAKEHENHEE

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RN BB T E P ERE 165 B &1 &

The Group has lease contracts for buildings, office equipment and motor vehicles. As a lessee, the REEREET  PLAERHRAENHESL - EREBA -

Group previously classified leases as operating leases based on the assessment of whether the lease REBLABBEHEER T EEERFENR A B H & E
transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS REREAEENTG  BEESHEAKENRE - REEBHM
16, the Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease BERERE 16  NEBRBE - AR EMEHRE
liabilities for all leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a MERAEEERHERE HEEALAENRE REFNHEER
lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by AR RHEEHA12@E AU THREE ([EHAE ) (ZHEE
class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a straight- BERNER) EOMIBEREERERRRIN - RNEB TR AE
line basis over the lease term commencing from 1 July 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and BEWNE (MRE A)RMNAEEHEAGEZEFAE (B
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities BMEKA)  MIFRET-NFLA-—BRBZESHARNE
(as finance costs). HEFACEHER TERESRAE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 22 B BRZ2EHRIFE (&)
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(a) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases (continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019.

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position immediately before 1 July 2019. All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the building (that was held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation) previously
included in investment property and measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment loss, the Group has continued to include it as investment property at 1 July 2019. It
continues to be measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss applying
HKAS 40.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 July
2019:

e Applied the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a lease term that ends within 12 months
from the date of initial application.

e Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=TFNA=1H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 22 8RR B REKE (B)
(a) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) (a) EBMBEREANFE16EHE (E)
As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases (continued) EAERBEA -SRI EALEHENEE (B)
Impacts on transition (continued) BEE(E)
The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 July 2019 are as follows: RZZ—NFLtA—BRNBEBVBERERFIREENT |
ZmT

Increase/(decrease)

in HK$ thousand i CRid) BT

Assets BE

Increase in right-of-use assets and total assets 367,853 (FERREEE R EEBEIEN
Liabilities =0

Increase in lease liabilities 390,178 HEEEEN

Decrease in accruals (1,778) FETBRIE R

Increase in total liabilities 388,400 BELEEN

Equity s

Decrease in retained profits and total equity (20,547) IREB G N HE TS BB R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=ZTFA=1H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued) 22 8RRz B RKE (&)
(a) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) (a) BEARAMKEREAFE16KHE ()
As a lessee - Leases previously classified as operating leases (continued) EARBEA-LaoBEAKREHENHEE (&)
Impacts on transition (continued) BREZE (E)
The lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 reconciled to the operating lease commitments as at 30 June RZZE-—NFLtA—BNHEEEEER T —NFA=1TH
2019 are as follows: PR EHEARBEERNT
in HK$ thousand BT
Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 474,474 R-ZB-NEXNA=THNELEHERE
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 30 June 2019 4.4% R-E—NFRNA=ZTHZMEFESEERE
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 1 July 2019 426,472 REZB-NEFLtA-BZUBRRKEHERE
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and those leases W EEEERBTHERRN S EF A= THIZA
with remaining lease terms ended on or before 30 June 2020 (60,046) R THE MR 2 IR
Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets (47) KEEBEEEMERE #E
Commitments relating to signed contracts not yet RZE—NFLA—BZRMRERZ
effective before 1 July 2019 (17,901) EERT S B AE
Add: Payments for optional extension periods not recognised m:RZE-NAFRNA=ZTHRERZARES 2 3R
as at 30 June 2019 41,700
Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 390,178 R=Z2-—NFtA—BHZHEESERE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) Amendment to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

(9]

HKFRS 16 Amendment provides a practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease. The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020 with earlier application permitted.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, certain monthly lease payments for the leases of the Group’s
retail stores have been reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and
there are no other changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted the amendment
on 1 July 2019 and elected not to apply lease modification accounting for all rent concessions granted
by the lessors as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 30 June 2020. Accordingly,
a reduction in the lease payments arising from the rent concessions of HK$14,160,000 has been
accounted for as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting
to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2020.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments
by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has any
uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the Group’s
tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the Group determined that it is probable that its transfer
pricing policy will be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have any
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2.3 B HEMEE RER 2 E B I 5 E &2 A
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet REBRZENBHRERILEEA LT EBMHE SR EBBFEM R
effective, in these financial statements. BRI BB BIERER)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of Material ’ BEREGHEAEVRREE BEGTEFE IR EBEBGER
Amendments SEHERIZESR (KI8F]) B8R ZBF —EATE'
HKAS 16 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds ER g EAE 165 (e BEGHEREISHT BT W%
before Intended Use 3 i) B KR - EREE 2 Bl T is
FIE 3
HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 Amendments to HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 — Sale or ARG AER 285 EAGFEAE2R (ZT——F) R
Amendments Contribution of Assets between an Investor and (Z2—F) & VS B T B SR 2 R 81055 2 A8 5T -
its Associate or Joint Venture * BB ERAER KEEZHRBEN g EETPEZ
105 (K&18E]) Eiliok =Yk -9
HKAS 37 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a BB ERE37HR EBGHERIEI7R 2B —EE L
Contract 3 (F18%7) BRI —ETTERZ A
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 — Interest Rate ARG EAIFE395E - BB ERIE3 - BBV KER
Amendments Benchmark Reform BB ERER ERI BT M B B TS B SR 2E A

TR BRI IFER PO ZER] —FIFEEAE
ZRIF 9% (EIERT)

HKFRS 3 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business BB TS TE 3R ZE A BB SEREREIR ZIEE] —FH
E35R (K 1B83ET) ZEE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 2 BB T TE TR 2E A Rg & 42
E179%
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKAS 41, HKFRS 1 and HKFRS 9 3 —E-)\Fz BB G ERFEA5E - FEMKER
2018-2020 Cycle T oTFHE YE RIS 158 M B S B IS E SR AE RS9
FEN#E 2185 3

R-Z-_FFLA-ARERBBZFEREER
MNEZZZ—FEA - HXERMARZFEHRMER
MZZ_—FEA-AERARZFEHMER
140 7R 785 XE 58 11 A2 2 B M R ER AR

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Amendments provide a new definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 July 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 Amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements in HKAS
28 (2011) and in HKFRS 10 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 Amendments was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Amendments address the effects of interbank offered rate reform
on financial reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to
continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark.
In addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below: (continued)

HKFRS 3 Amendments clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment property), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is realised and
transferred directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, when the corresponding asset is used by the
Group. The amount realised is the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations may be transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles 15% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment property
Investment property is an interest in land and buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. The Group has adopted the cost model under
HKAS 40 to account for its investment property and such property is stated at cost less depreciation and
any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the investment property to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease term
Office equipment Over the lease term
Motor vehicles Over the lease term

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are separately presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERHME (&)
Leases (applicable from 1 July 2019) (continued) HE(R=Z-hEFEtA—BREH) (&)
Group as a lessee (continued) KEEERFAEA ()
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets (0 RHHENEREBEEEZEE
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of certain AEEKEREERARREANETEFTRPAERE R
buildings and office equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less HEE (e HERSBHEAHERA2EANUTAESE
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition CEEEEBECEE) KEEEEHECHIARETEAR
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are considered to be of low WRBEBEZHAEREEE -
value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight- RMHHEREEEEERECHENTNEERNERERERE
line basis over the lease term. R o
Group as a lessor KEEFERLHHA
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a lease modification) each EAEEEALEA  EREERGR (KEEEAEEIH)ESE
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. HENDERAKEHELXRMENRE -
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership REEWAREFEEERGEFRMT 2 BRI R RE®sHE S
of an asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, HRKEEE - MEAREHEERFEEAEKE D - REEREIA
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling BHERIHBERERN 2 EBRELENREORE - HLWAREE
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included HNREREIR  UREBAGEMEFAGaBERR 2B - ©
in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs EERTECEHEREL ZVBEEKADFAREEE ZKA
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased B WRHERRNIZERSIWARRZ ZERER -

asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 July 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of debtors
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Debtors that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERHME (&)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMEREE (&)

Subsequent measurement (continued) Hig72 (&)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RIBERIZAFEIEREZCmMEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial RERREATAEIR @REENGES MBI RAEZRTES]

position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or R AQATVEEHFREGAERRANER

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets KIBIATWMEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial CREE (SeMmBEEs —HrkREeMEEL 5 WEA)

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial RTIMER TEARB ER IR (AR AR EE 2 76 M BARR R

position) when: FIBR) -

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or — WHMZEBEEMGSRESRE ZEMNEEER 3L

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation — AEECDEBRHWRZEBEEAEMSRSME ZER - BRIR
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” (B 2H - EREBHE-FERBRELEEZBERT « BEEE
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 2YINDWRETREZET  RQAEECDHEZBEEE Y
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of BRE DR KRBT sib)AEE W EEENRBZIEEE L
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. BRI A KB BEEEZIBEE 2 PR -

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- AEBABEZREWNEEMSREeRE MR ZEN L -

through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership B EEEREZEEECHARNAR REHRARRE 212

of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset [ o fME I MR IRE ZIBEE 2 BAF 5 g K 5 - B 7

nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent ERZEEE TSR AERRASEEEE2E BEMERR

of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The REEEZEE -HEZBAT  ASETHEAEHAEE BEEER

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations ERAHEEBEERRBMAEEBRE CEFNREFZELEFTZ -

that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the SELENERATA D EREEREERREE RN SK B A A1
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the EREREZEREEMETREEE -
Group could be required to repay.
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30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expect credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for debtors and bills receivable which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERHME (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) SRMEERME (&)

General approach (continued) —Ag 7 = (&)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial F—FEE - B Y S HER LA R = B [ e NF 40 28 £ 1% 40 K2 B R
recognition and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month BEZRERN2ELFEHEEBESETENS
ECLs BMITE

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial FEER — BYFSERUAREERBEZEINELIEEE
recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss BECHEEMEERELRERZBEREE
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs EESEITENSRITA

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not purchased F-WE — RBREBHEREEERE(BEIEBEAKRAE
or originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount EEAEERE) REERERER 2 HER
equal to lifetime ECLs EEBERLHEIENEREE

Simplified approach B1EF =

For debtors and bills receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or when the MU BEBEABERD AN EBEEAEEA A TAREAREN S

Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, FENERVRF N EWREN S - AEBEEB G XA ERBE

the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group EER - REBEEEFTN  XEEW LS EERBRNES MR

does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at BEREANN2NBENEEEERAEERE - ASEBERER

each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss BEEEBBRERIIBEER  WREEFSARENAEERS

experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. RS BEIRIEH AR -

For debtors and bills receivable that contain a significant financing component and lease receivables, the EESERNREKD K E BRI E W ZEE N &8 E R WK ER R

Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies T AKREEEN DRBRRAMCA R ERREEBEESR

as described above. BEBUR °
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include financial liabilities included in trade creditors, other payables and
accruals, bills payable, amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H&)

Financial liabilities (continued) TREE (&)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued) RIBas BRIE N FESFEZ 2@ E & (&)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are designated RYIFEREFEEAREBERRIEATEIR 2 CRAB BTV LER

at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities HHEEERESBBNBERENFRE TELERIEE - HHER

designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or REBEREREATEIRZ BN RENEENGEIBmRER -

loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the Group's own credit risk which are presented in other RALEB SN EERRMESNRRIEERIN - EREMEH

comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. W25 BEBEAGEMHOREREERR - NEaERRER

The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss does not include AT E W Sk E R F RN AR ERZE 2R A BB E R A

any interest charged on these financial liabilities. Bhe

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) ARG EZ B E (BEALEE)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised RO HRIE  FHERITERREE BB AR R EREHA A

cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in FrE MANRZ FEWTER - BN T AR AR o 42 (F7E

which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit REBERBRERFNZZEHBETEE 2 W BFIEN G ER

or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation KPR o

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees T EEHBOR RS S E BRI P EE & 2 (AT SR (B - MR

or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is REBRFEART SR Z B 2 BRABKAE - BRMEEHTAZS

included in finance cost in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. BaRZBMERES -

Financial guarantee contracts TRERS A

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made REBMBELZRBEREVRBRNFEEBARKIZEF LA Z

to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due BN B AR R - MAES N RIBARBEERFEE AMAERLZ

in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially G RMERENVIFRENTEBRAAE  UMBELZEE

as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of REERLZRSERELRAE - ROITHERE  AEEZRUTH o

the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at BEZBRSEESREREGY  (VMRIEI S EERAE]FTH5ER =

the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of EENEAEEEERE  R()VLEROSER (WER) 252 &g-*_,-

financial assets” and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of HTRIMA LR o i%

income recognised. 3’55
§.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERBE (&)
Inventories 7E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first- FEZEKAER ISR FEMEPBIESEIIER - KAEKREANL
out basis and includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their HOERTE - WEREMAREN AR RiSFEE T RIFH R &K IR
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated FREEHE 2 AR AR o AT &35 ) FE TR IR 1t 51 85 &5 (B R R (R RT3 K 8
costs necessary to make the sale. EE A RAGHE -
Income tax Frigst
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or Fri5 fﬁ@%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁkﬁﬁ HRBRIMERIE R G2 FTSHRN
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. BRINER - DRIR A2 ER R EERNERER
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the BN IEEEM B ERBRENREHRIIEEMIEER M 2 FHE
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by (BEFUER) WEBRASBEKAMERNR 2BITREREMNZTE
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the 2T BB MERB R AREEEAZ N 2 @A E o

countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting AR BERAREERBEZHARBERYHPRRMS 2REER

period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting ZPAERMEERE  DABRARRRERIALER -

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: BERABENRABRRRE R ZEERAR  BRIE:

—  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a — BREBIESA ﬁ)’ﬁl%ﬂiﬁE%mZ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéFﬁi‘%é\ﬁZ?é%Z
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the BERBBEMES B E G5 M S ERT s H kg1
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and &

— in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the - BERMBRAREGHMZERVNERMEEZEMS - WMERE
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the ZR 2 BBl R ] T A5 ) R B M A R ] g N = AE ] R A AR

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. [g -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is transferred to
the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When
the contract contains a financing component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.

Retailing and distribution of garments
Revenue from the retailing and distribution of garments is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the garment products.

Some contracts for the sale of garment products provide customers with rights of return. The rights of
return give rise to variable consideration.
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For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period, the
expected value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in
HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in order to determine the amount
of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be
returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Royalty income is recognised on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Compensation income is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with compensation will flow to the Group and the amount of the
compensation can be measured reliably.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods in which the costs for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERHME (&)
Dividends BE
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general AR ERIRRE RS FERRIERFERREE - KRR
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. BERERE M IS mR M EHRE -
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’'s memorandum, FHREREZRRARER  RESAARZHEBAM ERRE
articles of association and Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. RANRTESTIRFAREZEN - At - FERETIRNER R
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and SRR RRAEE -
declared.
Employee benefits EEEF
Share-based payment transactions U ZFEZ X5
The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards RATREREGSE - BERZEREDHASEESIEHERZ
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including AEK2HEE AEBEE (BREES) URNINZTEZRSZ2H
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby UG - EERHRBIERNIER TAE 2 RE ([NEREE
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). 51 e
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by RIZEE - F+—A+tHRBREEEETUEREERIZZKA - Th
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair values are determined using an L2BRHABZATFEMTE - AFEDNRAS EHEEEEARE
appropriate option pricing model, further details of which are given in note 32 to the consolidated financial E o A IEHR RS KM 32 o
statements.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a AEREERT S 2R ERERSEEL NS - FEEM KRS AR
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are IR EEET 2 BRARNE BRI X HER - 758 5 5T -
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting [ERERRERZUEREER S 2 2B - REEBEHD 28
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's o RAEEHGREERB o R TAME 2 xEbet  £X—
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or BN E NIRRT A+ Th R RFE R 2 70 HA 1) B B AX A SR
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and 22 .

end of that period.
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Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the fair
value of awards at the grant date, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the fair value at the grant date. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 %%

EEEF (&)

KRG ITHEZ XS5 (&)

BERRNREBRZAFER  T&5t RREEIETIHRIRIE
o BEFEERZSRENTRLE  EAREEEREHFED
B TARENRKEMG - MHERAKRERBRNELBERZAFE
A o B3R P B 755 18 3 8 AR R AR 75 22 SR AV (AR L 1 AR 145 /3 SF SR BB fik
o B3R BINNIRIS Ko,/ SRR B GA - BRIFER B G RRNE
BOAFEAR  WHNEIIERX -

AT HSRE R, HRBG G REEER T &K ERE 2 BB T
RRFAX - LEBBESTSIERBIGMT - BRm BRI RIFRR
R REBEER - MATAEMRBRR SR G EER - I
HINERBERE -

5 2 A5 5 2R B 2 IR BBE 7] T i A B2 2 R A 153K - FREERRZ
B S ik D R B AR R SR A SEAET BE 5 2 K o SN - i E IR
BHZFE ERZEEERUABRNINZR S 2B R FER P
e REREREBTHREMAE  AEREEEERFA -

WERREERBKEIE  BRESECHEHARRE - EHAR
MRZETHBREZMAS PRI AER - EREASERES
B 2 IR BRI RREZR AR - A - BRTHBRERED
I B - WL B MEE A RBRE - AIEFHEZER
BIGERE ARNESRBREZEE - — WA RMAL

AHEERAME - RITEBRE  BERE - RRABINOEE -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TEETHEME ()
Employee benefits (continued) EEEA (&)
Paid leave carried forward BRI E
The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar AEBBERBEAANREFEELATEREST TR -EATHE
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting AT RRERARRIBFRETEE  BHEBEEENRER
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An A -RBEHR EEERFAERYE TEE 2 EFFR 2B
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned REKAIEHRE o

during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes BikzirZl

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund REERBEREBMBEAEXZEZE TR IMEBERBFIFTE - B
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance RIER T NFES S EBUEHIFT S 2 8 Hl 1 A FES RIREF T2 ([38
and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes BaatEl]) KRR Z RN EROIFT R E 2 B 8B FOR IRt F 5t
Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong. 2l ([B 3R KGR -

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly EREEFET  EXREESBREEEUAES% 2L ERME -
contribution of HK$1,500 per employee are made by each of the employer and the employees. The MBRERS ATLEEBE,5007T - BIFRBELTEIER  EBX 2

o

employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules AREFNHRAEBRATR - AEEZEFHRNHARESS
£

f#
of the MPF Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed EKES BEEMA °

into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer ERZERNFTEIT BEREERFS% 2L REF - WREKE

and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme. RIRFTEIMNETE - HRREANEERERATNR - MiES A& E

The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee BREFHFE0%H5%Z L EMK - BRBAEPISAEEEE 2 2 B4t

at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in AR HBERRGTE] - REEF RN HR BRERERERE

the Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be NPT

reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently BRESITEINBERNKTEZEE  BAEBZEESH UHBE =

administered funds. VEBESER i
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The employees of the Company'’s subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the “’Old Scheme”)
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the “"New Scheme”). Under
the Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to
the Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions
have been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a
committee and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution,
Bank of Taiwan, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch contributes each
month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme, and deposits
these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the schemes were terminated on 10 September 2020.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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Employee benefits (continued) EERA (&)
Pension schemes (continued) Rk 2 (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loyalty programmes
The Group operates loyalty programmes which allow customers to accumulate points when they purchase
products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points being equal to their fair value. Fair value is determined by applying
statistical techniques.

The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)
Foreign currencies (continued) I (&)
The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. BETEINBRAR 2 EEIWIEET - RIREHR BHEERZ
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong EEMBE  BRRSHAZENEXRRE BT RBxkEME
Kong dollar at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit AR AGRZFEE 2 MEFIERRERE T - AltMEAZ K
or loss and other comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average BMEBREMEEWRERER - WHRINERBFHERT - HESIE
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive B R IENEER 2 At 2 E G F DR m P ER -

income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are REEGARERERET BINIBARIZREREBRRASREA
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently B ERMERETT BINTBRATNFEFALEEEACREREL
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong RZFEZNMEFHERRE RSB -

Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 3. EXgsHHE R A
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make REBFEVBREZFR  FTEEEEELSVEMI MK -
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets X BEENBBZSEMBEEZHABBEEARRABERE 2 ¥
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty B et RRER - BEZSEBRRLMF 2 TIRERE @ ATREEHA
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment RABIXTECEESABZRABELERAE -

to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements W)
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following RERAAREEZ SFTHER - R TXFaHRS RMATEIN - ERE
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts ZEH TR A B RRC RSBV ERE R Z HIE

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:

(i) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value
has not been in existence; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into industrial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the industrial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the industrial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties
which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise
the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not
in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for sale. The assessment of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by
considering historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based on internal budgets and certain
market factors. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts on all inventories
are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision needs to be made in respect
of any obsolete inventories identified. Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting
period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in
the consolidated financial statements. The carrying amount of the Group's inventories as at 30 June 2020
was HK$209,679,000 (2019: HK$258,736,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and an investment property

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use and fair value less cost of disposal of the asset. Estimating the value in use for the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset using key assumptions such as the
estimated future store performance, economic environment and the sales growth rate and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The fair value less
cost of disposal for the impairment assessment of an investment property is estimated based on current
prices in an active market and by reference to external valuation reports. The carrying amounts of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment property as at 30 June 2020
were HK$25,520,000 (2019: HK$45,854,000), HK$164,732,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$16,776,000 (2019:
HK$18,543,000), respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses as at 30 June 2020 was HK$715,694,000 (2019: HK$579,778,000). Further
details are contained in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on debtors, bills receivable and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for debtors and bills receivable. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on debtors, bills receivable and other receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group'’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customers’ actual default in the future. The carrying amounts of
debtors and bills receivable at 30 June 2020 were HK$48,441,000 (2019: HK$57,157,000) and Nil (2019:
HK$3,209,000), respectively. The information about the ECLs on the Group's debtors is disclosed in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements. As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amount of other receivables
was HK$31,803,000 (2019: HK$28,817,000).

Share option valuation

The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the values of the share options are the risk-free
interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and expected dividend. The expected life of the
options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The measurement dates
used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental
limitations, due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has three (2019: four) reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@) Hong Kong and Macau
(b) Mainland China
(c) Singapore

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group discontinued the business in Taiwan segment.
Accordingly, certain comparative segment information related to the Taiwan segment is classified as “loss
for the year from a discontinued operation” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The impact of the abovementioned changes in the Group's reportable operating
segment for the year ended 30 June 2019 is considered retrospectively and the Group’s operating segment
information is restated as if the Group had reallocated the resources in that year.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment loss, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted loss before tax from continuing operations is measured consistently with the
Group's loss before tax from continuing operations except that interest income and non-lease-related
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax payable and interest-bearing bank borrowings as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Geographical segments
The following tables present revenue, loss and certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the
Group's geographical segments for the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B EHRME

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. RETRWEHN (F)

Geographical segments (continued) i o 38 ()
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
BEBRREM B KB ik wE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
kg X3 —T-NEF —EEF —T-NEF —E-EF —T-NEF —EC-EF —T-NEF
in HK$ thousand (restated)
BET T (FeE7)
Segment revenue:
DEWE
Sales to external customers from continuing
operations
FBISE G 2 HE THNHER 715,617 1,052,101 296,297 331,853 79,717 104,118 1,091,631 1,488,072
Other income and gain from continuing
operations
FIEACE T 2 AU A R s 27,723 38,797 1,615 1,357 132 520 29,470 40,674
Total
FE 743,340 1,090,898 297,912 333,210 79,849 104,638 1,121,101 1,528,746
Segment results
DIREHEE (199,450) (43,095) (101,621) (58,326) (35,964) (12,543) (337,035) (113,964)
Interest income
FEHA 2,563 10,613
Loss from operating activities
EEEBEER (334,472) (103,351)
Ein\anc\e costs (other than interest on lease liabilities)
MEKAS (HEEENERIN) (841) (212)
Loss before tax from continuing operations
SIS TS 2 R RITE 1R (335,313) (103,563)
Income tax expense
FriSHiR > (12,183) (4,371)
Loss for the year from continuing operations
FELE RS 2 FNER (347,496) (107,934)

The revenue information above is based on the locations in which the sales originated.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESWEHR (&)
Geographical segments (continued) i3 o 38 (4E)

Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated

EEREM e bk RE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

b Sk 3 —Z-hEF b St 523 —T-hF ft b 223 —ZTNEF bk 223 —ZThEF
in HK$ thousand (restated)
BT (&)

Segment assets
PEEE 437,783 625,370 252,738 204,118 63,067 43,842 753,588 873,330

Unallocated assets

AOBCEE 4,870 15,472
Assets related to a discontinued operation
BERIEEBRBEE 15,619 49,337

Total assets
BEE 774,077 938,139

Segment liabilities
PEEE 270,632 138,573 98,912 39,059 46,558 7,482 416,102 185,114

Unallocated liabilities

AOECEE 68,233 40,005
Liabilities related to a discontinued operation -
BERIEEBREAE 8,282 13,045 S
g2

Total liabilities ii
o

BARE 492,617 238,164 |\ =
QU

.

=]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFTHER (R
Geographical segments (continued) i o 38 ()
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
EEREM LEPN g RE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
b Sk -3 —E-hF b 23 —ZE-NF b Sk 23 —Z-hF —ECBEF —Z-hEF
in HK$ thousand (restated)
BT (=)
Other segment information:
From continuing operations:
FHBICE T -
Impairment of right-of-use assets
EREEERE 59,757 - 24,241 - 18,308 - 102,306 -

Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, plant

and equipment, net
HE MEYE - BERREER 2 FER 2 6 908 180 5 2 915 188
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories
FERE  (BiERE) (407) 5,990 10,202 946 799 84 10,594 7,020
Loss of inventories due to a fire accident
EANEmMEEZ2FE - 9,458 - - - - - 9,458
Loss on disposal of a financial asset

HECRERE ZBE 2,473 - - - - - 2,473 -

Capital expenditure*

» BAK
2 — from continuing operations

E;& —BEREER 12,456 16,532 6,044 7,721 2,648 3,467 21,148 27,720
ugiﬂ — from a discontinued operation

- — BRI ERK 129 2,056
.g §\

©

= 21,277 29,776

1 30 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 43



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BREFTBWER (&)
Geographical segments (continued) i 5 3 (58)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
BEEBREM P B K PE S hn RE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
—EIEF —ZE-NF —EZEF —ZE-nEF —EDEF —E-NF —EDEF —ZE-NF
in HK$ thousand (restated)
BT (r=75)

Depreciation of items of property, plant and
equipment and investment propert R
M BMELRREEERREMECIE

— from continuing operations

—FEREER 21,454 19,954 4,478 5,860 2,109 1,974 28,041 27,788
- from a dlscontinued operation
—BRIEEE 1,314 2,762
29,355 30,550
Depreciation of r%ht—of—use assets
EREEEZINE
—from continuing operations
SIE R B TS 142,470 - 13,814 = 31,254 = 187,538 =
- from a dlscontlnued operation
—BRIEERE 3,416 -
190,954 -
Impairment of items of property, plant and
equipment
Mm% - WEKEEBEE ZRE
—from contmumg operations
—RBIKEEE 9,095 - 1,675 1,246 2,198 1,340 12,968 2,586
—froma dlscontlnued operation
—BRIEERTE 1 413
12,969 2,999
Non-current assets** -
ERBNEE> s
- from continuing operations =
—FEREEY 159,268 57,368 26,956 2,860 21,968 3,083 208,192 63,311 2.
—from a dlscontinued operation =
—ERIEET - 2250 (VES
208,192 65,561 g
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. * BARAXBEABEYE  BERREE- S
**  The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and * P ARERBEECEM NBBREEMEMEGE  TEERTERIE
the non-current portion of deposits. BERFERDHM2ES -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESFEHR (F)
Geographical segments (continued) i o 38 ()
Information about major customers ERFEEFZER
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common control accounted for 10% or HEZZ-ZF A SA-+HIEFE  HE - HRAEHTH—
more of the Group's revenue during the year ended 30 June 2020. During the year ended 30 June 2019, HRFHHEETEGAEEREMNI0%HIA L - BHE-T—ILFX
revenue from continuing operations of approximately HK$133,856,000 was derived from sales by the A=+HIEFEHM - FELE T 2 W 4075%133,856,0007T 5
Hong Kong and Macau segment to a single customer. REBEBLRFADERN—BE-—FFPZHE -
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 5. W&~ Hbl AR s
An analysis of the Group'’s revenue, other income and gain from continuing operations is as follows: REBERFBBELEER 2 W HMRARKEA T -
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEHWE
2020 2019
—EoEE —ZT-NEF
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (=51) BT
Retailing and distribution of garments transferred REFEEE R 2 K EE R iE
at a point in time 1,091,631 1,488,072
Disaggregated revenue information W E R
Geographical segments Ml 13 77 A
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
BB REM B K BE Esiiibd e
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBRF —ZT-NF ZBZBE —Z-hF ZBZBF —ZT-NF ZBIEF —ZT-AF
(restated)
in HK$ thousand € =) BT T

Retailing and distribution of garments 715,617 1,052,101 296,297 331,853 79,717 104,118 1,091,631 1,488,072 MIKEE KD
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN (continued) 5. Wi - HW AR W (&)
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gain from continuing operations is as follows: REBPBESEEB 2 W - AR ARKGZSTAT : (48)

(continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that TREFFAHREHVNENEEREBTHEEKBAOR TMER
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from AR E R RS 5

performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2020 2019
—BCRF —T-NEF
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (f=71) BETFT
Distribution of garments 3,512 5,999 P 7 88
Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme 250 427 KRREE- B B R 2
3,762 6,426
Performance obligations BHERE
Retailing and distribution of garments KKREE RS 5
The performance obligation is satisfied when the control of the product is transferred to the customers BABENRZNEREEMZEFIRER TEFRFER - RRE R
upon delivery of goods. Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit period of ERRHEN AEBE—REBEATETEEIEP&E60KE
up to 60 days to its trade customers. 55 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN (continued) 5. Wi - HW AR W (&)
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gain from continuing operations is as follows: REBPBESEEB 2 W - AR ARKGES AT - (8)

(continued)

Other income and gain Heb g A R U&=
2020 2019
—EoRE —E-NF
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (feE%)) BT T
Interest income 2,563 10,613 B U A
Royalty income 9,315 7,932 BHBRA
Gross rental income 8,993 8,761 HeWAEHE
Amortisation of a deferred gain (note 11) - 20,888 HESEEUSS (FEE11)
Government grants 3,077 219 AT # B
Compensation income due to a fire accident 5,000 - EAZEmmE 2 A
Others 3,085 2,874 HAif
32,033 51,287
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES, NET 6. Hfh&EEM  FE
2020 2019
2R —E-NF
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (#&=51) BETT
Staff costs B I
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 15,337 20,239 Se s TE O EBLNRER
Pension scheme contributions 1,204 1,532 RSB
16,541 21,771
Minimum lease payments of land and buildings RETHE T T RIBF 2 HIEHEER K
under operating leases - 19,043
Lease payments of land and buildings not included in the TEEREEAGETE 2 T REF 2 HEMNK
measurement of lease liabilities 192 =
Fair values gains, net on financial assets/liabilities RIERERRATEIRZEREE BEZ
at fair value through profit or loss A EF R
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (792) (5,830) — PEEERLIPEFNR S
Foreign exchange differences, net 259 (6,467) HNE R IR ERE - JRE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16,229 - FEREEEZITE
Impairment of right-of-use assets 102,306 - EREEE 2 RE
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment 12,968 2,586 W - WEREHEER 2RE
Loss of inventories due to a fire accident - 9,458 EXEmMEE2FE
Loss on disposal of a financial asset 2,473 - HESRMEE CEE
Others 8,927 8,897 Hity
159,103 49,458
FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE
2020 2019 'S"'
—BRCRF —E-hF =
(restated) o
in HK$ thousand (#&=751) BT s
Interest on lease liabilities (note 18(c)) 15,341 - HEBREZME (MFE18(0) %
Interest on bank loans 841 212 RITERZ S 8
S
16,182 212
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 8. FERKEXEB A BRBAKBE
The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEBSESLER Y BRRAEEENG S (3t A) TFEE -
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (&=E51) BT T
Cost of sales: THERK
Cost of inventories sold 546,920 714,049 EHFEZHRA
Provision for inventories 10,594 7,020 FEEE
557,514 721,069
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 9): BETAA(BREEME —MFI)
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 259,450 311,454 e TE - ZHREH
Equity-settled share option expense 643 1,953 TS BRI R =
Pension scheme contributions (note a) 18,233 23,242 BRI (M 5Ea)
Less: Government grants (3,150) — R BRI 4 B
275,176 336,649
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 187,538 - CHEEENE
Depreciation of items of property, plant and ME BELXEEEURKRENEZITE
equipment and investment property 28,041 27,788 o
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: REMETHREBEEMNK
Land and buildings (note b) = 310,316 + 3 M8 (HIsEb)
Contingent rents of retail stores = 82,570 TEEBZINER
Plant and machinery - 6 AR K e 2R R
Lease payments not included in the measurement of lease TEREREEaETEZHBENT - (H:E18)
liabilities: (note 18) .
Land and buildings (note b) 66,648 - L3 Mg T (MY 5Eb)
Contingent rents of retail stores 69,974 - TELEH I KAEE
Plant and machinery 63 - R o
Less: Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic (14,160) - W BT AE AR SR I 2 He =R
122,525 393,892
Auditor’s remuneration 2,556 2,915 Z 2R BN o
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, HE/MENE  BEREHER ZFEE
plant and equipment, net 915 188 9
Gains on termination of leases (38) - LIS 2 e
Loss on disposal of a financial asset 2,473 - HETREECEBA
Write-off of deposits and other receivables 6,419 - 2 N Hoh R WA 2 i 85
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note c) 102,306 - £ A E 2 BuE (fifEc) N
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment (note c) 12,968 2,586 W - B MREREB ZRE (BT
Foreign exchange differences, net 259 (6,467) SNERBRERE  FE
Net rental income (8,993) (8,761) HE WA FRE
Fair value gains, net on financial assets/liabilities at REZEEATEIEZ2MEE,/
fair value through profit or loss BEZAFEF S
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note d) (792) (5,830) —PREERLIAEN R 5 (i iEd)
Loss of inventories due to a fire accident (note e) - 9,458 EANEmEE 7S (Hize)
Compensation income due to a fire accident (note f) (5,000) - A NEMmEE 2 WA (BEED)
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8. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 30 June 2020, forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme
in future years amounted to HK$53,000 (2019: HK$53,000).

The lease payments of land and buildings not included in the measurement of lease liabilities for the year ended
30 June 2020 and the minimum lease payments of land and buildings under operating leases for the year ended
30 June 2019 include the management fee of a shop.

Impairment of items of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment is included in “other operating
expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value gains, net on financial assets/liabilities - transactions not qualifying as hedges are included in “other
operating expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, certain inventories located in Hong Kong were damaged in a fire accident
occurred at a third party warehouse. The carrying amount of the damaged inventories amounted to HK$9,458,000
were written off and included in “other operating expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The compensation income due to a fire accident of HK$5,000,000 is included in “other income and gain” on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. %4

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

BREEB RBIAEE (&)

B EE

(@)

(b)

(d)

(e)

RZZE-TFEANA=1A - NEE A AIERERFRZRAKTEHX
28 U 4 3R A 53,0007 (=B — ML 4F : ##53,0007T) ©

BE-T-THAACHELEEITOERARERTEZ LR
BT AENRRBE-2 NEAASTALEEGEHES T+
REFRERENROE MES2EREM -

ERREEARYE BELRBRE ZNEE BEEFABRaRE
fhEERaER e [EEERS  #E] -

CREE/AELAFEFRE-THAERENEDNZIFERRE
EGAREREMEMESERZ [EMEERX  #E]

BE_Z-NFAAZTRLFEHR UREEZETFERE=
HTREEENEMBR - RE(EREI,458,0007 2 EIRKRFED M
HhEREGEREEMEERaR 2 [HEERS  FE] °

A N E T E 2 WA B ¥5,000,0000 B BIEELR A BE R H b2 mE U
HRZTHMRA KK -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and B EHRBIREBQHERIE383(1)@) ~ (b) * (QMOIER A (3
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about BESNEER) ROIE2HEE  REENEEMENT

B % & B
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Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —ECEF —T-hF BT T
Executive directors: WITESE
Fees = - ws
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,899 8,687 e EREYRE
Equity-settled share option expense 142 538 EREEERERS
Pension scheme contributions 36 48 BRIREETEIHR
8,077 9,273
Independent non-executive directors: BN IEHITES
Fees 753 780 we
8,830 10,053
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEME ()
Share options were granted to the directors in respect of their services to the Group under the share RARBEFRARNEBRERB M AESER L AR FERETEIT
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated ZHERE  SFRHNGRE VB mKRM 32 - BEHEEREZ A TETY
financial statements. The fair value of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over RELAHET YEREBHRTERER  RAFEFTALE
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the consolidated MBREZSEEHALMZETME 2 HER -

financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows: REREXN TEIIFNTESZ2HESNAT ¢
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —E-EF —ZT-NEF BETT
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 232 240 et e
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (resigned on 14 August 2020) 290 300 PEELET (RS- F N\ A+EWAET)
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 231 240 =L 2E ¢
753 780
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year FAWEENBIFNTEST 2 AMHE (ZTE—NF : &) -
(2019: Nil). None of the independent non-executive directors waived remuneration during the year FRRREF  MEBVIFRTESHEMNS -

and the prior year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEME ()
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense contributions remuneration
2= i1 BREE Bikg
in HK$ thousand ik REMWR S BBRAER X sTEIMERR HemE BT T
2020 —ECEF
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess EE/L Tt
(resigned on 14 August 2020) = 1,737 39 - 1,776 (R=ZZE_ZFENATHEAEHE)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund = 4,155 64 18 4,237 HEELE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 2,007 39 18 2,064 BREFEE
- 7,899 142 36 8,077
2019 =F-NF
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess B2/t
(resigned on 14 August 2020) = 1,906 147 12 2,065 (RZZEZZ=FNATHEAFHE)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 4,560 244 18 4,822 BEERE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 2,221 147 18 2,386 PR 8 Sk ST A
5 - 8,687 538 48 9,273
S There was no arrangement under which an executive director waived or agreed to waive any FARRKREF  WERATESHEXREHRELE
£ % remuneration during the year and the prior year. o] Bl 2 22 HE »
D
o
£
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. i EREHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 3 (2019: 3) directors, details of whose FANRERFEEBR=3%(CT-NF =R)EF  HiexH
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining 2 (2019: 2) highest BEEINR EXHFI - EBRZ (ZZE—NF : MB) AR AZES
paid employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: FEEEECHEFBAOT ¢
2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —E-EF —ZT-NEF BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,703 5,121 e 2 REDRE
Equity-settled share option expense 96 258 B EERERY
Pension scheme contributions 29 36 RIREET B

3,828 5,415
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands MeNFTIERsaeEHIFEZEEHENT :
is as follows:

Number of employees

EEHA
2020 2019
—E-EE —T-AEF
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 - 75 #1,500,001 7T = 7 #2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1 75 #2,000,001 7T Z 7 #2,500,0007C
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1 7 #£2,500,001 7T /8 #3,000,0007T
2 2
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

11. GAIN ON SALE AND LEASEBACK ARRANGEMENT AND DEFERRED GAIN 1. EREE R H 2 Wk K&IEE W

In March 2016, the Group entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with an independent RZE-—RE=ZRA FEEE-—EZBFIE=FEBEREARA
third party, Deep Thought Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”), for the disposal of a self-occupied RITEADIIVUGHEE RS WHEMRRPEEAEABE
property in Macau with a carrying value of HK$10,908,000, for a consideration of HK$350,000,000. The 10,908,0007T 2 E A% - (&= 1350,000,0007T ° BEAR HE
transaction was completed on 23 May 2016 (the “Completion Date”). RZZE—R"FRA=-+=B(=KAH) ZK -

Upon completion of the disposal, the Group and the Purchaser entered into a tenancy agreement, REREER  AEBHREFTVAERS Bt A5EREH
whereby the Group leased the aforesaid self-occupied property from the Purchaser for its own use for HRALMERYEEER AxXKBREARB=F g AWER
3 years commencing on the Completion Date. The fair value of the self-occupied property near the T BRI 2 AT ET BB EXE BB M ER KT T ER M
Completion Date was determined by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer. BRAREE - BMEATFEZREDEEYAEERANREE - RNE
The excess of the consideration over the fair value had been deferred and amortised over the lease period. F o OREREDEHEE BEZS - NFAA=ZTHLEFERS
In the prior year, the deferred gain had been fully amortised. The amortisation of the deferred gain was 1B e K H A 2 [ e 2R 0 85 IR RE U R 7 7 1520,888,0007T ©

HK$20,888,000 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 June 2019.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FiSHBA X
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable EENEHERFANT BRI Z M5 ERBUE AR E16.5% (=
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated =5 : 16.5%) IREERE o FEEAMMEPIISERTUR M 2 HI8 -
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates. TIRBASEEMEBCEMERR REERE 2 RITREH -
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —E-EF —ZT-NEF BEF T
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year 1,844 3,504 FRZH
Overprovision in prior years (46) (474) BT ERERE
Current — Elsewhere BVER— E fth3h [=
Charge for the year 473 727 FAXIL
Deferred (note 30) 9,912 614 IRIE (M17E30)
Total tax charge for the year from continuing operations 12,183 4,371 FHER SRS FRTIESX HERE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

12. FRBHAX (&)
RAARBRERIOMBRRMERR,RIAER 2 EEHE
AEREERRGRATEE HERX BIRERREFE 2 MRS

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/

144

jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at
the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective

tax rate, are as follows:

HER - URERBE AVAERE) 2E

operation

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 %%

2020 2019
—EIEF % —ZE-hF %
(restated)
in HK$ thousand (gE7) BT
Loss before tax from continuing REREXH 2 HRBAIER
operations (335,313) (103,563)
Loss before tax from a discontinued ERIEET 2 BRELRTEE
operation (20,239) (31,171)
(355,552) (134,734)
Tax at the statutory tax rate (63,817) 17.9 (20,036) 14.9 BETEMEFTE 2 FHIA
Adjustments in respect of current BLAB 1 EAfE BN HA R 1B 4 1 SR 2
tax of previous periods (46) - (474) 0.4
Income not subject to tax (14,335) 4.0 (13,812) 10.3 BEHF 7 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax 21,860 (6.1) 18,440 (13.7) AMER B R 2 F 2
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary RERTIBEIE R YR ZE5E
differences 69,405 (19.5) 21,483 (15.9)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (2,194) 0.6 (1,804) 1.3 BAESEESEHEEE
Others 1,310 (0.3) 574 (0.5) Hih
_§ Tax charge at the Group's effective tax BRASEERBERTE 2MEL S
Eg rate 12,183 (3.4) 4,371 (3.2)
Su
[
iy Tax charge from continuing operations 12,183 (3.4) 4,371 (3.2) FBREXEBK I HEH
§§
= Tax charge from a discontinued EARIEER 2 MIEE H

BRI 2 SRR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 13. ERIE¥ETR

On 2 March 2020, the Group announced a plan to wind down the Group's retail operation in Taiwan (the RZZBZZF=A-R  AEBERXMARAAESERSENTEED

“Taiwan segment”) considering that it was not optimistic about the near term prospect of the Taiwan (TRESH] 258 ZRIAEEEHAESFENRAI RERZAIR

segment and the cessation of Taiwan segment operation could enable the Group to better utilise its REREE - URKREEERESEADAERREMOETERE

resources in its other segments. As at 30 June 2020, all retail shops in Taiwan had ceased operation. The BR-MRZEZEFA=1+H FBRENTEEHERIEER -

Taiwan segment was thus classified as discontinued operation and no longer included in the note for Rt BESEENHERERIEED W TBREREE D REER M

operating segment information. Further details of the above were set out in the Company’s announcement TN B PR ERZE—THBEHNRARABHE T -TF

dated 2 March 2020. ZAZRZAfA o

The results of the discontinued operation for the year are presented as below: BEREEBRFAZEEZ5WT ¢

2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —E-EF —ZT-NEF BT

Revenue 136,836 153,099 U 2%

Cost of sales (66,282) (74,245) $HE R

Gross profit 70,554 78,854 EH

Other income and gain 855 286 Eqth Y A B e

Selling and distribution expenses (68,461) (75,763) HENR DAY

Administrative expenses (23,059) (28,136) THFHX

Other operating income/(expenses), net 95 (6,412) Hibg gl (FAX) - FE

Loss from operating activities from a discontinued operation (20,016) (31,171) ERILER 2 BEEBER

Finance costs (223) - A& KA
o
>

Loss before tax from a discontinued operation (20,239) (31,171) ERIEEBK BRI AIERE §

Income tax expense - - Friefif = §§

Loss for the year from a discontinued operation (20,239) (31,171) ERIEE 2 FAEE =
=.
=]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows:

13. ER L7 (&)
ERIERBAEEZFREREHINWT

2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —ECEF —T-NF BT T
Operating activities 3,710 431 S EE
Investing activities 4,880 (964) & EEE
Financing activities (3,929) - BEEE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 4,661 (533) FHRERA (L)
Loss per share: TEE
Basic, from a discontinued operation (HK1.23 centsi& L) (HK1.90 cents/&1ll) HEA > RABKRIEEK
Diluted, from a discontinued operation (HK1.23 cents3&4ll)  (HK1.90 centsisiil) e REERIEER

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued operation are based on:

KECRIEEBZBRERAREEBRDRETHSAFE

2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —ECEF —E-NF BHTT
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of AARERERFEEARGREERIEER 2 EBE
the Company from a discontinued operation (20,239) (31,171)
2020 2019
—ECEF —ENF
o — N e
= Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue AR EEREAREEZ FADBITEBRNE
E;{: during the year used in the basic loss I (HFE15)
ugiﬂ per share calculation (note 15) 1,641,333,394 1,640,719,421
=%
TR
E Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue AR EEREEEE C FARBITERRNE
i during the year used in the diluted loss 8 (MEE15)
per share calculation (note 15) 1,641,333,394 1,640,719,421
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R 2
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —ECTF —E-NEF BB
Interim dividend — Nil HEAR B —
(2019: HK1.22 cents per ordinary share) - 20,032 (ZZ2—hF : SlE®R.2278100)
Proposed final dividend — Nil BORREAIRE — &
(2019: HK1.22 cents per ordinary share) - 20,024 (Z=2—N5F : REER.2280)
- 40,056

15.

No final dividend was proposed for the year ended 30 June 2020. For the year ended 30 June 2019, the
final dividend of HK$20,024,000 was calculated based on 1,641,333,394 shares of the Company in issue.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company from continuing operations of HK$347,496,000 (2019 (restated):
HK$107,934,000) and the loss from a discontinued operation of HK$20,239,000 (2019: HK$31,171,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,641,333,394 (2019: 1,640,719,421) in issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts presented for the years ended 30 June
2020 and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share amounts presented.

15.

HE_ZE-_ZSFAA=-THLEFETERERERE -BE=-Z
—NERNAZTHLIEFE  REKEE820,024,0007T IR E A A
AT B ITRR1D1,641,333,394M8 51 HF

APAEBEREEAELMEBRER
BREANBEIDBRBEFELCEEB 2 AAR L BE=THE AELSE
1B #347,496,0007T (— B — N4 (KL EF) : #%107,934,000
o) R R IEETE 2 BB B %20,239,000T (Z B — L5 : B
31,171,0007T) R FRE 1T E B INETH201,641,333,3945% (=
T— A4 1,640,719,4218%) 54 -

HRBREHMEI 2 BREABRAREEER  BHREBE=

ERERE-NFAAZTRIEFEYERESHMEN 2 &
BERBREHAE -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERAR A A

=
>
Q
>
@,
o
=
)
o
=
=
(<Y
=2
o
=)

147



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V1% - MERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE B HEBR
in HK$ thousand YR WMAERE RE “E BT T
2020 =
At 30 June 2019 and at 1 July 2019: RZZE-NFRA=ZFTEERZZE-NFtA—HB:
Cost 295,022 222,189 2,401 519,612 PXAME
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERRIE
and impairment (269,213) (202,197) (2,348) (473,758)
Net carrying amount 25,809 19,992 53 45,854 REFE
At 1 July 2019, net of accumulated RZZE—-hFtHA—08"
depreciation and impairment 25,809 19,992 53 45,854 b REHTE RRE
Additions 12,999 8,278 - 21,277 NE
Disposals/write-off (1,232) (749) - (1,981) & s
Impairment (9,288) (3,681) - (12,969) TR
Depreciation provided during FRITERE
the year (17,180) (10,408) - (27,588)
Exchange realignment 985 (58) - 927 HmPE
At 30 June 2020, net of RZZEZZFA=+H "
accumulated depreciation MR RFHTE R (E
< and impairment 12,093 13,374 53 25,520
2
= At 30 June 2020: R=B-BEXA=+A
Eg Cost 256,629 214,575 2,397 473,601 RAE
= o Accumulated depreciation RETERRE
E and impairment (244,536) (201,201) (2,344) (448,081)
Net carrying amount 12,093 13,374 53 25,520 ARE A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. Y13 - ME K& & (&)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE R RER
in HK$ thousand MEEE WARRME R @E BT
2019 —B-NhEF
At 1 July 2018: RZE-\Ft+tHA—H:
Cost 316,342 212,348 2,404 531,094 BXANME
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERRE
and impairment (284,957) (195,893) (2,351) (483,201)
Net carrying amount 31,385 16,455 53 47,893 BREHE
At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated RZZE-N\FLtH—-H"
depreciation and impairment 31,385 16,455 53 47,893 Mk Rt e XRE
Additions 16,615 13,161 - 29,776 INE
Disposals/write-off (387) (32) - (419) HE sy
Impairment (2,687) (312) - (2,999) SRE
Depreciation provided during FRITERE
the year (19,497) (9,285) - (28,782)
Exchange realignment 380 5 - 385 R
At 30 June 2019, net of accumulated RZZE—NFAA=1+H "
depreciation kR REHTE RR(E
and impairment 25,809 19,992 53 45,854 -
]
. A ISR g3
At 30 June 2019: RZE-AFRA=1+H: o
Cost 295,022 222,189 2,401 519,612 PAME ﬁi’
Accumulated depreciation RETERRE 35%
and impairment (269,213) (202,197) (2,348) (473,758) =
S
Net carrying amount 25,809 19,992 53 45,854 BREVHE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. ¥ - MEKRKRE (E)
For the years ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the directors considered that certain leasehold HEZ-ZFENA=ZTRARZZ-NFRA=THILFE E=F
improvements of the Group were subject to impairment because of the challenging retail market due to RAENEEIHEEMERELRAE  DERAEERRENE
the spread of COVID-19 worldwide and social incidents in Hong Kong in the first half of financial year KRERERBEBR-_Z—N/_ZFUBRFEL¥FHELSEHS
2019/20. TEMSTMAB
The directors estimated the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit as follows: EEGFREEAEMZATREISEET
“bossini” products cash-generating units [bossini/ Z g 7 & & 4+ &/
The respective recoverable amounts of HK$25,520,000 of the “bossini” products cash-generating units [bossini) 2 an IR & /2= A B8 i % ] Y [0 & B8 8 625,520,000 T 58 F 35
have been determined based on a value in use calculation which was approved by senior management eRERAEESATEREENEZFRERET ReR=8A
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the respective ERREZDE BELARBEEER TAERFH M BRES
items of property, plant and equipment. Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 30 B -RZE_EFRAZFTARZZE-AEA=ZTHFEFRE
June 2020 and 30 June 2019 were as follows: BEERAZEZEREZNT :
2020 2019
—E-BE —ZT-NEF
Sales growth rate 0% 0% HEERE
Gross margin rate 42% - 69% 55% - 59% FH=
Discount rate 9% - 12% 9% - 12% BRER K
The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on the expectation of EFERBEHRRMARRET LMEEERERENEK -

future market development.

Impairment provisions of HK$12,968,000 (2019 (restated): HK$2,586,000) and HK$1,000 (2019: HE_T-_ZF A A=THLEFE RERCEIARBELEELR

HK$413,000) were recognised in profit or loss for continuing operations and a discontinued operation BRIEEB BEREES R AE 12,968,000 (ZE—hF (K&

respectively during the year ended 30 June 2020. 5) : 7 #2,586,0007T) K& #1,0007T (ZZ — L4 : B #413,000
7T e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17. BEWME
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —E-EF —ZT-NEF BEFT
Carrying amount at beginning of year 18,543 20,311 REVREE
Depreciation provided during the year (1,767) (1,768) FRPTERE
Carrying amount at end of year 16,776 18,543 REREAEE

The directors of the Company have determined that the investment property is industrial, based on the
nature, characteristics and risk of the property. The Group's investment property was valued as at the
end of the reporting period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$204,500,000 (2019: HK$212,900,000). Each year, the Group’s management decide to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the Group’s property. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting. The investment property
is leased to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment property are included on page 204.

REWEZHES  BERRAR AARZEZCETCREMELRLE
ME - AEBREVEABUEXSERGEMESERTEE
PR A RIRIRE IR 2 B A8 8204,500,0007T (T — N4 : B
212,900,0007T) « AEB 2 EBERGFRELZEINEMHER - &
BEHAREBYEETINDGE - MBEREBEMSAG B8 B
VUEREGHEFBEEKE - AEBrEEESFRFENHREHE
THEREAERE R ELEREGERMETHR - HEMETIR
BEEHERTE=F  BRE—PHEERBENERE P HREM
180

BRAAKEREMR ZE—HFBHNE204E -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 17. REY X (&)
Fair value hierarchy AEERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment property: TRAAREEZREMEZ AT EA LR
2020 et

Fair value measurement using

RAZAVETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BX BX
TEIR GIf ok FABR
TISHRE BWABE BWARE et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—E) (B=FE) (B=F8) BETF T
Recurring fair value measurement for: LEENTERE
Industrial property = = 204,500 204,500 T
2019 —E-NF
Fair value measurement using
HRz A THETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
ESWN ESVN
JEEE CIf 2= TRTEE
= 5 ME WA B BABIE e
._8 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
g;‘g in HK$ thousand (£—E) (=) (2=18) BHTT
Su Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMATERE
S Industrial property - - 212,900 212,900 TITEWE
2
[N
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

As the investment property is measured initially at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for any
impairment in value, there is no movement of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct comparison approach, fair
value is estimated by using the direct comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment property, which include the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market
price. The fair value measurement is based on the above property’s highest and best use, which does not
differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment property.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

17. REY % (&)

NFEERE ()
FR FBEF_EBELAYLEAFEAEZER  TESAXRE
HE=EZER -

A R AR BT B R B EAE 2 B EENSHE &
BATERBE-ERREN ATEIEAELD -

RETERERLEA GG - RIBERLBOE - RFEDAER
HEOE  BROERDSAIRTHEYKSEAMM S A LBRHE
R 5 MmiEbE

ETHERSERIREMEZFL  BEUE - K Bk - 58
BE ERFOREMRER USHEMTSER AFEAER
BEREMMERERAEERNRS RRERESEL -

TERABBRBMTISER - EWBSERKELA THE &
EHREAMEATEKRE LA T -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B EHRME

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

18. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings, office equipment and motor vehicles used
in its operations. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between 1 and 15 years. Leases of office
equipment generally have lease terms between 1 and 4 years, while motor vehicles generally have lease
terms between 1 and 2 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased

assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

18. &
AEBEREEA
AEBERELEERMACZHEET POAERBERAEREHE
BH - BFHEMNHAEHEENTIZ215F - BRAEREHENHE
HBENTE4F  MAENHEERBEEN 1220 - — K= -
AEBEBTARAASEBEUIINATEEZLSDHAHEEE -

() EAREE

Office Motor

Buildings equipment vehicles Total
in HK$ thousand g3 WAERME RE H“E BT T
At 1 July 2019 366,881 618 354 367,853 RZZE—hFtHA—H
Addition 100,411 - - 100,411 RE
Depreciation (190,532) (208) (214)  (190,954) e
Derecognition/lease modification (5,379) (412) (142) (5,933) RIHER,THEER]
Impairment (102,306) - - (102,306) DERIE]
Exchange realignment (4,345) 4 2 (4,339) HPE
At 30 June 2020 164,730 2 - 164,732 RZZ-TFA=1H

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s management identified certain retail shops which continued to
underperform and estimated the respective recoverable amounts of HK$164,732,000 of their right-
of-use assets. The recoverable amounts of the “bossini” products cash-generating units have been
determined based on value in use calculation which was approved by senior management using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining lease terms. The pre-tax discount

rate applied for the cash flow projection with a range from 9% to 12%.

An impairment provision of HK$102,306,000 (2019: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss for

continuing operations during the year ended 30 June 2020.
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RZZZZFAA=+H A5EEEEEANE TRERRAX
ENTEES  URESEZEAREEMTSAZTRE S
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DIRBEESRERENECFRAEENEET  BeRERA
ERREHTHEFHVKEETE - @RARBESRETEA
ZHRBAMEEREEN TI%E12% °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

18. LEASES (continued) 18. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEEELEAEA (8)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows: FA-HERBAZRAERZFHNAT
in HK$ thousand BT
At 1 July 2019 390,178 RZE—hF—H—H
New leases 100,411 MEE
Lease modification/termination of leases (6,148) MEBI A RIEHRE
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 15,564 FRERZH BILIE
Payments (211,976) (BN
Exchange realignment (945) HiA®
As at 30 June 2020 287,084 R-_TE_TFRA=TH
Analysed into: DA
Current portion 154,068 BVEAER 5
Non-current portion 133,016 FERNHAEB
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss from continuing operations in relation to leases are as () FEAEXBRIBm AR HEBFZHEWT -
follows:
in HK$ thousand BT
Interest on lease liabilities 15,341 HEABEZFE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 187,538 ERAREECTE
Expenses relating to short-term leases and other leases with REAERMRTHERR S _FFA=1TH3k
remaining lease terms ended on or before 30 June 2020 66,711 ZAIAE R Bt E AR R X
Impairment of right-of-use assets 102,306 EREEE A
Gains on termination of leases (38) RIERE 2 s «
Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic (14,160) SHFAEMR RS R BEEECEESER 5
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 69,974 TRERHEBGETEZ I EHENK =
Qv
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 427,672 RERANBR AL (3
5
=
=]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

18. LEASES (continued) 18. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TrEBEEREAHEA (&)
(d) Variable lease payments (d) FEHENHK
The Group leased a number of the retail stores which contain variable lease payment terms that are REBEHAHETEEH AP a¥SHEENTUER - HiR
based on the Group'’s turnover generated from the retail stores. There are also minimum annual base BAREENTEEHELNSEENT - ZFHENTREXE
rental arrangements for these leases. The amounts of the fixed and variable lease payments recognised 2EEAAHeTH - ZFHERAFELBRERNE T T
in profit or loss for the current year for these leases are HK$66,711,000 and HK$69,974,000, A E D B AE66,711,0007T &7 #69,974,0007T °
respectively.
The Group as a lessor rEBEREBEA
During the year, the Group leases its investment property under operating lease arrangements. The terms FR AEERELEHECRHTHEEREME - ZFHL 2K
of the leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income from continuing operations FABRERBEAMNRBERE - FAN - FEBBRABELEEB 2
recognised by the Group during the year was HK$8,993,000 (2019: HK$8,761,000), details of which are & U A 588,993,000t (ZZ — N4 « #%8,761,0007T) © ¥ 15
included in note 5 to the financial statements. SR IRER IS o
At 30 June 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non- RZEZFTFAA=TH  AEETEEBAPFII 2 AR &%
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: HET  BEREYCRUERBERNZTEINNT :
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand o 3 —ZT-NEF BT
Within one year 9,124 6,738 —FR
After one year but within two years 2,326 6,000 —FREMFA
After two years but within three years = 1,483 MEREBE=FA
11,450 14,221
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

19. TRADEMARK 19. &
in HK$ thousand BT T
2020 —E-EHF

Cost at 1 July 2019 and at 30 June 2020,

net of accumulated impairment 1,164
At 30 June 2020:
Cost 1,164

Accumulated impairment -

Net carrying amount 1,164

2019

Cost at 1 July 2018 and at 30 June 2019,

net of accumulated impairment 1,164
At 30 June 2019:
Cost 1,164

Accumulated impairment -

Net carrying amount 1,164

Indefinite useful life

The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible asset with an indefinite
life in Indonesia in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the
"bossini” trademark has been a well-known and long-established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights
are capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash flows
indefinitely. The Group re-evaluates the useful life of the “bossini” trademark each year to determine
whether events or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.

RZE-—NFLtA—BARR_ZE_ZEFA=1+H
AR B 2RHRE

R-B-BFAA=A :
R
REHA(E

FREDFE

—E-hF

REZB-NFLtA-BRR-ZZF-AFRA=1H
ZRA - Bk RETHRIE

R-TB-hFRA=1AH:
XA
REtRE

FREDFE

BREAFH
AEBEREEBEHERFEIRELEE - #§HIEZ [bossini | B 1R
DERRHEZERRELEE - 4w J1ER [bossini | H1E B
—NNEFERERAMEERBELEAZREME - FEREMNT
A THEXNERZKATERES - Rk ZAKAFH - MER
AEBEZARMBRR  FHBHRAERMELRSAA - AKH
FEEMHbossini ] AR AERFEH  NEEEEFESHXIBENR
BEXRKEEBRERERFHIEE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 20 REZREATEIBRZSCHEE BF
2020 2019
—ECEHF —T-NEF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
in HK$ thousand BE afE BE afE BEEFT
Quoted investment fund, at fair value BERERES  BATE (M5Ta)
(note a) = = 231,628 -
Forward currency contracts (note b) 593 7 314 520 REEEEH (M5ED)
593 7 231,942 520
Notes: PEE
(@) In the prior year, the fair value gain in respect of the Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (@ REF AEEZRBEREATFEIEZEHEEZATERSE S
amounted to HK$2,066,000. During the year, the investment fund was redeemed and loss on disposal amounting 752,066,000 c RF R ZREESDKEER R HEZ BIEBE
to HK$2,473,000 was charged to profit or loss. 2,473,000LE R IBZEHIH o
(b) The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The above transactions (b) EHEESRHZERABERKSEZ AFEMER - L)y RRERRER
involving financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are conducted with creditworthy financial FEINEZSMEE, BBZRGNEEETRAAIEAI+ZEER
institutions with credit ratings from A-1 to A-1+. TR REIEETT -
During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. FRN - AEEFTUZHERNEEANNERHLEXRER ZFEHE
These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured at fair value through BEOWIFEEEEHRAR YRATEREREAE - FR - Z%
profit or loss. The net gains in the fair value of these non-hedging foreign currency contracts amounting to SEERINE A KA FEF W & & B8 792,0007T (Z T — N F B
HK$792,000 (2019: HK$5,830,000) (note 8) were credited to profit or loss during the year. 5,830,0007T) (Fi518) BAEE#maT A °
21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
2020 2019
s in HK$ thousand ZECIEF —ZE-NF BETT
E Raw materials 648 777 EH
é Finished goods 209,031 257,959 BIRK G
[
=
= 209,679 258,736
£
[N
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

22. DEBTORS 22. EWHR
2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —E-TF —E-NEF BETT
Debtors 48,441 57,157 FEUSBR TR
Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its BRIRERERARHEEN  AEEE—RBATRTFHEESEFARS
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers, 0OREEH - BRIE SR —MABNRIEBEIN  FEHRFLIIR
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its SR EEREE o ANE BB E ARG 2 AR SR AT B EE 8
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the HRFHESREEETHELEME - ER A LRMARRNER 2 &
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade customers relate to a large number of diversified SEFPHRERBZZHEANEFEH  MASBYEREERZE
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or BERR - AEBEWAREEBRRESRS B EMERDSEMER
other credit enhancements over its debtor balances. Debtors are non-interest-bearing and stated at net of RAEM - BRERHRE @ WHKEBBREYE -

loss allowance.

An ageing analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of AT B3R A R EE R EE T RUERR NSRS R ZRER D
loss allowance, is as follows: #r
2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —E-BF —T-hF BT T
Within 1 month 39,607 48,637 R—EARN
1 to 2 months 3,714 5,014 —ZmE A
2 to 3 months 565 656 ME={AA
Over 3 months 4,555 2,850 BiBE=1EA

48,441 57,157
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B EHRME

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

22.

DEBTORS (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed by the Group at each reporting date using a provision matrix to
measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer type, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. As at 30
June 2020 and 2019, the Group assessed that the loss allowance and the expected credit loss rate under
the application of HKFRS 9 were insignificant.

22,

FE W R R (4]

AEENEHRE QRS RAREREETRED T - Ut EBHE
BB - BEXDRAGEUBBEEANZETF OBz ENE
HAHGH (MReEREIEFEINAREREREMT A 2E
ERBAPIRERE) - ZFTERREENESER  BEEEREER
RiE BHAS 2 BRBE TR - B AR R R A IR TR B
BELASEN R-TFFR-_ZT-NFRA=+TH K&H
AHEIRBEE RV BERENFRT BEENBEBERENEES

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FENFIE - RE R HMEWIRE
2020 2019
In HK$ thousand —ECEF —=—NEF BT
Prepayments 11,202 18,839 TERRIE
Deposits 82,902 96,566 %4
Other receivables 31,803 28,817 HAbpE R BRI
125,907 144,222
Less: Non-current deposits (35,766) (58,504) B JERNERiRE
Current portion 90,141 85,718 RNEAER {7

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and deposits with suppliers. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed by the Group at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default which is estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. During the year, apart from certain deposits and other receivables
that written off amounting to HK$6,419,000, which were considered by the directors as irrecoverable
due to the financial difficulties experienced by these debtors, the Group assessed that the loss allowance
and the expected credit loss rate under the application of HKFRS 9 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were
insignificant.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 24 RERBAEEHEEARFEFBRITERX
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —E-TF —ZT-NEF BETT
Cash and bank balances 161,339 160,975 He MIRTTHER
Non-pledged bank deposit with original maturity of VSR R E I A
less than three months when acquired 15,000 - DR=E R 2 EE R IRITIF R
176,339 160,975
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity of ISR EREA
more than three months when acquired 56 865 BB =EA 2 BEMRITER
Total 176,395 161,840 Bt
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi RB|EHAR  AEBAARBEEZRE MRS FEHEE AEK
amounted to HK$57,035,000 (2019: HK$33,757,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible into other 57,035,0007C (=& — SL4F : 7 #33,757,0007T) - ARETEEHE
currencies, however, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration RBEMEE AR B KREINEE BN M AETE - S MM
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange BEERT  AEBRBEFBERELEINEEL ZRITHARE
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. R AINE o
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term bank deposits RITIFHE BIRBITERAEEE OF X E - RHRITER
are made for varying periods of between 2 weeks and 3 months depending on the immediate cash HENT2EHZ3EA - DEFAEEZARReFTEME - ki
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank deposit rates. 1R 2 R ERIT IR AR ARG B ©
The pledged bank deposits of HK$56,000 (2019: HK$865,000) were pledged to banks as security for bank RZZZZFRNA=1H - EEBRITFHEES6,0000 (ZF— N,
guarantees for overseas subsidiaries of the Group as at 30 June 2020. F : B¥865,0007T) EHE M T IRITIE R AL BE NI E A 51 EUGIR -
TR 2 IER - 8
g2.
The cash and bank balances, non-pledged bank deposit and pledged bank deposits are deposited with B M7 S  BEEBERTERALEGIRBETERE FERNITE ii
creditworthy financial institutions with no recent history of default. WEEALSMAGEE RS - jg%
[<%)
=.
=]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B EHRME

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

25. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. B RRAR - HAb BN AR BT RRE

2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —E-EF —E-NF BT T
Trade creditors 16,682 48,734 FETBRX
Other payables 16,674 18,287 H b e 308
Less: Non-current portion (2,675) (1,733) S o FEENEAER D
Current portion 13,999 16,554 BUERER(S
Accruals 88,005 105,005 FEETBRIE

118,686 170,293

An ageing analysis of the trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,

AT R EZ A HFHEMNERRR SR R

is as follows:
2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —ECEF —T-hEF BT T
Within 1 month 3,319 26,771 R—EAR
1 to 2 months 10,715 16,239 —Z=M{EA
2 to 3 months 1,314 1,878 M2 =& A
Over 3 months 1,334 3,846 BiE=1"A

16,682 48,734

The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of 1 month, except for other
payables of HK$2,675,000 (2019: HK$1,733,000) as at 30 June 2020, which are not payable within 1

year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. ENEE
2020 2019
In HK$ thousand —E-TF —ZT-NEF BETT
Distribution of garments — advances received from customers 2,973 3,512 BRI 88 — TR P 3R
Retailing of garments — customer loyalty programme 611 250 KREE - LR 2
Total contract liabilities 3,584 3,762 BWEMEE
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver garment products and the customer EHBEBERRMNKIXE®UER 2 52 BiTE R IE K 55 = A5 22 E
loyalty programme. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the decrease in short- E - RNZZEEFZERNAEERY  FEARNKKRDHEZRE
term advances received from customers in relation to the distribution of garments and the increase in the BTN E P RIER A R & P A SR E) FT 8 2 B Bl E I g A
exceptional product discounts under the customer loyalty programme. e

27.

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The Group’s amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 45 days
from the invoice date. Certain directors of the Group’s related companies, who have beneficial equity
interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN
Man Kuen Bess (resigned on 14 August 2020), a director of the Company.

27.

FEfYBRE A R FKIR
AEE 2z BANBERRFADERR - 28 MANER R HE45
AAEER ARBZAERRZETHRABEGRGEZERTIARF
IERRERERERARAESTEERLE (R_T_FF/\A
THBEBHE) 2B\ -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. Gt BRITER
2020 2019
ZBIBE —ZNF
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$°000
ERA= E)Cpe BRI T kS 5|8A BETT
Current 515
Trust receipt loans - 2.63%-5.00% Within 9,721 N/A N/A - EAREER 25
unsecured 1 year or on NEf TEA
demand
—ER
HERER
Bank loans - unsecured 1.54%-3.15% Within 50,000 3.24%-3.78% 2 months 30,000 RITER-BER
1 year or on 2{8 A
demand
—ER
HERER
59,721 30,000
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —E-EF —E-NF BETT
Analysed into: DI
Bank loans repayable: EERITER :
Within one year or on demand 59,721 30,000 —FARIZENR
Notes: MisE -
All the bank and trust receipt loans bear interest at floating interest rates based on Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate. FIARITRIETBIEERRIZTBRITAZFRBRFHFERAL -
The Company’s ultimate holding company has guaranteed the above bank loans up to HK$426,376,000 RBERAR - ARAZKERRFTNERALBRITERRERSZ B
S (2019: HK$60,000,000) as at the end of the reporting period. 426,376,0007T (ZZ— L4 : j£%60,000,0007T) FE LR ©
=
EE‘; The borrowings are in Hong Kong dollar. EFNBEEE -
2 K
E . BANKING FACILITIES 29. RTEE
oE As at 30 June 2020, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$455,628,000 (2019: RZE_TEFRNAZFTH AEEMRTEEEBELASE
< o _ - _
< HK$422,047,000), which were supported by corporate guarantees given by the Company. These facilities 455,628,0007T (ZZ — JLEF : B#422,047,0007T) * AR AR
= were utilised to the extent of HK$87,230,000 (2019: HK$51,752,000) as at 30 June 2020. NEIERIEAYE R EF X A=+HEHEZZEEAE

#87,230,0007T (= ZF — /L4 : %51,752,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. JEFERLIH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows: FRAZBREHEEEREEZSOT

Deferred tax liabilities — 2020 EEBEEE-—S_ZF

Revaluation of

property
in HK$ thousand YESR BETT
At 1 July 2019 1,463 N_ZE—NFELH—H
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FREBRFTAZELESE (FiE12)
during the year (note 12) (690)
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZZ-_ZTFNA=+HELFEMERRIE
consolidated statement of financial position BRZELERIBEEESE
at 30 June 2020 773
Deferred tax assets — 2020 EEREEE——ZT=-TF
Depreciation
in excess of
related
depreciation
allowance Others Total
HrERBIEEE
in HK$ thousand ERBE Hity e BETT
At 1 July 2019 5,257 5,731 10,988 RZE—NFEtA—H
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during the FRNEE=ENRR CEERIE (FizE12)
year (note 12) (5,175) (5,427) (10,602) =
QL
=)
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZBZTFRNA=ZTHEGEMBRAEK §§_a
consolidated statement of financial position R ZBEERIBEETRE =X
at 30 June 2020 82 304 386 i g
¥3
=
=
=]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. IELERIE ()
Deferred tax liabilities - 2019 ELEHEEE-—T—NF
Revaluation
of property
in HK$ thousand Y E BT
At 1 July 2018 1,461 RZE—-\F+H—H
Deferred tax charged to profit or FREBRNBR BT (FzE12)
loss during the year (note 12) 2
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZB-NAFERNA=ZTHEGEMBRAEK
consolidated statement of financial position TR IELETIBEEERR
at 30 June 2019 1,463
Deferred tax assets — 2019 ELEBBEEE-—F—N&F
Depreciation
in excess of
related
depreciation
allowance Others Total
e tRiBIaR
in HK$ thousand ERBIHE EAfh #®E BT
At 1 July 2018 6,046 5,554 11,600 R-T—N\FtHA—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or FREB=TA (FOBR) ZEEFIE (FT:E12)
loss during the year (note 12) (789) 177 (612)
[
.o
E = Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZE—NFRA=THEGFEHBEIRRE
S & consolidated statement of financial position EEEZJZ ERIEE EER
E i) at 30 June 2019 5,257 5,731 10,988
.© )
';:’ K
£
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$439,178,000 (2019:
HK$253,042,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in Macau
of HK$28,787,000 (2019: HK$710,000), in mainland China of HK$168,293,000 (2019: HK$146,862,000)
and in Taiwan of Nil (2019: HK$120,000,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose for a maximum of 3 years, 5 years and 10 years, respectively.
The Group had estimated tax losses arising in Singapore of HK$74,210,000 (2019: HK$53,739,000)
and in Malaysia of HK$5,226,000 (2019: HK$5,425,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also had deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$751,000 (2019: HK$2,986,000) and HK$7,189,000 (2019:
HK$7,557,000) in Singapore and Malaysia, respectively, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain
whether sufficient future taxable profits will be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. As at 30 June 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding tax that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that is subject to withholding tax of a subsidiary of the Group
established in mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that the subsidiaries in
mainland China will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. No temporary differences (2019: Nil)
were associated with an investment in the subsidiary in mainland China for which a deferred tax liability
has not been recognised at 30 June 2020.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=TFNA=1H

30. JEFE R H ()

RWEIR - AEBREBEE 2 (BB E R 5439,178,000
T (ZZF— N : #%253,042,00050) © AIER A A(EIR S E AR
WARIBBZERBREF - AEBNEM FERERSEELEZ
et IEEE D B A8 128,787,000 (ZZ — L4 : ##710,000
JT) 75 #168,293,0007T (—F — N4 : 75 #146,862,0007T) K
(ZZE— N : %#120,000,0007T) + FRELMEIE ] BERE QA
A ZERFENRZHR=F « AFERTF - NEERFINHE RS
RPGgRE A 2 (T BB 9 Bl A28 #74,210,0007T (= — L4 ¢
75 #£553,739,0007T ) MBHES,226,0007T (= Z— SL4F : 85,425,000
JT) ¢ AJERHAEREEEBB AR REZERTUEH - RifdH
R AEBRF NG & BRI INE Al R E R Z 2D B4 E R
751,0007C (— & — AL4F : B #2,986,0007T) M 78 %7,189,0007T (=
T— NG : B¥7,557,000T) c EZRAE - ARKAEBEAERES
BEESRMERB SN AKE ] B ARIEREE - BERIBEELE
M FEHEEITHER -

RIBHBEBEMEHUE - R BEARERIZH IR E D ERINEIR
BETRBREABMI0%EMD - BARER_—"FTEN\F—HA—H
EAER WERAR-_ZETLFT_A=1+—HAKRNEH  HETE
REEINE R EE M REE R L RERL - BIA s sEm &
B - AEEME - EARERI10% Bt - AEBE AR E
RERINZEMNBARR -ZTN\F— A~ BERNOB KR
BREMBARAN - R-FE_TFNA=1TH  AEBEHRNPEH
REE 2 M A RIERRD M AR ME K B F 2 ENTRHIFM = - WARIER
ERIERIR - EFRE - PEAEHRB A RN RFHRIKESH
BANZATREME TR - R-B-BFXA=1TH AEELE (=
E-NFBE)RPEAEMNBARREMBBRERRERRE
BZHRAERIEEZE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

31. ISSUED CAPITAL 31. ERITR A
Shares Bz 17
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —ECEF —ZT-NEF BETT
Authorised: TEERRA
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000 2,000,000,0004% & I B & #0100 2 3@ A%
Issued and fully paid: BT REUER
1,641,333,394 (2019: 1,641,333,394) 1,641,333,394% (ZZ — N : 1,641,333,394%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 164,134 164,134 FREEBE0.107T 2 @A
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: FERNZBEITRAZEHINNT -
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTROME SBRITRE ROEZER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BT T
At 1 July 2018 1,638,935,394 163,894 28,758 192,652 RZE—-N\FLA—H
Exercise of share options (note a) 3,000,000 300 369 669 7715 B A (B 7Ea)
Share repurchase (note b) (602,000) (60) (107) (167) i1 B 88 (B Eb)
At 30 June 2019, 1 July 2019 and RZZE-NFARA=1TH ZZE-NFtA—HRK
30 June 2020 1,641,333,394 164,134 29,020 193,154 —E-FFA=1H
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31.

32.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)
Notes:

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the subscription rights attaching to 3,000,000 share options were exercised
at the subscription price of HK$0.160 per share (note 32), resulting in the issue of 3,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$480,000, and the related share option reserve of
HK$189,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

(a)

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company repurchased 602,000 ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for
a total consideration, before expenses, of HK$167,000. The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year
ended 30 June 2019 and the premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of HK$107,000 has been charged to
the share premium account.

Share options
Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are included
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing
incentives to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, and
its subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 12 November 2013 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

32.

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

CRITRAE (F)
P 3 -

(@) BE-ZT—NFA=THIFE 3,000,000 EREREH 2 REE
RREBEGRAM0. 1607 BT (M13E32) + B{E 173,000,000 FAX
HEAB. 10T 2R - BN & KEARB480,0007T (RetFZ) - B
ZEBBRRERITER - AR E AR5 %5189,0007T B B2 5 2= I 15 15

BEZZ-NFANA=ZTHLEFE AR AIRERFTHER602,0000% %8
f& - BREAE167,000T (RetHY) - REBEEZT—NFA=1
AIEFEEFHEBRRG - MM EEZE&EES%107,000TE#
&1 % ERR R o

ISR
AN R AERT B AR R AT 21 B 1 T IR AR 2 IR Y A AR & B TS 3R
FHIEE32 -

B S B
AARRERRFERT S ([FZ25T8])) EEREREEHASE S
EHERCAERLHE B AEBEERIEBERES - WK
MEREBBEEZIANDER -

ZAEZ R ER2BALBREARARARARMNBE AR ZHAITE
FFATER(BREBEUIIFNTES) REMERARBES - %
FERCE—=F+— A+ BER  BIELFTBIA R AT L8
HiEF] > BRAIBZBEFAERMRTEF -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company sought the approval of the shareholders of the Company for
the adoption of the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was 162,077,939, which
represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 12 November 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share options granted during
the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. R 8 ()
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the BIREZITEEBHESER ETNFERATZRSE  (ODRBER
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share R BEAAR R B G R B A FT 2 Wi (B ¢ (i) BERH B A a15E
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the 5 trading days R BARARRDAEE AT 2 FHEUWTE : Ri)ANA R R EE -

immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BRETERE THA AR EHRBREARS FIRFZHER
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: FRZTE T HARITEZERENT
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options exercise price options
IREFIGITREE BREYE IETHITERE il 2 g
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
SREMYT T4 BRI F5
At beginning of year 0.558 108,648 0.565 119,728 EFH])
Granted during the year 0.231 1,660 0.284 6,860 FRIXE
Forfeited during the year 0.497 (28,468) 0.571 (14,940) FRE UL
Exercised during the year - - 0.160 (3,000) FERNITE
At end of year 0.573 81,840 0.558 108,648 RELR
In the prior year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised was EFEITEBRERITE B B2 METHRERERAER0.2707T -

HK$0.270 per share.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. B HEET 8 ()
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting R E R R ARITE AR 2 1T B RATHR AT ¢
period are as follows:

2020 —EEF
Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period
WRERE TEE aca
HKS
per share
BREET
2,182,000 0.503 note (a(i)) BT E (adi)
4,592,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 2 ——F Tt AT ZREZE=_ZTF+H+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 2 tATZRAEZE_ZEF+A+—H
7,320,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 —E—ZFt+A+-HE-_ZE-ZF+A+—H
10,400,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —Z-AFtA+-HE-_Z-_ZTF+A+—H
82,000 0.922 note (a(ii)) M T (aii))
54,000 0.880 note (a(iii)) Bt 5% Caii))
16,624,000 0.570 note (b(i)) 5 (b))
124,000 0.570 note (bii)) B 5 (i)
398,000 0.740 note (biii)) 5 (i)
30,860,000 0.495 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 TE-NAFtTtANBE-_Z-XE+A=H
620,000 0.460 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 —E-NFt+t—AZ+N\BEZZE-tFHA=1+—H
816,000 0.455 4 October 2019 to 2 October 2027 —==—h¢+ﬂmaﬂ—? +H+HZH
620,000 0.352 26 December 2020 to 2 July 2028 —Z _$¢+ AZ+ARAHEZZE-_N\FEA=H
2,500,000 0.275 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029 B —FXNATAhAEZZE-_NF—HA—H
2,500,000 0.275 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029 —E—FtANBEZZE-NF—H—H
880,000 0.231 10 December 2021 to 1 July 2029 —E-—F+= HJrEliquLitﬂ B
620,000 0.285 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2029 TECF=-R—HEZZE-NFZAZ=+NH
81,840,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. R 8 ()
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting R ERBARITEEREZTERERITEHOT : (8)
period are as follows: (continued)

2019 —E-hEF
Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE EE e
HK$
per share
FREET
240,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——4F_ANMAE-_E-_ZEF_A=H
360,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 - -_ANMBE—ZE-_TF_HA=H
600,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 = _ANBE_ZE-_TF_HA=H
2,654,000 0.503 note (a(i)) M3 (adi))
4,592,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —E——&+RA+=-HE-_ZE-ZT&+/H+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 T —Ft+At+-HE-_ZT-_ZTF+A+—H
7,320,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 —E-=F+A+-RAE_E-_ZEE+A+—H
10,400,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —hAF+A+=ZHE=ZZE=FF+H+—H
82,000 0.922 note (a(ii)) MT #F (a(ii))
54,000 0.880 note (a(iii)) M5 (adiii))
36,000 0.490 note (a(iv)) Bt 5 (aliv))
240,000 0.425 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 :f MFE—RA-—RE-_FT_=F—H—H
360,000 0.425 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 —HF¥—H=H :I:—’E‘E —=%f—H—H
600,000 0.425 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 :;f*/‘—\E*H:EIE: T-=F—H—H
24,112,000 0.570 note (b(i)) M (i)
248,000 0.570 note (b(ii)) B3 (i)
398,000 0.740 note (biii)) B 5 (boiii))
28,000 0.590 note (b(iv)) BT EE (biv))

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERAR A A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. R8I (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting R E R A ARITE BRI 2 TR B RATEAANT : (8)
period are as follows: (continued)

2019 —E-NEF
Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period
BAEHE TEE* THEH
HKS
per share
FRA T
46,600,000 0.495 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 - = —h¢+ﬂ MEZE-—ZE-X&+A=H
620,000 0.460 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 —NF+—AZ+N\BEZZE=-_tFHA=+T—H
816,000 0.455 4 October 2019 to 2 October 2027 f NF+ABBEZT -+ +H=H
780,000 0.425 22 May 2020 to 30 November 2027 —E-EFAA=-+=H :Zé_f t¢+ A=+H
620,000 0.352 26 December 2020 to 2 July 2028 ZEZEF+ZAZ+R EI EZFNFtHZH
2,500,000 0.275 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029 —EZ-—FXAt+tAHEZ jLE A—H
2,500,000 0.275 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029 2 —FtANHEZ 2 RE—H—E
1,240,000 0.285 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2029 B _F=A—HREZZE-_AF-_A=+NH
108,648,000
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar o BREZITREARBMERSETAR SRR FRAZ H AR
changes in the Company’s share capital. B FLAAR o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. B HEET 8 (&)
Notes: BT
(@) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the () BRENEBIENERRANRAERASEHE_T—=F, A=+
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013. HIE=FHEN="FEEBE 2 EHRR -
The exercise periods of share options are as follows: BRI AT ¢
(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the () BHAEAERHEE-T—=F"A=-tHIFEZLEEZRA?
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. BAMERENESEBMGBRTE  EZT_FF+AMA -
(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the iy AHEAEEBZE_Z—=F A=THIEFEZLERGA
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. BAMERENEEBRRATE 222 _—4F—HF=H-
(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the (iy ATIBEAEEAHE T =ZFNA=-tTRAULFEZEEZRGEE
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021. BAMERENESEBRGKRTE  EZT—F+A=R-
(iv) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the vy AHEAEEBE T —=—F A A=THILEFEZLEZGAE
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022. BAMERENEEBRRATE 22T __F+tA=-H-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2016.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024.

(iii) From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025.

On 2 July 2019, the Company granted share options of 780,000 and 880,000, respectively, to its
employees. The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HK$89,000 (HK$0.05 each),
of which the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$37,000 in the current year. The Group
recognised an aggregate share option expense of HK$643,000 in the current year for the 81,840,000
share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 43

32. i@ AT &l ()
GERNC))
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. B HEET 8 (&)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of FANARL 2 B EEERE 2 A TETRF L B 8EE - WH A
grant, using a trinomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were ZIHEAPEEERN  LEFAR L ERE 2 R R GMG R
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: o TREIMRARRX 25T AEE -
2020 2019

—EoEE —ZT-NF
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 7.33 6.84 INHEF 5 AR B R (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 41.28 43.52 DNHE 735 78 B K Bh(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 41.28 43.52 DNHE T35 FE 52K B(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 1.68 1.96 hnE 5 f8 [E Ba R 2R (%)
Expected life of share options (year) 10 10 BRETEETF 5 ()
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.231 0.283 mEFHRE (BRB%T)
The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is BRECENFHANBEBETF2ELERETE « RN REA
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the BEHIIR 2 BRAEITR AR R o TRER B) O AR IRE S0 R B K HE B R AR 8
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the B RV TERMMR o

actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value. RETE R T AR IR R PTHEEARRE 2 ol B A1 o

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 81,840,000 share options outstanding under the RREIR - AR EFEZTEITH81,840,00017 i AT 2 BEARHE -
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.99% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The HERZBARTEEITRDK4.99% © 1RARA 7R A RALEED
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, AT M ARITR 2 BAKE - BB A E)E1781,840,0000% 55N &

result in the issue of 81,840,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital BARAR D - AR ASIE AN 4Y 7 HE68,184,0007T °
of approximately HK$8,184,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 July 2020, 2,182,000 share options granted to certain
employees on 5 July 2010, were forfeited with an exercise price of HK$0.503 per share, and an exercise
period from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

On 8 July 2020, 442,000 and 780,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 December 2013 and 4
October 2016, respectively, were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.570 per share and HK$0.495 per
share, respectively, and exercise periods from 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023 and from 4 October
2019 to 3 October 2026, respectively.

On 10 July 2020, 2,500,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 January 2019 were forfeited with
an exercise price of HK$0.275 per share and an exercise period from 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029.

On 12 July 2020, 756,000 and 1,100,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 December
2013 and 4 October 2016, respectively, were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.570 per share and
HK$0.495 per share, respectively, and exercise periods from 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023 and
from 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026, respectively.

On 12 August 2020, 2,500,000 share options granted to an employee on 2 January 2019 were exercised
with an exercise price of HK$0.275 per share and an exercise period from 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029.
The price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise was HK$0.385 per share, which was the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of exercise of the options.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

33. RESERVES 33. f# &

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are $¢Jﬁ&iﬂﬁﬁfg$$lﬁ%%&ﬁi\qj*‘E"ﬁibz%igﬁiﬂﬁ(\\ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁz
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts HEERZHRERAN - R_TZT i%fﬂ ST E B AERIZE3058 A1 E
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of Statement of Standard WEMBRARMEEAMN _Z_2FSA=ZTHNEREEGER
Accounting Practice 30 in 2001, remaining in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained FHERGEERBRNAZEERTED R A 3,292,0007T & &
profits amounted to HK$3,292,000 and HK$20,982,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2020. 20,982,0007T °

The share option reserve of the Group comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to REEZBREFRELFBEERLEBRITERBRE A FE  F15
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note NG M BWMRMA2A4G6AARND XN RIBZR G 2 T HE
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share premium N BERBEBRREEBEREETERERZRMDEER - SiHE
account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related BRI E MRS R ER R ST c RIMEHARE AR
share options expire or be forfeited. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, all share options were BRECKR-ZZE-FTFN\ATHWBAEHE -

cancelled on 14 August 2020.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3. FERERERMHE
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities () MEFTEMEEEEZEEH
Interest-bearing
Lease liabilities bank borrowings
in HK$ thousand HEEE FTERITER BETT
At 1 July 2018 - - RZE—NFLH—H
Changes from financing cash flows: MEReREZLE
Addition of bank loans = 83,000 FTIRITEN
Repayment of bank loans = (53,000) EERTER
At 30 June 2019 - 30,000 RZZE-AFRA=+H
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) 390,178 - RN B BT HERERE 165 2 28 (M172.2)
At 1 July 2019 (restated) 390,178 30,000 RZE-NFEA—H(ET])
Changes from financing cash flows: MEREREZLE
Addition of bank loans = 184,960 FIBIRTTE R
Repayment of bank loans = (155,239) EERITENX
New leases 100,411 - MHEE
Principal portion of lease payments (196,412) - BENF AL EHHD
Lease modification/termination of leases (6,148) - HBEB]/RIERE
Interest expense 15,564 - FEFX
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows (15,564) - NEREEREMNECLEMNIE
Exchange realignment (945) - Hia®
At 30 June 2020 287,084 59,721 R-ZE-ZFRA=1H
(b) Major non-cash transactions (b) TEFREXRH
Certain additions of property, plant and equipment of HK$1,325,000 (2019: HK$872,000) were not REET1,325,0007T (ZF— AL 4F < B 1872,0007T) 2 & T
.§ paid at the end of the reporting period and were recorded as accruals. ¥ BEREEBEBRERREARLRZNLDIIEEEERIE -
@©
EX
£ During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of FRN - AEEREFCHERALNEECHHEETACRESE
',—:ﬁ HK$100,411,000 and HK$100,411,000, respectively, in respect of lease recognition and lease ERHEGEZIFRSIE NS R A H100,411,0005T kB
%ﬁ arrangements for buildings (2019: Nil) (notes 18(a) and (b)). 100,411,0007C (= ZF— & : &) (H:E18(a) & (b)) °
[
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 3. RERERBERWE ()
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERSRHHER
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: ARG ReRERCHER @R REHINNT
2020
in HK$ thousand —ECEF BT
Within operating activities 15,564 EBEXEBN
Within financing activities 196,412 BEEBA
211,976
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: REBRRERARZEREERNT ¢
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —ECEF —E-NEF BETT
Contracted, but not provided for: BETHIBAREE -
Leasehold improvements 442 2,895 HEMFEEE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 311 51 B - KB RPAEHRE
753 2,946
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

35. COMMITMENTS (continued) 35. #4E (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 (b) RZZE—NAFEARA=THZEEHERIE
The Group leased certain of its offices, retail stores and warehouse properties under operating lease REEECEREZZHT HREETHAE TEEHLE
arrangements. Leases for properties were negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15 years. EWE ZEMEZTCHERNR —E+RAFIF -
At 30 June 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable RZZE—NFAA=TH AEBEBEFAIEBEIE&EHET -
operating leases falling due as follows: HesxEHENTEERIHBENT
2019
in HK$ thousand —ZT-NEF BETFT
Within one year 246,621 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 223,020 RE_FZFRF BIEEBEMRSE
After five years 4,833 hEZE
474,474
The operating lease rentals of certain retail stores were based solely on the sales of those stores or on ATTEEMZRENENSERZSEHZHERN T
the higher of a fixed rental and a contingent rent based on the sales of those stores. In the opinion of BEfe MRZEEHEERMET 2 XAMEMET Z2ES
the directors, as the future sales of those retail stores could not be accurately estimated, the relevant ERE -BEEZRA ANBUERGHZETEEHARZHE
rental commitments had not been included above. The total future minimum lease payments included S8 UL EERERASAE - ARSERENKER
the management fee of a shop. PRE-—HEEHCERER -
36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. AAEE
2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —EC-EF —ZT-NEF BETFT
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility REKERBRMELZRS 2
and property rental deposits 5,697 3,463 HRITHER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.BEAELRS
(a) Material transactions with related parties (a) HRAEATZERRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group BRiFEMBHMERMFL IR SN - AEBREANHRGEA T
had the following material transactions with related parties during the year: TZERRGNAT :
Note 2020 2019

in HK$ thousand B —E-BF —E-NF BT T

Purchases of garments (i) 2,113 7,355 FREERK X

Note: B 5

(i) During the year, garments totalling HK$2,113,000 (2019: HK$7,355,000) were purchased from certain () FA- ARAAETERBEREEARAR ([REKER]) 2EHE
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”). The purchases were N RIS HAW2,113,0007T (ZZ— N4 - #%7,355,0007T) 2
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Laws International is wholly owned by a trustee of a KK - BT 2RER 2 TEEL - BRERBEBRELA ([
discretionary trust set up by a relative of Mr. LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law") of which such relative and his family EENDZEBIARLZ ERERAZXAIAZERE  MEEREB
members are eligible discretionary objects of the trust. Mr. Law is a substantial shareholder of the Company RERGKREARGBRZGERI RN  BEERARAZEE
and the spouse of Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company. The balance owing to these suppliers BREREADRBEEFESBRALZRMB - RZEEFA=TH
as at 30 June 2020 was HK$71,000 (2019: HK$107,000). Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on i R 5% SR B RS 2 RRE A 71,0000T (= — 14F < 7##107,000
21 July 2020, Mr. Law has ceased to be the controlling shareholder of the Group. TT) c RBEMBRE  BEER_T_TF+A-+—BTBEAR

RE 2R

ERZEEALRZBIER ETMRRE1AAR TR E 2B

The related party transactions above also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
BHEE A T 2 REERIELRR

RMER - RNEBEEBER R 2 SR BN GEE B RE
BsE27 °

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b)
Details of the Group’s balances with related companies as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=ZTFA=1H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37.BBEALR S (#)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel () XEEBABZHE
2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —ECEF —E-NF BT T
Short term employee benefits 17,922 22,396 RHEEEA
Equity-settled share option expense 406 587 RS BRI 2
Pension scheme contributions 198 241 RIREETEIMHR
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 18,526 23,224 INFEEEEAE ZHERSE
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the consolidated financial EEME 2 E—BFBELHNGEE P BWMRMFEI -
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. R TESHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting REERR SRR TAKRBENT

period are as follows:

Financial assets — 2020 ERMEE-—ZE=-8F
Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets
through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
REZRRATE RER AR A
in HK$ thousand IRz SRMEE JIEZSRMEE st BETT
Debtors - 48,441 48,441 FEUER X
Financial assets included in prepayments, EETATBNFIE - Ze REAMEKERIA
deposits and other receivables (note 23) - 114,705 114,705 ZemAEE (M23)
Financial assets at fair value REERIEATEYR SREE
through profit or loss 593 - 593
Pledged bank deposit - 56 56 BEPIRITHER
Cash and cash equivalents - 176,339 176,339 RekREFEIER
593 339,541 340,134
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. &R T A2 (&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting RRERR FEERTAKREENT : (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Financial liabilities — 2020 tREE-—ZE-8F
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities
value through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
REBRERATE RS A FIE
in HK$ thousand Rz emasE ZEMEs st BETT
Financial liabilities included in trade EEFAERTARER - Efb T FIE K
creditors, other payables and accruals - 98,953 98,953 EETRBECeRBE
Bills payable = 12,277 12,277 NS
Due to related companies = 71 71 JERTRAE A FIFRIE
Financial liabilities at fair value through REZREATEY R SRIABE
profit or loss 7 - 7
Lease liabilities - 287,084 287,084 HERE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 59,721 59,721 FFERITER
7 458,106 458,113
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. &M T A E (&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting REERR FEERTAKRBENT : (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Financial assets — 2019 SREE-—Z—NF
Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets
through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RBZREZATE R AR SIE
in HK$ thousand PRz & RVEE ZEMEE #aEt BETT
Debtors - 57,157 57,157 FEULBR X
Bills receivable - 3,209 3,209 e
Financial assets included in prepayments, EETATBNFIE - Ze REMEKERIER
deposits and other receivables (note 23) - 125,383 125,383 22 mEE (Mi23)
Financial assets at fair value REERIEATEY R SREE
through profit or loss 231,942 - 231,942
Pledged bank deposits - 865 865 BEMRITER
Cash and cash equivalents - 160,975 160,975 He MReSEAR
231,942 347,589 579,531
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. &R T A2 (&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting RRERR FEERTAKREENT : (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Financial liabilities — 2019 TREBE-—T-hF
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities
value through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RERREATE RESE ARG E
in HK$ thousand SRz &RBE ZEmBE Hast BETT
Financial liabilities included in trade EEFAERTARER - Efb T FIE K
creditors, other payables and accruals - 146,497 146,497 JEFTERIEZ &R EE
Bills payable - 21,744 21,744 JES =K
Due to related companies = 107 107 JENRE A EIFRIE
Financial liabilities at fair value through REZREATEY R SRIABE
profit or loss 520 - 520
Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 30,000 30,000 FTEIRITEE
520 198,348 198,868
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss were carried at fair values at 30 June 2020
and 2019. Management has assessed that the fair values of the cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits, debtors, bills receivable, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in trade creditors, other payables and accruals, bills payable, lease liabilities,
contract liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings and amounts due to related companies approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance team headed by the Director of Finance is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the finance
team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by senior management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits, the non-current portion of other payables and the non-current
portion of lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's
own non-performance risk for other payables as at 30 June 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into the financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (derivative financial
instruments) (i.e., forward currency contracts) with creditworthy financial institutions with credit ratings
from A-1 to A-1+. Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency contracts, are measured
using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign
exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

The fair value of the investment fund is based on a quoted market price.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma B EwR M

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

39 EMT A AFERAFERS

RIZZEZZEFR-_T-NFRA=ZTHZRBRRRATAESIRZ
EMEE/RBENRATEIE EREENERSRASEERA
B BEMRITER  BURF - BRER  SEARNRE &
EREMERRRZ SREE S ARNERR - EENFIER
EitRE cRAE BNREE HEAE SHNAE FHERT
ERRENBEARFELAHERRSEZEMER/REE - T2MH
RZETATREHAZE -

AEEHYBEERTAZHBESREEN EERMTARFEAEZ
BEREEF REREEH  UBERSTERTIAZEEES
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B - RABREFEETE - ZFRUBSZHEMBSABEENEA
B BRXZETNEEER - INE BT FIE HF) % 5K H) = i
R BERERAONRAERRSENATEMER -

BAKS 2 AFEDREAED EH -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERAR A A

189



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30, M I AZAFERAFERE (&)
Fair value hierarchy AEERE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: TRHALAEESRITAE 2 AT EF 252
Assets measured at fair value BRFEGEZEE
2020 —EBEHF
Fair value measurement using
RAZATVETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
EATHE EATTER
SERTISWE BWARE WA st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—FE) (B=F) (B=R) BB T
Financial assets at fair value through REERIEATEYR SREE
profit or loss - 593 - 593
2019 ZE-NF
Fair value measurement using
KAz ATHERZ
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BAAERE SATAHE
ERTISRE A B 8 A BIR #E
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—E) (=) (F=E) BT T
Financial assets at fair value through REZRIEATEYR SREE
profit or loss 231,628 314 - 231,942
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 3. eMITAZATFERATFEERE (B
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEERE (8)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: TRIPLREEERI A A FEASEE : (B)

(continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value BAFEGTEZEE
2020 —E_EHF
Fair value measurement using
KAZATFETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
EATEHE EATTER
SERTISHRE BABE B BE “Et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (%5—18) (B=fE) (B=18) BT
Financial liabilities at fair value REREERATEIRZ2HBAE
through profit or loss - 7 - 7
2019 ZE-NF
Fair value measurement using
KRZAFEFZE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BAAHR FJEATAHE
ERMISRE A BR A B FEE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—E) (B=E) (B=E) BETIT
Financial liabilities at fair value RERREATEY R 2AE
through profit or loss - 520 - 520
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 =T FA=1H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than its financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits, bills receivable, bills payable and interest-
bearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, bills
receivable, deposits and trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the foreign currency risk arising from the Group'’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. Senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and purchases in
foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. Approximately
42% (2019: 35%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar. It is the Group's policy to enter into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign
currency risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies other than the United States
dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

At 30 June 2020, the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of HK$44
million (2019: HK$85 million) to manage its foreign currency risk in Renminbi and Singapore dollar.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in Renminbi, Singapore dollar and Taiwan dollar exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss after tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities and forward currency contracts).

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 %%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=TFNA=1H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 40. B EREEBERBER (8)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SR B (4E)
HKS Decrease HK$ Increase
weakens in loss after tax strengthens in loss after tax
against and increase in equity* against and decrease in equity*
BITH A BB AZEERD BITRER FRE & A5 1838 0
E¥RE RREZE*E M EHAE Rz
% 2020 2019 % 2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —B-BE —EZENF —E-BE —ZNF BETT
Renminbi 5 3,645 3,650 5 (3,645) (3,650) AR
Singapore dollar 5 5,725 4,559 5 (5,725) (4,559) I3 T
Taiwan dollar 5 5,532 7,300 5 (5,532) (7,300) Bk
*  Excluding retained profits * TEEREBR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

40. M ABEE B ZERBX (&)
R = @ b
AEENMSNEEHE LT ERAEEF R 2T EGTLIRTT

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's
interest-bearing bank borrowings during the year with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all TRETMEMAIZRERFIAELNBELT - NEERTAERE GE
other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax (through the impact on floating rate bank BFHHERITERTE) RAEERRE N RSB e # e
borrowing) and the Group’s equity. RRJE o

2020 —EZEF
Decrease in loss Increase in loss
before tax and

B % & B
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Increase in before tax and Decrease in
basis points increase in equity* basis points decrease in equity*
FR% AT IR R 2 RR 7 A A5 18 3 hn
& B KA+ WOEE REZE*HD
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT
Hong Kong dollar 100 998 100 (998) podesd
2019 —E-hEF
Decrease in loss Increase in loss
Increase in before tax and Decrease in before tax and
basis points increase in equity* basis points  decrease in equity*
W75 A ES 1R R A FRE A E RSN
HEHINEE, P& Lk Yl R EE L T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar 100 1,279 100 (1,279) K

*  Excluding retained profits
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 40. B EREEBERBER (8)
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all AEBEEFEHERAREERINE=ZFTETRS - HRBRAEEHNIK
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, K EERREERTENRINEP W AKLBEERERRF °
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not N REESRHEEREREREHRNBERL  MASETESTA
significant. BB AR -
Maximum exposure and year-end staging R [ K FAE B B
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's TREIBBEAEEFEERRZEEEZREERR 2K ARR
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other information is available without (HXEZERBEATOHENETE  RIEFEHMEMAERZTNED
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 30 June 2020 and 2019. For quoted NEHRALIRANAER)  RRZZE_TFR_F—NF A
investment fund, the Group also monitors them by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented =STRZEERERSE - BB REESN S - ARETTERER
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee SNBIEERTREITTER - M2V e ASRAE 2 RMERE R
contracts. BEREHNMEEZEERR -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

40. B EMEE B ERBUR ()
EERR (&)
RAER R FREEER (&)

2020 et
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12184
AHEEEE 2HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
in HK$ thousand Rl BoREB BZRE AR wa BT T
Debtors* - - - 48,441 48,441 JFE W BR
Financial assets included ERFATERFIE « B REMEWRARTE
in prepayments, deposits ZEREE
and other receivables — [EE**
— Normal** 114,705 - - - 114,705
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEEE
— Not yet past due 176,339 - - - 176,339 — R
291,044 - - 48,441 339,485

ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 43



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 40. B ERMEEBEREK (E)
Credit risk (continued) EE R (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) A g R FAEREE ()
2019 —B-hF
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121 A
TEHEEEE 2 EFEREEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
in HK$ thousand E—PRER B REER E=REER XN RE BT
Debtors* - - - 57,157 57,157 RIS BRFR*
Bills receivable - - - 3,209 3,209 U EE
Financial assets included EETATERFIR - e REMEWRIE
in prepayments, deposits ZEREE
and other receivables — IEE**
— Normal** 125,383 - - - 125,383
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIAR
- Not yet past due 160,975 - - - 160,975 — XRmHd
286,358 - - 60,366 346,724
* For debtors to which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision * BASEERAREGSCARNZEBKRERT S - RIBEBEHERE 2 ERR |
matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. e R RR M 22 R EE -
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered * BERABRMHRE ReRkHMEKRENSRMEEL SO ETE
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had EHNBETRERMEEREAERAUARZEERRERE LAK  HGE
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is BREHRAIER] -THEREENEEERRRAITHEE] -

considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors and bills
receivable) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$455,628,000 and
approximately HK$87,230,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2020.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

40. M ABEE B ZERBX (&)
REE SR
AEEMNAEEERDREATAEZESNRAR ZTAGES
RTANESBEE (WEKEREERER) WEH A BRI E
EEMREIT

AEBZEZAEEEZHEMEBEBRTRETHEERZER
EMERSFEEH R_Z_TFEAZ+8 AEBEEEZRTE
BRE A 455,628,0000T @ & H #)78187,230,000 L& B B A o

RIEHR  AEEEREFTHERMREMNRZ A G HER
un

N

2020 ZEZEF
On demand
or less than
12 months 1to 5 years Total
BERE
in HK$ thousand SR+={EA —ERF “@Et BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade ERFARERRR - B ERFIE
creditors, other payables and accruals 98,953 - 98,953 FETIRBz e /B E
Bills payable 12,277 - 12,277 ENEE
Due to related companies 71 - 71 JES B R RIFRIE
Financial liabilities at fair value through REZREATEYIR, SREBE
profit or loss 7 - 7
Lease liabilities 165,055 140,038 305,093 HEaE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 59,799 - 59,799 FTBRITER
336,162 140,038 476,200
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=TFNA=1H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 40. BF 7% B B B 22 B 12 R BUR (48)
Liquidity risk (continued) nEELER (F)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the RBERAR - NEBERBITNERMBEIR A EIHBER
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (continued) W (88
2019 —E—HE
On demand
or less than
12 months 1to 5 years Total
in HK$ thousand LR+ =@A —ERfF “aEt BT
Financial liabilities included in trade EEF AR - EfbERFRIE
creditors, other payables and accruals 144,802 1,695 146,497 RIEETERIBZ B E
Bills payable 21,744 - 21,744 ERRE
Due to related companies 107 - 107 FERTEAE R AIRUIE
Financial liabilities at fair value through REEREATE R S/AE
profit or loss 520 - 520
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 30,078 - 30,078 FFERITEE
197,251 1,695 198,946
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE B RKM T

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 40. R EE B ERBEE (&)
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Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank
borrowing over total equity. The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio of 70% or below.

The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods are as follows:

EXRERE
AEEEAEENEZRR  AEAAKEABKAERRNE
BASRENEALE  USHEERERF  FREANBRES -

AEERBEEERNEDRIANEENRREY - SREEAL
BIELER - AR RARENE - ARETE SRR AR
B2RE  MBRFREAAREITHBR - BE-T-TFAA=+
AR-Z—NEABS+BLFE TEENEBREANEE K
EE

AEBRAABRTERGARSTECEERBLXERERNK
N AEEZBRREREEABLERR/I0ONHIAT °

EREEETHEMNEEAGLE -RNBEHRNEEABLL RN
T

The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income has been
re-presented as if the Taiwan segment discontinued and other segment resources reallocation during the
current year had been discontinued and reallocated at the beginning of the comparative period (note 13).
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2020 2019
in HK$ thousand —E-TF —E-NF BB T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 59,721 30,000 SEIRITER
Total equity 281,460 699,975 s
Gearing ratio 21% 4% BEAELE
. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS EBREE

EEGAEaREMEZHKRERECENZY BURAFEAD
RIEEBZ A ESEREMYBEEREHN DR L BRARMAEGEE
BERIEREHRDE (HE13)



42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 May 2020, Mr. LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law"), the controlling shareholder of the Company and
Dragon Leap Developments Limited (“Dragon Leap”), a company with 80% shares held by Viva China
Holdings Limited (“Viva China”), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032),
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Law has conditionally agreed to sell and Dragon Leap
has conditionally agreed to acquire 1,093,091,098 shares of the Company, representing approximately
66.60% of the entire issued share capital of the Company as at 14 May 2020. The consideration for the
transaction was HK$46,620,000.

The acquisition was completed on 21 July 2020, and thereafter, the Company became a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of Viva China. Following the completion, Dragon Leap owned approximately 66.60% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company and was required to make (i) a mandatory unconditional
cash offer for all the issued shares of the Company (other than those already owned or agreed to be
acquired by Dragon Leap and parties acting in concert with it) (the “Share Offer”) and (i) an offer to cancel
all outstanding share options of the Company (the “Option Offer”, collectively the “Offers”). The Offers
were closed on 14 August 2020.

Taking into account the valid acceptances in respect of 748,148 shares, representing approximately 0.05%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company, under the Share Offer, Dragon Leap and parties
acting in concert with it hold an aggregate of 1,093,839,246 shares, representing approximately 66.54%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 14 August 2020 and immediately after the close
of the Offers.

Further details of the above were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 May 2020, 30 June
2020, 21 July 2020, 24 July 2020 and 14 August 2020, and the circular of Viva China dated 24 June 2020,
and the composite offer and response document relating to the Offers dated 24 July 2020.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2020 —ZE=TFNA=1H

42. HREWREIR

R-TB-_ZFERA+MNA AR ZERBEERELEE (%
EDBEIEAFEIERERAR ([3EALFR] » BERFIGEMETA A
(B 5% : 8032)) HES0% M 2 ARl EERER AR A A ([#E
B Bt BAEBKREHERE DS RERE GHFHFE
B AR TF]1,093,091,0088 8815 + HERARRN_ZT_FTFHA
A+PMAZ 2B %17 AR466.60% ° 25N (B AE146,620,000
=

EHRRBER_Z_TFLtA-+—H=EK ' HE  AREKRAIE
REBZIIEZEWBAR - REKE @ ERESAQG2IEFET
M AR 466.60% @ WHN)EARF 2 EEHTRMD (R RE KT
BALTEHRBRRAESE TUEE ZIRDBRIN) $2 ok Hil 1 £ &35 &
BH(RHELN]D » ROHEEARREIMARITEEBREREELY
(BREZY] SBIZZFELN])  -ZSFEHER=_Z=_ZFN\A
T AE L -

Lt R D BLIE T %748,14808 % (0 (MBE R AR R B BT
DHEEA0.05%) 2 BB IEZENE  ERRE—BITPHALEEES
1,093,839,246% 810 HHERARRR_ZE_TFNATEEKE
BErZEBHHE IR 2 BBITIRID B E466.54% °

B EEZE—SHFBEARARABHA-T_FFHA
+mOBE - —ET-TFAA=F+H —ZTE-_TELHA-+—H =T
ZEFLACHMBERZEZTF N\ATHOBEZAMERIELFREA
HAE T -_ZTFAA-tHBZRAMARBHA-ZT_ZTF+A
Tt NRBEZEEN 2 GRE BN REIES -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B EHRME

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period

43. A2 8 2 B iR R 3Rk

RBEPRR  BRAR AT BHRRKZERDT

is as follows:
2020 2019

in HK$ thousand —ECEF —T-hF BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 143,162 143,162 WEARIEE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries 241,585 259,564 TEU KT B A 7] 3k 18
Prepayments 8 65 AR IE
Cash and cash equivalents 797 786 RekReFHEER
Total current assets 242,390 260,415 RMEEEEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals 2,429 1,331 HiE B R ESERIR
Tax payable 99 265 eI
Total current liabilities 2,528 1,596 mEAEAE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 239,862 258,819 REBEEFE
Net assets 383,024 401,981 BEFE

kS EQUITY s

kS Issued capital 164,134 164,134 BT

e N 3

5 o Reserves (note) 218,890 237,847 s (MED)

=0

= (S

TR Total equity 383,024 401,981 HEEAE

2

| N
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e e

30 June 2020 —ZE=FFXA=1H

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 43, XA\ Z B iR R & (48)
Note: BT
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RRBEBEZHEWT :

Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total

in HK$ thousand RAD S E R AR  BRERKE REBER #HwE BETT
At 1 July 2018 28,758 157,616 27,140 21,083 234,597 R-ZZE—N\F+A—H
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 41,280 41,280 FAREKELFE
Exercise of share options 369 - (189) - 180 1T RS AR IE
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 1,953 - 1,953 EnEEERET
Repurchase of shares (107) - - - (107) R&Ap Bl 88
Final 2018 dividend declared - - - (20,032) (20,032) EER-Z-N\FREAKE
Interim 2019 dividend - - - (20,024) (20,024) —Z-NEFRERE
At 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019 29,020 157,616 28,904 22,307 237,847 RZE-—NFEANA=+BEER=ZT—NFtA—AH
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 424 424 FAEENK=LEE
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 643 - 643 EnEEERET
Final 2019 dividend declared - - - (20,024) (20,024) BEER-ZZE-NFRAKS
At 30 June 2020 29,020 157,616 29,547 2,707 218,890 R-ZE=ZTFA=1H

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS a4, IR 2 HE A
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEREN_ZE_TFNA T NBHERRER M AP IEHRE -

16 September 2020.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY

30 June 2020 —E=FFNA=+H

INVESTMENT PROPERTY REYE
Attributable
interest
Location Use Tenure of the Group
ith Bk A FH REEEEER
Units 1 and 2 on 8th Floor, Unit 1 on 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term
Cheung Fung Industrial Building lease
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
R EEH HHE23-395 I%¥ FHIEE
RETERESEIR2E -
IE1ER 1EL125AE
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Global distribution network
éi? /-\ fé I“ Il\

Hong Kong and Macau
ESCS Y A

Mainland China B xpE 154 (175
Singapore #1 N 17 (15

38 (39)

)

)

Taiwan” & j&" 0 (57)
)

)

)

Bangladesh & infz 101
Brunei 57t 101
Czech Republic 22
e AR
Dominican Republic
ZEAE A E
India E1/E 230(218)
Indonesia ENfE 8(8)
Kenya 55 0(4)
1(1
405 (416)

44

Laos £

Middle East* frEe*
Myanmar 4

Nepal /€ A #

Reunion Island % EfE & 1
Romania % FE 2 4
Rwanda &/t iE 1
Thailand Z= & (
Uganda &= 0
Venezuela Z A iz 8
Vietnam i /g 6

209%2s6)

directly managed stores in Hong Kong and Macau,
mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore
RBERARPT - PEARE - A8 RIS
MEEEEEM

Regional retail performance indicators @ T & & RIRIEIZ

77375

export franchised stores
DA RS I

9827 1,061y

stores in about 28 countries and regions
SRR 428 ERR K i@

* The Middle East includes Armenia, Bahrain, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and UAE
PREFETERE - BH - H8 - NES  RER - M8 - FH5F - DR ARMARSERE

" From discontinued opearﬁon

RIEHR

# Including continuing and discontinued operahons

BEFRRERER IR

(') Figures at 30 June 2019 are shown in brackets

REB—AFEARNAZTHZHFUERRT

N

Same-store sales growth (%)*

Sales per sq. ft. (HKS) Net retail floor area (sq.ft.)

F/EHERER (%)* BEHRHERE (BH) BEELEEE(FER)
Year ended Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020 30 June 2020

BE-2-BF BE-T-BF —EBCBF

RNA=Z+THLEE RNA=Z+THLEE RA=t+A
Hong Kong and Macau &% J R -19% -10% 5,500 7,000 $21% 109,500 110,800 V1%
Mainland China = Bl ARE -8% -6% 1,500 1,900 $21% 140,700 151,400 V7%
Singapore ¥ -11% -9% 3,400 5,000 V32% 22,200 21,400 4%
Taiwan” &/&" 1% -8% 2,500 2,100 219% - 60,400 V100%
Total &3t -14% -9% 3,100 3,800 V18% 272,400 344,000 ¥21%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods
FEHERERAHERERNEBHATE A B 2 HERLE

~ From discontinued operation
REBLIEFK




i International Holdings Limited
BEEBRAF

ted in Bermuda with limited liability)
M2 BB AR
HHRR: 592)

w.bossini.com
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